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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chun Bin Xu (appointed as chairman on 22 May 2020 and
re-designated from an independent non-executive Director
to an executive Director on 3 July 2020)

Mr. Yong Ning Zhu

Mr. Ming Tien-Lin

Mr. I-Sheng Chan

Ms. Jo-Hsien Chiang (ceased to be director on 30 June 2020)

Mr. Chien-Li Tseng

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Dun-ching Hung (ceased to be chairman on 22 May 2020)
Mr. Chi-Ming Chou
Mr. Weiguang Shi (ceased to be director on 15 August 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wanwen Su (ceased to be director on 30 June 2020)
Mr. Chen Zhou (ceased to be director on 13 March 2020)
Mr. Huai Jiang (appointed on 31 March 2020 and
retired on 30 June 2020)
Ms. Ming Hua Chen (appointed on 31 March 2020 and
retired on 30 June 2020)
Mr. Hang Sheng Ye (appointed on 3 July 2020)
Dr. Yong Jun Tang (appointed on 3 July 2020)
Ms. Hong Xue (appointed on 3 July 2020)
Ms. Xiao Yan Xu (appointed on 3 July 2020)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dr. Yong Jun Tang (appointed as a member and
the chairman on 3 July 2020)
Ms. Hong Xue (appointed on 3 July 2020)
Ms. Xiao Yan Xu (appointed on 3 July 2020)
Ms. Wanwen Su (ceased to be director on 30 June 2020)
Mr. Chun Bin Xu (resigned on 3 July 2020)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Hong Xue (appointed as a member and the chairman on
3 July 2020)

Mr. Yong Ning Zhu

Mr. Chun Bin Xu (appointed on 3 July 2020)

Mr. Hang Sheng Ye (appointed on 3 July 2020)

Ms. Xiao Yan Xu (appointed on 3 July 2020)

Ms. Wanwen Su (ceased to be director on 30 June 2020)

ZTTFFWR Annual Report 2020 RFRIASTEIBIZERAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited



QX AEH
CORPORATE INFORMATION

REZEE
RMERE (R F-FF L A=AREASRERER)

RKERE (A -FE _FFLH=AETHELTE)
W RE (R FE-_FF+A=HEZIL)
BRERL (R-F_FFLH=HEZHF)
Bzt (R-F_FF+tA=HRZL)

BEMEREZES

RXKBRE (FE)

MEEE e

ERARE
REWEE (R -FE - FEF+HA=HEZE)
Rt (R -_F-_FF+A=HRZL)

TEEREES

BMat (EE)

Bkt (A—F-_FF+A+AETHETEE)
TEA L

ITERLT (AT -—FTF=ZH_HETHELEE)

RNAME

BRimseE (R B _FF+ A+ HEZE)
XNEERE (E-F_FFLHTHE
THEFRAHE)

BEAX
TR S

BRimseE (R-_FE-FF+ A+ HEZE)
NEERE (BT _FFLHTHETHEL)

AR ER

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman
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Cayman Islands

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Hang Sheng Ye (appointed as a member and
the chairman on 3 July 2020)
Mr. Yong Ning Zhu (ceased to be the chairman on 3 July 2020)
Mr. Chun Bin Xu (appointed on 3 July 2020)
Dr. Yong Jun Tang (appointed on 3 July 2020)
Ms. Hong Xue (appointed on 3 July 2020)

STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Yong Ning Zhu (Chairman)

Mr. Ming-Tien Lin

Mr. I-Sheng Chan

Mr. Chun Bin Xu (appointed on 3 July 2020)
Ms. Xiao Yan Xu (appointed on 3 July 2020)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Ms. Yan Yang (Chairlady)

Mr. Weilun Liao (ceased to be director on 10 July 2020)
Ms. Chuanhong Bian

Ms. Huiling Wang (ceased to be director on 2 March 2020)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chen Kun (appointed on 10 July 2020)
Mr. Man Yun Wah (ceased to be company secretary
on 10 July 2020)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Chun Bin Xu
Mr. Chen Kun (appointed on 10 July 2020)
Mr. Man Yun Wah (ceased to hold the office on 10 July 2020)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman
KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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The People’s Republic of China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG
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Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House
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Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE
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Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited
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Hong Kong
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | hereby present the
annual report of Christine International Holdings Limited (the
“"Company” or “Christine”) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020 for your
review.

China’s bakery market has been growing at an annual rate of
over 10%, accompanied by intensifying competition among
bakeries. Although the market is increasingly fragmented with
more players, trendy, unique and refreshing products and
consumption scenarios are gaining favour with customers,
especially young consumers which account for a major portion
of the consumer base. This has brought great challenge to
traditional bakeries, forcing them to speed up their business
upgrading.

The changes taking place in the bakery industry force us to
find ways to improve our products and services and to create
a better aesthetic experience for consumers, bringing a more
satisfying consumption experience to our customers.

The Group has always paid close attention to the developments
of the bakery industry, and has been exploring ways to improve
its strategies, processes, services and management, with a
view to providing ever better products that are safe, tasty and
healthy. It is the major objective and mission of the Group to
establish “Christine” as a reputable food brand.

OPERATING RESULTS AND PERFORMANCE

During the year of 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic and global
economic downturn caused unprecedented impacts on
business activities. Despite all the measures taken by the Group
to cope with the situation, the Group's business was inevitably
negatively impacted during the year amid a weak consumption
environment.

ZTZTFFWR Annual Report 2020 FRIASTEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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The Group’s total revenue in 2020 was approximately
RMB403.9 million, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB148.0 million or 26.8% as compared to 2019, which
was due to the overall economic downturn and the Group's
downsizing of stores. Net loss attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately RMB110.4 million, representing
a significant decrease of approximately RMB113.9 million or
50.8% in loss as compared to 2019. The decrease in loss was
mainly attributable to the Group's continuing closures of loss-
making stores and the effective implementation of other cost
control measures. The Group’s basic loss per share for 2020
was approximately RMB10.9 cents.

In the past year, despite the Group’s business suffering heavy
blows, we overcame difficulties and ensured, though in a
smaller scale, production and sales. The market downturn also
gave us time to learn and improve. We conducted more in-
depth and precise market research and closed down about 100
loss-making stores, which significantly reduced our operating
costs and eliminated a number of outdated production
facilities to achieve the best economies of scale. In terms
of product development, we adjusted our existing product
portfolio, optimised the proportions of semi-finished products
and finished products, ensured on-site baking at some stores
and developed festive products. We have also made attempts
and efforts to improve the delivery process of our cold chain
logistics network.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

In the future, the Group will continue to focus on the research
and development of new products and enrich its product
offerings, so as to better align with the prevailing consumption
concepts and habits and provide healthy, trendy and aesthetic
products. In addition, we will gradually adjust our product
portfolio, increase the integrated sales of health drinks and
bakery products, and constantly improve the comprehensive
competitiveness of our products.

RRI##STEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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We will continue to optimise the sales strategies of our
retail stores, with a focus on enhancing the brand image of
flagship stores and improving consumer experience services
of individual stores, to consolidate our existing customer
base. We will also try to cooperate with other channels, and
intend to introduce the distribution channels of renowned
convenience store chains to explore new business patterns. We
will set up smarter online sales channels and establish strategic
cooperation with well-known online sales platforms to drive
product traffic, thereby further expanding the brand influence
of “Christine”.

The Yangtze River Delta region, including Shanghai, Zhejiang
and Jiangsu, will remain our main market in the short term. We
will increase investment in intelligent software and hardware
equipment of our factories, further optimize our supply chain
platform and improve our logistics network to ensure efficient
and on-time delivery of fresh products.

The Group will also explore and provide more diversified
products and services while growing its core business, i.e.
bakery business. We are in the process of negotiating with
certain colleges of Chinese medicine to establish long-term
strategic cooperation. Under the guidance of the Chinese
medicine theories, we will be able to integrate the elements of
food therapy and health care into our products to enrich the
content of “Christine” brand.

I would like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders,
customers, business partners and employees for their
continuous support to the Group. We will push forward with
our business transformation, and we are confident that we will
infuse the “Christine” brand with new vitality and create long-
lasting value for our Company and our shareholders.

RRIHSTEMIZERARAT Christine International Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and gross profit by product
types for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is set
out as follows:

BE+t-A=+t—-HLEE

For the years ended 31 December

S B —E-hEF

2020 2019
WA EF WA EH
Revenue Gross Profit Revenue Gross Profit
AR FT AR FT AEBEFT AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
e & ER Bread and cakes 286,686 114,761 407,651 144,605
A&t Moon cakes 35,416 14,177 31,559 23,559
KRB Pastries 53,914 21,582 72,210 44,421
HAth Other 27,903 11,170 40,521 30,741
403,919 161,690 551,941 243,326

ZECEFAEBRAN A AREL03,919,000T R ZF
—NEWA L ARKES51,941,0007T 2 #926.8%  TE2RA
ﬁ:
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WA (D) AEEESREABZEREHEN BANOF
KBEREFETR FOHEERENRELENRAEDT —
ERHEER TEET _Z_2F2FLER-

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020

The Group’s revenue in 2020 amounted to approximately
RMB403,919,000, representing a decrease of approximately
26.8% as compared with approximately RMB551,941,000 in
2019, which was mainly attributable to:

(i) the prolonged COVID-19 pandemic caused severe impacts
on economy and life in 2020, and the consumer industry
remained sluggish throughout the year. As a retailing
enterprise, the Group was more directly impacted by the
pandemic and, as a result, recorded a significant decrease in
revenue for the year as compared with last year; (ii) in 2020,
the Group continued to implement the strategy of closing
down loss-making stores, closing 99 stores. The decrease in the
number of operating stores and new stores have, to a certain
extent, contributed to the decline in revenue for the year; and
(iii) despite the Group's active attempt to change its traditional
marketing model, its brand effect has been weakening over
the years and it takes time for new sales channels to generate
benefits, which also contributed to the decline in revenue for
2020.

RRI##STEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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In terms of geographical location, Shanghai has always been
the main source of the Group's revenue. However, due to
the impact of the pandemic and the closure of some loss-
making stores, Shanghai contributed approximately 61.27%
to the Group's revenue in 2020, representing a slight decrease
as compared with 66.29% in 2019. For the year ended
31 December 2020, the revenue derived from Shanghai
decreased by approximately RMB72,420,000, or approximately
22.52%, as compared to the year ended 31 December
2019. The revenues derived from Jiangsu and Zhejiang
provinces decreased by approximately RMB33,290,000 and
RMB25,000,000, representing decreases 23.14% and 34.76%,
respectively, as compared to the year ended 31 December
2019, which was due to the fact that these provinces were
badly hit by the pandemic.

In terms of product categories, in 2020, sales revenue from
major products of bread and cakes decreased by approximately
RMB120,965,000 or 29.7% as compared with that for 2019,
and sales revenue from pastries decreased by approximately
RMB18,296,000 or 25.3% as compared with that for 2019.
As bread, cakes and pastries are daily necessities, geographical
convenience and the number of patrons are of critical
significance to sales results. Both sales volume and revenue
of such products decreased due to the temporary closure
of enterprises, schools and communities as a result of the
sudden outbreak of the pandemic and the decrease in the
number of retail outlets during the year. Other categories,
including products such as wheat albumin and jelly, recorded
no significant increase in sales volume, and the sales revenue
decreased by approximately RMB12,618,000 or approximately
31.1% as compared to 2019. Sales revenue from moon
cakes increased slightly by approximately RMB3,857,000
or approximately 12.2% as compared to 2019 due to the
mitigation of the pandemic and the rebounding consumption
during the Mid-Autumn Festival in the second half of 2020.

In terms of payment tools, the Group’s sales in retail outlets
were settled either in cash (and by bank cards and third-party
payment platforms) or through redemption of coupons (and
pre-paid cards), both of which decreased in 2020 as compared
with 2019 due to the decline in sales volume. In 2020, sales
in cash (and bank cards and third-party payment platforms)
amounted to approximately RMB229,190,000, accounting
for 56.7% of the total sales revenue (2019: approximately
RMB284,692,000, accounting for 51.6% of total sales
revenue).

ZTZTFFWR Annual Report 2020 FRIASTEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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Gross profit

The Group's gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2020
was approximately RMB161,690,000, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB81,636,000 or approximately 33.6%
as compared to approximately RMB243,326,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2019, which was mainly due to the
decrease in overall revenue during the year. The gross profit
margin for the 2020 was approximately 40.0%, representing a
slight decrease from approximately 44.1% for the year ended
31 December 2019.

Other income, gains and losses

The Group’s other income, gains and losses for the year
ended 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately
RMB47,305,000, representing an increase of approximately
RMB42,352,000 as compared with approximately
RMB4,953,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019, which
was mainly due to a net gain of approximately RMB34,797,000
from the disposal of the property located at Chao Ku Street,
Nanjing and the receipt of special government grants related
to the COVID-19 of approximately RMB4,660,000 in 2020.

Charge of loss allowances on financial assets, net

Charge of loss allowances on financial assets was
approximately RMB706,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group made
charges of loss allowance of approximately RMB11,741,000 on
deposits for purchase of non-current assets and approximately
RMB22,920,000 on amount due from a related company,
Shanghai Yi Pin Xuan Foodstuff Co., Ltd.

Selling and distribution expenses

As a result of the closure of certain stores and in line with
decrease in revenue, selling and distribution expenses
decreased by approximately RMB75,679,000 from
approximately RMB341,994,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB266,315,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

RRI##STEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2020
amounted to approximately RMB42,133,000, representing
a significant decrease of approximately RMB32,175,000 or
43.3% as compared to approximately RMB74,308,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2019. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the Group strengthened the management
and control of various administrative expenses and streamlined
and optimized the human resources structure of departments,
so that various administrative expenses including labor costs
were reduced significantly during the year ended 31 December
2020.

Finance costs

The Group's finance costs decreased by approximately
RMB11,240,000 or 54.1% from approximately
RMB20,792,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB9,552,000 for the year ended 31 December
2020, which was mainly due to the decrease in interest
expenses on lease liabilities.

Income tax expenses

Income tax expenses for 2020 amounted to approximately
RMB660,000, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB161,000 as compared with approximately RMB821,000
for 2019, which was mainly due to the decrease in operating
revenue for the year.

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company

Net loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
approximately RMB110,371,000, representing a significant
decrease in loss of approximately RMB113,926,000 or 50.8%
as compared to the net loss of approximately RMB224,297,000
for the year ended 31 December 2019, which was mainly
due to the Group's timely adoption of strong and effective
measures to control various costs during the period.
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81 B AR 2 4
FEEABXY
TRMI-F-FR-T-NFEFEBBRL:

ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Inventory turnover days

The following table sets forth the inventory turnover days in
2020 and 2019:

BE+t-A=t+—-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—E-ER i
2020 2019
FEEEXE (M) Inventory turnover days (Note) 36 32

M FHEEBRBDRFEDNRMRES 2EMNFHERIAEH
FMHZHEEKA BRA3GSKRETEFH -

AEEFEERRRMARERR AREERE AEFE
BERBAPTIE M

EE Y IERELEL PN -
TREYN -_ZF_FER_FT-NFEREFRUBBERE:

Note:  Inventory turnover days are calculated based on the arithmetic
mean of the opening and closing balance of inventories divided by
cost of sales for the relevant year and multiplied by 365 days.

The Group's inventories consist of raw materials and finished
goods. There was an increase in the inventory turnover days
due to lower sales.

Trade receivables turnover days

The following table sets forth the trade receivables turnover
days in 2020 and 2019:

BE+-A=1+—-RHLEFE

For the year ended 31 December

—E-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
B HENFEEE X (M) Trade receivables turnover days (Note) 8 9

Mz BHEERBREBRBEDEEZIERUKARNRAREHZE
M FI9ERRIAB B0 2 HERA - BRU3SKRAHFH

B 5 EYRIAE B R R T2 EHUAE L U R U E &
FIE HBEXB _ZE_TER_T-AFKFEE-

Note:  Trade receivables turnover days are calculated based on the
arithmetic mean of the opening and closing balance of trade
receivables divided by the sales revenue for the relevant year and
multiplied by 365 days.

Trade receivables mainly represent the outstanding receivables
arising from revenue generated from principal businesses, with
turnover days remain in the similar level for both 2020 and
2019.
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Age of trade receivables

The following table sets forth an ageing analysis of the trade
receivables of the Group as at the dates indicated:

R+=A=+—8H
As at 31 December
—E-EF —ET-NEF
2020 2019
ARKFT AR TFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MR & Age
0E30K 0 to 30 days 4,534 13,383
31260K 31 to 60 days 130 94
61£290K 61 to 90 days 93 165
91£180K 91 to 180 days 349 -
HiB180K Over 180 days - 14
5,106 13,656

AEBEEETERURERRLP ARG FEE TAEESE
SPERHEE  WENKRER BEERERBERRNES
RERE RRESHAOHAFBFRKAEEHEERE R
30E60KE LT AEE-

ESRARBBEERY
TREN-_ZE-_ZER_ZT-NFEEFHENFABERE:

The Group’s sales were mainly settled either in cash or through
redemption of coupons by customers. There was no credit
payment for transactions which took place in the Group’s
self-operated retail stores. However, for those retail stores
located in department stores or supermarkets, lessors who
provide those sites usually collect the sales revenue on the
Group’s behalf and pay the same to the Group within 30 to 60
days thereafter.

Trade payables turnover days

The following table sets forth the trade payables turnover days
in 2020 and 2019:

BE+t-A=t+—-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December

—E-EF —ZE-NF
2020 2019
Z S ER RIEEE KB (MFE) Trade payables turnover days (Note) 91 61

Mz BESRNFRREBSRBENRESENFADNRARGEHE
M FI9ERRIAB BFR 2 HEKAE  BRA3SKRFEFH -

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020

Note:  Trade payables turnover days are calculated based on the arithmetic
mean of the opening and closing balance of the trade payables
divided by the cost of sales for the relevant year and multiplied by
365 days.
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Age of trade payables

The following table sets forth an ageing analysis of the trade
payables of the Group as at the dates indicated:

R+=B=+—H
As at 31 December
—E-SE —ZT—NF
2020 2019
ARKFT AR
RMB’000 RMB’000
R #e Age
0Z45XK 0 to 45 days 38,877 46,797
46 260K 46 to 60 days 12,039 6,460
61290K 61 to 90 days 10,264 1,829
91£180K 91 to 180 days 1,245 456
BB 180K Over 180 days 754 1,993
63,179 57,535
RRABIEHHEERENE SN RIEMHRER30-60Kk-ZEE® The credit terms for trade payables due to suppliers of
MEEE —E_TFEHH D HERMRIB RS H the Company generally range from 30 to 60 days. Slight
o adjustments were made to the payment terms of certain
suppliers in 2020 in view of the cash flow control.
BREaE Contract liabilities

EHEABETEREBRPKBMBENRHER R
FHENRAFELSER T —NFREALEN BEBEMLFR
EHER AP ARYES,169,000T (ZE—AF - HARE
37,220,0007T) ©

AREAREREFEEE

AEER-_ZF_TF+ _A=+—RARAREEHHEHR
ERREXERNEETE -

Contract liabilities mainly include payments received from
customers for prepaid cards and coupons. In 2020, the balance
of prepaid cards and coupons decreased by approximately
RMB31,169,000 (2019: approximately RMB37,220,000) due
to the slight increase in the redemption of prepaid cards and
coupons as compared to 2019.

Future plans for material investments and capital assets

The Group did not have other plans for material investments
or capital assets as at 31 December 2020 and the date of this
report.
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AEEERTHHMEBBR ERRBEOMEE ERE
ERREHBOZFE TR RERRENRPESHR B
MEBRYRPERBEAFREGEEE IRRAEEE
ExBN UEREERSBR

BEAYBREE

AEBER2020FE TR EEMRERTRERY EH K
FE #BEA2HARRBHAE T _ZEFN\A_+—8"
TECEFAATNABRECTF+_ANBZAEN

BFHA—ZE_ZEFAA=THZBRUARRAR AN

7_7¢+H TZAZBRRRERELERDE Kb 25
BE_Z_ZTF+-_A=T-HLEE TESAKBRH
o

ERRE

BE_Z_ZF+_A=1TRHULFE EFZSRFHIE
Kixéi’“

IRE R

Zii‘illfkiﬁliﬁ‘%@%éﬂ% R Z BEXBFR
EREBARNBES SEREBRRA -EEL- KEIH
ERERRYBEE RBEELEERNBEREXR HEY
REVBEAIMESEBEREER NHERBRES K
BEZENRERESEE ERRSBENLY 2ERESFS
REBMEENTR BERRAGRBE(MTR)RENEE

PR o

FINANCIAL AND TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its financial and treasury policies.
Considering the year-on-year decline in cash positions, in order
to maintain sound liquidity, we have established long-term
relationships with financial institutions to secure credit facilities
and ensure the integrity of the Group’s assets so as to meet
financing guarantee requirements.

Material acquisitions and disposals

The Group disposed of a property located at Chao Ku Street,
Qinhuai District, Nanjing in 2020. For details, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 21 August 2020,
29 September 2020 and 8 December 2020, the circular of
the Group dated 30 September 2020 and the poll results
announcement of the Company dated 23 October 2020.
Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any material
acquisition or disposal for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Significant investment

The Board did not have any resolutions relating to significant
external investment for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Dividend policy

As the Group recorded operating loss in recent years,
and considering the competition risk of the industry, the
management will take the principle of remaining funds as
its dividend policy. Firstly, the Group with aim to improve
the future financial structure, replenish working capital and
develop industry chain. After the establishment of sound
financial system and the achievement of business development
opportunity, the management will determine the appropriate
amount in aggregation for dividends distribution and propose
the proportion of dividends distribution if idle capital exists,
and submit the dividend distribution plan to the Board. The
dividends will be distributed to all shareholders after the
approval in general meeting, if required.

ZTZTFFWR Annual Report 2020 FRIASTEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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REMERHEEIR

HE-Z - ZF+_-_A=+—H RIIMREHBEHARE
638470007E BEE_ZT-NF+_A=+T—RHHARK
74,931,0007T * Bt 49 A FR#11,084,0007C 8 #714.8% » R &
ACERBETHMARS FEBRAREEHELENRS
REE o

BHE_Z_ZTF+_RA=1+—HARBLLEXRL255% @R
BE_Z-NAFT+A=1+T—HENRBLERN22.4% °

=R

EFXaFER

BE_T_ZFR-_FT-NAF+ZA=1+—R FKEEA
ZFEJE\—.—(TZZ?'%’EE%MWéE#)D)DJJZ']1059%&Z’7
89.5% EAABERLANTFERAR-T-_ZFRITMERK
1B hne

RITERK

BE-_Z-_ZF+_A=1+—H xEEHNBRITEROA
Eﬁ%mo,ooo,oooﬁ (ZZE—NF: HH AR¥35,950,0007T) -
FEA—MEMERBENKE-
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Bank and cash balances decreased by approximately
RMB11,084,000 or approximately 14.8% from approximately
RMB74,931,000 as at 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB63,847,000 as at 31 December 2020, which was due to
the net cash used in operations and financing activities, which
outweighed the net cash from investing activities.

The current ratio as at 31 December 2020 was approximately
25.5%, which was higher than approximately 22.4% as at
31 December 2019.

LIABILITIES

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group's gearing
ratio, calculated by dividing total liabilities by total assets, was
approximately 105.9% and approximately 89.5%, respectively.
The increase in the gearing ratio is mainly due to the increase
in bank borrowings in 2020.

Bank borrowings

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bank borrowings
of approximately RMB100,000,000 (2019: approximately
RMB35,950,000) at an interest rate adopted for general
lending in the financial sector.
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BE-_ZT-_ZF+_A=+—H A£ENERTEHEE
% A R#100,000,00070 ( —ZF — L4 : 4 A R #43,740,000
TT)  BEEREEA -

&%
HE-_Z-ZF+-RA=+—B F~EERBITEMES-

FREE
HE-_Z-_ZF+-_RA=+—HB FAEEEERINEE-

BARRE

HE-_ZTZ-_TF+_A=+—8 ABUWEDE HEIZ
B2 BB REBENE AEEY A ARE10,765,000T (=
T—hE: ARK11,552,0007T) °

EEEM

H= ZEFF+ A=+ R ASECHEBAEEF
&? U}\Eﬁ%1465700075(_ —NF-EINREMER
HERERE O ARE120,838,0007T (— T —HE: HYARE
20,114,0007T) K ¥1 2 - BB R i B 1E BIRITIE BN HELR

EXREE

HEZZT-_ZEF+-_A=+—H ZEEETHRBEZROA
R 100,000,000t ( =ZZF — 14 : ©9 A R #35,950,0007T) -
HEBBHARMYSLE628,000 (ZE—NLF HARM
125,204,0007T ) © # 2 42 %8 /3 &5 4 49 A R %635,912,00077T
M-_ZT—NEHARETL459,000 BE-_T-_TF+ =
A=1+—H ARRQRZEXREHEETE1,010,188,0000% TR E
{B0.00001B T2 EmAR ([Rf]) o

Banking facilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had banking facilities
of approximately RMB100,000,000 (2019: approximately
RMB43,740,000), which was fully utilised.

Debentures

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had not issued any
debentures.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2020, capital commitments contracted
but not yet provided for in relation to the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately
RMB10,765,000 (2019: RMB11,552,000).

Pledged assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's investment properties
and property, plant and equipment with an aggregate net
carrying amount of approximately RMB14,657,000 (2019:Nil)
and approximately RMB120,838,000 (2019:approximately
RMB20,114,000) were pledged to secure bank borrowings.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had secured bank
borrowings of approximately RMB100,000,000 (2019:
approximately RMB35,950,000) and lease liabilities of
approximately RMB84,628,000 (2019: approximately
RMB125,204,000). Total equity amounted to a deficit of
approximately RMB35,912,000 compared to approximately
RMB74,459,000 of 2019. As at 31 December 2020, the capital
structure of the Company comprised 1,010,188,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.00001 each (the “Shares”).
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REBFTBUARBETERRS B EMGF R ZH IR
EARK - BINE S INZ AEINA R R R 17 A B IMNRTT -
EEERAASBLEENEBR CEXRFERRIYTEK-
At #E-—Z-FTE+_-_A=+—HI AEEIEFE
FRAELRT AR -

Foreign exchange and interest rate exposure

As the Group conducts business transactions principally in
Renminbi, interest rate fluctuation in places where capital
was deposited was not high, and our offshore capital was
mainly deposited in foreign banks as offshore Renminbi,
the management considered the exchange rate and interest
rate risk at the Group’s operational level not significant.
Accordingly, the Group had not used any financial instruments
for hedging purposes as at 31 December 2020.

BEAXRX e E Capital Expenditures Plan
REERZZT_EFEEARAITHNT : Capital expenditures of the Group in 2020 were as follows:
EHE ARB T
Item RMB’000
HE R R BE IRREREE 5,626
Development of sales channels Purchases, new fitting-out and repairs
EERE 2,598
Operation equipment
NEF 8,224
Subtotal
EEREIEOR H = 16,664
Production capacity expansion Plant
HFERE 1,314
Production equipment
et 17,978
Subtotal
“EYEBEARTH BB -
Capital expenditure for back office administration IT software
EARZ KA 26,202

Total capital expenditures

R-E_RENHEARFAREAHERERBPEINE -
NERRBREIBEERATH MERBREATHEE
EANIERELIEZRANBERREERNE -

Capital expenditures arising from sales network development
in 2020, included those for the exterior appearance, interior
decoration and equipment installation or maintenance of
existing stores; and the capital expenditure arising from
production capacity expansion was mainly attributed to the
investment in plant construction in the Jiangning area and
acquisition of production facilities for the plant.
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RARIFERFERRBRE  AEBANERARICEER
BRESEREASTIEE L R D AN BRI - 5B 8
R BREAREE - EBETRIEI—AZY - M A8
EXERER EoREIAELERR RESTAEER
MR ENG-

NHERREERETE AEERK LB UEALBENF
AR EHE HERIEHTVREL KU EBOHEREE
BUSAFRR —Z_ZFHANVESHEBEBAERSR
ARER IHEEBERRAXHAISAEAR REEE
AFI - RS o

ARBEE([EE]) SREREKE REMES &
BERTIREBEFSENER MEEER—RTISEREE &
DEFERENEREEEB - BEIRBEEHE WEBE
ZEFI R AR ZE R TR RFRES - MBI EALRE
REBEHEAEERARES SREREKE REME
B ARIRENS -

HUMAN RESOURCES

In 2020, the Group shut down part of its loss-making stores,
and optimized and downsized its workforce accordingly.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 2,604 employees
(31 December 2019: 3,306) in total, mainly consisting of
administrative personnel, research and development personnel
as well as sales staff in retail stores.

In view of the on-going downsizing in recent years, the Group
focused on enhancing labour relations and legal consultation
in human resources management. While reducing manpower,
the Group also took into account of harmonious relations and
regulatory compliance so as to reduce internal impacts. In-
service employees were trained for multiple functions, enabling
them to replace and provide support for each other even in
different positions. Through such measures, the Group aimed
to achieve a reasonable operating scale, protect the legitimate
rights and interests of employees and maintain harmonious
labour relations.

In order to improve future performance, the Group strategically
needs to try new business forms such as online sales and OEM
of bakery products that were different from those in the past.
In anticipation of immediate effect from the promotion of new
businesses, the Group targeted to recruit related high-level
business personnel in 2020, and will continue to seek suitable
candidates from its peers in near term, so as to inject new
blood into the Group, remove its disadvantages, and bring
vitality to the Group.

The remuneration policy for the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”), senior management members and
other employees is determined based on their experiences,
responsibilities and general market conditions. Certain
members of the Board hold their offices without remuneration.
In addition to fixed salaries, the employees may be granted
allowances and year-end bonuses subject to departmental and
personal performance appraisal. Any discretionary bonus and
other merit payments are linked to the performance of the
Group and the individual performance of the Directors, senior
management members and other employees.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

Market Outlook

As a result of COVID-19, the industry size scaled down
as compared with the previous years. Nevertheless, the
management of the Group remains optimistic to the booming
trend of the bakery industry in the PRC, mainly due to the
following reasons, including: (i) the economy is expected to
maintain its continuous growth trend while the consumption
power will be consistently enhanced in the long run; (i) the
relatively low entry barrier and the increasing injection of
investment capital and manpower; and (iii) the enlarging
customer base that is expanding from first and second-tier
cities to third and fourth-tier cities.

Research and Development Prospects

In 2020, the research and development department of the
Group plans to focus on improving products and optimizing
the mass production technology, including (1) increasing
efforts to develop various new bread, cakes and desserts;
(2) improving the taste of the existing bread and cakes and
enhancing the softness of bread; and (3) adding a variety of
themed cakes to cater for various festivals.

Facing the fierce market competition, as an experienced and
established bakery business, we have risen to the challenges.
Going forward, we will make active efforts to transform our
business model, optimise and expand our sales channels,
establish interconnected online and offline and enhance the
“Christine” brand image.

In addition, the Group will strive to innovate diversified
business forms, promote intelligent management and integrate
resources of various parties, so as to capture the consumer
market in the wake of economic recovery and increase our
revenue in an all-round way.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After end of the financial year ended, save as disclosed in note
44 to the consolidated financial statements, there were no
significant events after the reporting period up to the date of
this report which has material impact on the Group.
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Hereinbelow are the biographical details of the directors and
senior management of the Company as at the date of the
publication of this annual report:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chun Bin Xu, aged 57, was appointed as chairman
on 22 May 2020 and re-designated from an independent
non-executive Director to an executive Director on 3 July 2020.
Mr. Xu is member of Strategy and Investment Committee,
member of Nomination Committee and member of
Remuneration Committee. He graduated from the Business
School of Nanjing University with an EMBA degree. Mr. Xu
has been working in the financial and investment departments
of the financial institutions for a long term and has extensive
experience in financial management and financial investments.
Mr. Xu joined Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
("ICBC") in 1983, and he had been appointed as the financial
director and an officer of Nanjing Sub-branch, vice president
of Eastern Branch, president of Xiaguan Branch, vice president
of Nanjing Branch and president of Yangzhou Branch of
ICBC Since 1994. Mr. Xu had been the president of Nanjing
Branch of Bank of Shanghai, the chairman of Jiangning District
Shangyin Village Bank and the general manager of Cash-
Center of the of Bank of Shanghai Head office since 2015.

Mr. Yong Ning Zhu, aged 52, graduated from Fudan
University of Shanghai with a master degree in international
finance, and is a senior economist. Mr. Zhu is chairman of
Strategy and Investment Committee, member of Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. He has nearly 30
years of extensive experience in financial sector and industrial
business operations. Since 1990, he had worked at the
international business department of China Construction
Bank in Jiangsu province, served successively as president of
a sub-branch of China Investment Bank Jiangsu Branch, and
president of Hanzhong Road sub-branch of China Everbright
Bank Nanjing Branch, and held directorship in several big
corporations. Mr. Zhu currently is an executive director of the
Company, and is also the chairman of the board of directors
of Jiangsu NandaSoft Technology Company Limited (stock
code: HK08045) and an executive director of IDT International
Limited (stock code: HK00167).

*  For identification purposes only
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Mr. Ming-Tien Lin, aged 64, executive Director of the Group.
Mr. Lin is a member of Strategy and Investment Committee.
In 1989, he founded Jonsa Technologies Co. Ltd.* ( AF &RH%
&1 AEBR A A]), primarily engaged in manufacturing satellite
antennae, and remains as the chairman to date. In 1993, he
founded and invested in Zhongwei Industry (Nanjing) Co.,
Ltd* (FREEZE (AR)BRAR]), primarily engaged in the
manufacture of wire telephones and telegraph equipment, and
remains as the chairman to date. In 1993, he co-founded the
Nanjing Taiwan Business Association* (FIR M A& ) and
served as the vice-chairman until 2010. Since then, he retired
from the association but preserves his title as a founder. From
2000 onwards, Mr. Lin developed Nanjing Gingko Lake* (&R
#RAILEE) and invested in Nanjing Gingko Lake Agriculture
and Tourism Company* (R IR A2 X REBR AR,
of which he serves as the chairman to date.

Mr. I-Sheng Chan, aged 68, executive Director of the Group.
Mr. Chan is a member of Strategy and Investment Committee.
He has served as a director of Taiwan Jerry Social Welfare
Development Foundation* (& &Rt e ERES
2 ) since October 1995. He has held the position of the
managing director of Nanjing Christine Foodstuff Co., Ltd.*
(ARRAHATRMHARLDA), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, since October 2007. Since October
2011, he has served as the honorary chairman of the Taiwan
Union Construction Development Foundation. He served as
the president of CHIEFI Group from March 1988 to August
1999. From January 1993 to August 1999, he served as the
chairman of Taiwan CHIEFI Construction Engineering Co.,
Ltd* (B2 BERITIERMNBIR AT . Besides, he served
as the chairman of Taiwan Union Construction Development
Foundation from February 1994 to October 2011.

Mr. Chien-Li Tseng, aged 64, executive Director of the Group.
He graduated from Lee-Ming Institute of Technology with a
degree in bakery (production of chocolate) in 1978. Mr. Tseng
established China Taiwan Yicheng Food Enterprise Ltd. (1 B
BESREBEEASRAF])In 1983 and Shanghai Yicheng
Food Company Ltd. (E8BKESER A A)in 1993,
where he has been serving as the chairman of the board. Both
companies specialize in the production of chocolate and its
products mainly for western-style pastry, bread and dessert.

ZZEZTFFHR Annual Report 2020  RFIAATEIBIZR AR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Dun-ching Hung, aged 74, non-executive Director of
the Group. Mr. Hung has over 29 years of experience in
the bakery and trade industries. Since 2008, Mr. Hung has
served as a director of Sino Century Universal Corporation,
the former controlling shareholder of the Company (On
19 October 2015, immediately following the completion of
the then restructuring, the shares of the Company held by
Sino Century Universal Corporation were distributed to its
then registered shareholders on a pro-rata basis, and Sino
Century Universal Corporation has ceased to be the controlling
shareholder but remains as a substantial shareholder of the
Company (as defined under the Listing Rules)). Since 1993,
Mr. Hung has served as the chairman of the board of directors
of Shanghai Guang Can Foodstuff Co., Ltd. Since 1987, Mr.
Hung has served as the chairman of the board of directors of
Taiwan Tong Can Trading Co., Ltd. Mr. Hung is familiar with
the management and operation of processing and trading of
raw-food materials enterprises.

Mr. Chi-Ming Chou, aged 69, non-executive Director of the
Group. Mr. Chou joined the Group in 1993. Mr. Chou has
more than 24 years of experience in the bakery industry in
the PRC. Mr. Chou is currently a director of two members
of the Group, namely Shanghai Christine Foodstuff Co., Ltd.
and Shanghai Ji Yuan De Foodstuff Co., Ltd.. Mr. Chou has
served as a director of Sino Century Universal Corporation, a
substantial shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) of
the Company since 2008. Mr. Chou has served as a director of
Ban Wu Food Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in Taiwan that
produces and sells bakery products only in Taiwan, since 1996,
and served as a director of Chao Bi Food Enterprise Co., Ltd.,
a company engaged in bakery business, from 2003 to 2006.
In addition, since 2011, Mr. Chou has served as a director
of Shanghai Jia Guo Packaging Co., Ltd., a company mainly
engaged in manufacture and sale of packaging materials in
Shanghai, and since 1997, he has served as a director of San
Jiu Xing Co., Ltd., a company mainly engaged in manufacture
and sale of packaging materials in Taiwan. Mr. Chou has
served as a management committee member of the Tainan
City Bakery Association since 2007.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Hang Sheng Ye, aged 68, independent non-executive
Director of the Group, member of Remuneration Committee
and Chairman of Nomination Committee, holder of PRC
Lawyer Qualification Certificate and a national first-grade
lawyer, graduated from East China University of Political
Science and Law with a bachelor’s degree in law in 1991.
He was awarded a number of honorary titles such as being
honored as one of “Shanghai’s First Top Ten Defense Lawyers
(EFmEREHEEFHERER) ", “Shanghai's Outstanding
Lawyer” and “National Outstanding Lawyer (& [
B £AD) “, “Advanced Individual of Shanghai’s Judicial
Administration System ( /8T RATTERZFALEB/A) "
and “Oriental Barrister of Shanghai (E/8TE =ZER A K
#2A0) ”. Mr. Ye started his career in the legal profession in
1985, and he served as deputy director of Shanghai No.3
Law Office* ( L/B8ME =2MEEFT) , member of the 10th
and 11th Shanghai Committee of China National Democratic
Construction Association, executive vice chairman of the
Legislative Affairs Subcommittee of Shanghai Committee of
China National Democratic Construction Association, chairman
of Lawyers’ Working Committee, member of the 11th and
12th Shanghai Jing’an District Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, director and
supervisor of the Shanghai Bar Association, and member of the
Shanghai Evaluation Committee of Senior Professional Titles
for Lawyers and Notaries. He is currently the head of Shanghai

Guangting Law Firm* ( L8 T BEEZMEHAT) .
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Dr. Yong Jun Tang, aged 43, independent non-executive
Director of the Group, chairman of audit committee and
member of nomination committee. He graduated from
Nanjing University with a PhD degree in accounting in 2007
and is an associate professor at the Business School of Hohai
University. Dr. Tang’s research interests and teaching areas
include advanced accounting and finance and internal control.
With profound theoretical knowledge, he has made a series
of research achievements in the fields of accounting and
financial management. He has published more than 20 papers
in Accounting Research (& &1478), Science of Science and
Management of S.&T. (Rl 2B R B {FEE), Public
Finance Research (BfE %) and other journals, including
8 CSSCI papers and 2 SSCI papers. In addition, he issued a
number of case reports which are included in the Case Bank
of the China Management Case-sharing Center (FF &1 2
Bl = OZEPIE) and the Case Bank of the China Case
Center for Professional Degrees Education ( F Bl 51 % B3 (i # &2
IR 0ZEFIE) , and headed and participated in a number
of research projects at national and provincial levels. In 2014,
Dr. Tang was a senior visiting scholar at Catholic University
of Leuven in Belgium. He also holds a Certificate of Chinese
Certified Public Accountant (CPA) and serves as a financial
adviser at each of CAS Nanjing Astronomical Instruments Co.,
Ltd.* (F R BER X E 25 AR 2 7)) and Nanjing Xiangling
Rebar Connecting Technology Co., Ltd.* (R 8 A5 i 5%
BRMBERRAT) .

Ms. Hong Xue, aged 55, independent non-executive Director
of the Group, chairman of Remuneration Committee, member
of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee. She obtained
an MBA degree from Nanjing University Business School in
2002. Ms. Xue has worked in the core departments and
leadership positions of the financial system for a long time and
has extensive experience in operation and management. She
was the president and party secretary of Zhenjiang Branch of
China Everbright Bank.

*  For identification purposes only
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Ms. Xiao Yan Xu, aged 42, independent non-executive
Director of the Group, member of audit committee,
remuneration committee and strategy and investment
committee. She graduated from Zhejiang University with a
major in business administration in 2001. Ms. Xu has more
than 20 years of experience in international luxury hotel
management. She had been a senior executive at hotel
management groups including InterContinental, Accor and
Jumeirah. She currently works as manager (deputy general
manager) of Jumeirah Nanjing Hotel, responsible for the daily
operation and management of the hotel.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Yuping Jiang, aged 50, was appointed as the Company’s
vice president of sales and management. She oversees the
Company's overall operations in Nanjing, including overall sales
management, corporate rules formulation and enforcement,
appointment of the senior management. Ms. Jiang has gained
15 years of experience in factory management, retail outlet
management and expansion. She joined the Group in 2002.
Ms. Jiang oversees the expansion of the Company’s Nanjing
retail network, from one retail outlet to the current 80 retail
outlets. Before joining the Group, Ms. Jiang served as the
manager and deputy general manager of Jiangsu Xinxi Hotel
from 1996 to 2002. Ms. Jiang has extensive experience in
finance and human resources management. In 2007, Ms. Jiang
was elected as a deputy to the People’s Congress of Baixia
District, Nanjing. Ms. Jiang received her Bachelor Degree in
food industry and science from Wuxi Institute of Light Industry
in 1994.

Ms. Liping Huang, aged 53, was appointed as the Company’s
vice president of sales and management. She is mainly
responsible for sales and management matters in Zhejiang,
Wuxi and Suzhou. She joined the Group in 2006. Ms. Huang
has approximately 16 years of experience in marketing
and procurement. Before joining the Group, she worked in
Shanghai Kangcheng Storage Co., Ltd. from 2001 to 2002
and in Shihu Storage (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. from 2004 to 2005.
Ms. Huang graduated from Fuzhou University in 1989.
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The Directors are pleased to present the Company's annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 11 March 2008. On
23 February 2012 (the “Listing Date"), the Shares successfully
commenced dealing on the Stock Exchange by initially offering
250,000,000 Shares at the offer price of HK$1.60 per Share.
The Company subsequently issued 10,188,000 additional
Shares pursuant to the exercise of the over-allotment option
granted by the Company in connection with the initial public
offering on the Listing Date.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's
principal activities during the year ended 31 December
2020. Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at
31 December 2020 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group's business and affairs during the
year is provided in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
section on pages 8 to 20 of this annual report. An analysis
of the Group's performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section as well as the Financial
Summary on page 192 of this annual report. Besides, the
financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group can be found in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements. No important event after the period affecting
the Group has occurred since the end of the financial year. In
addition, the composition of the Board and the summary of the
work of all our Board committees, discussions on the Group's
environmental policies and performance, relationships with
its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have a significant impact on the Group are
all contained in the “Corporate Governance Report” section
on pages 47 to 72 of this annual report. Our key relationship
with our Directors and employees can be found under “Human
Resources” paragraph on page 19 and “Directors and Senior
Management” section on pages 21 to 26 of this annual report.
The probable future business development of the Company is
discussed in the paragraph headed “Future Prospects” on page
20 of this annual report.
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RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, we continued
to face risks and uncertainties in the bakery industry due to
intense competition from competitors and other businesses. For
details, please refer to “Future Prospects — Market Outlook”
on page 20 of this annual report. We continued to adopt the
policy of closing down cost-ineffective stores recording frequent
losses, continual increases in expenses or at inferior locations.
The increase in labour costs and raw materials are also other
types of ongoing risks and uncertainties that our Group faces
in our operations. All these risks and uncertainties have led to
our continual loss and the implementation of our strategy of
closing down of loss-making stores. To cope with such risks and
uncertainties, we strive to utilise our resources more efficiently
and explore new opportunities. For details, please refer to
“Future Prospects — Research and Development Prospects” on
page 20 of this annual report. Moreover, food safety continues
to be the greatest industry risk of the bakery industry. The Group
adheres to its commitment to ensure food safety. In the coming
year, apart from the business plans mentioned in this annual
report, the Group will also adhere to its original commitment
with regard to environmental, social responsibilities and
corporate governance. Apart from our goal to make profits, we
also wish to contribute to the environment, welfare of society
and social justice.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
its financial position as at 31 December 2020 are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 81 to 87.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for 2020.

DIVIDEND POLICY

As the Group recorded operating loss in recent years,
and considering the competition risk of the industry, the
management will take the principle of remaining funds as
its dividend policy. Firstly, the Group with aim to improve
the future financial structure, replenish working capital and
develop industry chain. After the establishment of sound
financial system and the achievement of business development
opportunity, the management will determine the appropriate
amount in aggregation for dividends distribution and propose
the proportion of dividends distribution if idle capital exists,
and submit the dividend distribution plan to the Board. The
dividends will be distributed to all shareholders after the
approval in general meeting, if required.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY’S
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The net proceeds from the Company's issue of new shares
at the time of its listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 23 February
2012 (the “Listing Date”) and pursuant to the exercise
of the over-allotment option on 16 March 2012 amounted
to HK$356,800,000. Such net proceeds are intended to
be or have been applied in accordance with the proposed
applications as set out in the section headed “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company dated
10 February 2012 (the “Prospectus”). A summary of the use
of proceeds are set out below:
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BEERAL EIRRO BRAR FERERE FRRERAZ BHREE
Actual use of
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Planned use of during the
net proceeds period from
from the the Listing Intended
Percentage  Listing Date to Date to Net use of
Business objective as of total net 31 December 31 December proceeds the net Expected
RREBTAAEFAE stated in the Prospectus proceeds 20200 2020 unused proceeds timeline
BT BT BT BT
HKS HKS HKS HK$
HRFTEME Opening new retail outlets 41% 146,288,000 146,288,000 0 A NA N NA
ERER Expanding production capacity 39% 139,152,000 142,662,000 (3,510,000) A NA A NA
TERSEESHMARRL  Addition and improvement of
HRENER the information technology —T--FRK
systems and the R&D of The end of
new products 10% 35,680,000 26,670,000 9,010,000 5,500,000 2021
—REEES General working capital 10% 35,680,000 35,680,000 0 TEA NA i /A
@t Total 100% 356,800,000 351,300,000 5,500,000 5,500,000 TEANA
B 5 Note:
1. BB EIRATIREE (A5t ET TS RIEFRE (KR AR AR 1. As disclosed in the Prospectus, the estimated net proceeds from
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the listing, after deduction of the underwriting fees and expenses
paid by the Company in connection therewith, were approximately
HK$415.8 million. The actual net proceeds received by the Company
were approximately HK$356.8 million. The Company intends to
adjust the difference of approximately HK$59 million to each
business strategies in the same proportion as the original funds
applied as shown in the Prospectus.
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As at 31 December 2020, the balance of unutilised net
proceeds amounted to approximately HK$5,500,000 (2019:
HK$5,500,000) and the unutilised net proceeds are temporarily
placed as short-term deposits with licensed institutions in Hong
Kong.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years is set out on page 192 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS AND PLEDGED ASSETS

The Group retained a healthy financial position. As at
31 December 2020, the Group has obtained bank borrowings
amounting to RMB100,000,000 (2019: RMB35,950,000),
which carries an interest rate at 5.00% (2019: 5.34%) and are
secured by a charge over the Group's investment properties
and property, plant and equipment with aggregate net
carrying amount of approximately RMB14,657,000 (2019: Nil)
and approximately RMB120,838,000 (2019: approximately
RMB20,114,000) respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s Share capital during
the year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association (the “Articles”) or the laws
of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro rata basis to the existing
Shareholders of the Company.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 December 2020.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 84.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company's reserves available for distribution represent
the share premium, reserves and profit which in aggregate
amounted to approximately RMB230,235,000 as at
31 December 2020. Under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law
3 of 1961, consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions or dividends to Shareholders subject to the
provisions of the Company's memorandum and the Articles
and provided that immediately following the date on which
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business. In accordance with the Articles, dividends may be
declared and paid out of the profits of the Company, realised
or unrealised or from any reserve set aside from profits which
the Directors determine is no longer needed. With the sanction
of an ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared and
paid out of the share premium account of the Company.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s largest
supplier accounted for 8.79% of the Group's total purchases.
The Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 26.72% of the
Group's total purchases.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no single customer
accounted for over 10% of the Group's total sales.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors or any of
their associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors
of the Company, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group's five
largest suppliers.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group made
no charitable and other donations.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 and
up to the date of this annual report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chun Bin Xu (appointed as chairman on 22 May 2020 and
re-designated from an independent non-executive Director
to an executive Director on 3 July 2020)

Mr. Yong Ning Zhu

Mr. Ming Tien-Lin

Mr. I-Sheng Chan

Mr. Chien-Li Tseng

Ms. Jo-Hsien Chiang (ceased to be director on 30 June 2020)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chi-Ming Chou
Mr. Dun-ching Hung (ceased to be chairman on 22 May 2020)
Mr. Weiguang Shi (ceased to be director on 15 August 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hang Sheng Ye (appointed on 3 July 2020)
Dr. Yong Jun Tang (appointed on 3 July 2020)
Ms. Hong Xue (appointed on 3 July 2020)
Ms. Xiao Yan Xu (appointed on 3 July 2020)
Ms. Wanwen Su (ceased to be director on 30 June 2020)
Mr. Chen Zhou (ceased to be director on 13 March 2020)
Mr. Huai Jiang (appointed on 31 March 2020 and
ceased to be directoron 30 June 2020)
Ms. Ming Hua Chen (appointed on 31 March 2020
and ceased to be director on 30 June 2020)

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of
the view that all the independent non-executive Directors meet
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND
MEMBERS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 21 to 26 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company and was appointed for a specific term, none of
which is more than three years.

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and in accordance with the articles of
association of the Company. There is no service contract with
the Group which is not determinable by the Group within one
year without payment of compensation (other than normal
statutory compensation) in respect of any Director proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or in existence during the year and as
at 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contract of
significance to the business of the Group which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director
or an entity connected with a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during the year and as
at 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Save as disclosed herein, during the year ended 31 December
2020 and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors or their respective associates had engaged in or had
any interest in any business which competes or may compete
with the businesses of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which such Director shall or may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of his duty in his office.

None of the Directors shall be answerable for the acts, receipts,
neglects or defaults of the other or for joining in any receipts
for the sake of conformity, or for any bankers or other persons
with whom any moneys or effects belonging to the Company
shall or may be lodged or deposited for safe custody, or for
insufficiency or deficiency of any security upon which any
moneys of or belonging to the Company shall be placed out
on or invested, or for any other loss, misfortune or damage
which may happen in the execution of his office, or in relation
thereto; provided that this indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to such Director.

Each Shareholder agrees to waive any claim or right of action
he might have, whether individually or by or in the right of
the Company, against any Director on account of any action
taken by such Director, or the failure of such Director to take
any action in the performance of his duties with or for the
Company; provided that such waiver shall not extend to any
matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach
to such Director.
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Cayman Islands law does not limit the extent to which the
Articles may provide for indemnification of officers and
directors, except to the extent any such provision may be held
by the court to be contrary to public policy (e.g. for purporting
to provide indemnification against the consequences of
committing a crime).

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Group.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If
the shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of
any rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult
their professional advisers.

CHANGE IN DIRECTOR'’S INFORMATION

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company is not
aware of any information which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Board has the general power of determining the
Directors’ remuneration, subject to authorisation of the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting each year. The
remuneration of the executive Directors is subject to review
by the Remuneration Committee, and their remuneration is
determined with reference to the Directors’ qualifications,
experience, duties, responsibilities and performance and
results of the Group. As for the independent non-executive
Directors, remuneration is determined by the Board, upon
recommendation from the Remuneration Committee, and
which is determined with reference to, among others, the
Directors’ qualifications, experience, duties and responsibilities.
Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals are set out in note 14 and note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emolument
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Group had a total of 2,604 employees as at 31 December
2020, mainly consisting of administrative, research and
development, and sales staff. Total annual payroll amounted
to approximately RMB189,251,000. In addition to fixed
wages, our employees may be granted other allowances and a
year-end bonus subject to performance appraisal. Currently, the
Group carries out the store-closure plans and staff downsizing,
which results in job rotation, multi-skills training and legal
severance. Training and control of labour costs remain the key
focuses of our human resources work.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

LR N

EE BERTBABEE H6H #RZ4H"E ZERHEE =B ERTRABIL

Percentage of the

Name of Directors/ Number of Company'’s issued

chief executive Capacity/nature of interest ordinary Shares  Position share capital

RAKBERED SRt EE s 119,790,227 if & 11.86%
Mr. Yong Ning Zhu @ Interest in a controlled corporation Long

HBOERE? X EE R 68,571,303  if& 6.79%
Mr. Dun-Ching Hung @ Interest in a controlled corporation Long
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Notes:

(1) China Huaneng Foundation Construction Investment Limited is
wholly owned by Mr. Yong Ning Zhu. Pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO, Yong Ning Zhu is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
China Huaneng Foundation Construction Investment Limited.

(2) These Shares are held by Mr. Dun-Ching Hung, who is a
non-executive Director, through Sparkling Light Corporation, which is

wholly-owned by Mr. Dun-Ching Hung.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company had, as at 31 December 2020, any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Name of Shareholders
Sino Century Universal Corporation®®
Goyen Investments Ltd."

BHAZEEN

Lo Tien-An™

TERZLO

Ms. Jo-Hsien Chiang®

Add Fortune Ventures Limited @

Lucky Creation Group Limited?

IFRx+®

Ms. Hao Wang @

HRIERERERRERRARC

China Huaneng Foundation
Construction Investment Limited

RKEFEO

Mr. Yong Ning Zhu®

RELH(RI)AERRA®

Oriental Petroleum (Yangtze) Limited®

EREEBERLAY

Matheson Enterprises Limited®
B— kg

Mr. Yifeng Zhou®

FHELEE®

Mr. Mingxiang Wang*

Christine Princess Co. (PTC) Ltd.®

Sparkling Light Corporation®

BB K&
Mr. Dun-Ching Hung®
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ZHERIRRZBR (ARAEZTHHZEFITHRABRI) M

Bt/ BEME

Capacity/nature of intrest

EniAA

Beneficial owner

ZEEERER

Interest in a controlled corporation
SRR ERER

Interest in a controlled corporation
[ e

Interest of spouse

ExnlEA

Beneficial owner

R ERER

Intrest in a controlled corporation
=R

Intrest in a controlled corporation
ExnlEA

Beneficial owner

Rt AR RS

Intrest in a controlled corporation
EmiAA

Beneficial Owner
A S

Intrest in a controlled corporation
Rt AR RS

Intrest in a controlled corporation
ZEE g

Intrest in a controlled corporation
EREA

Trustee

EnlBA

Beneficial owner

ZEE g

Intrest in a controlled corporation

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF

SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2020, Shareholders (other than
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares

which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long Positions of Substantial Shareholders in the Shares

HERYE

Number of
ordinary shares

184,212,244
184,212,244
184,212,244
184,212,244
121,500,000
121,500,000
121,500,000

119,790,227

119,790,227
100,780,798
100,780,798
100,780,798
100,780,798
750,000,000

68,571,303

68,571,303
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Notes:

(1) Sino Century Universal Corporation is wholly owned by Mr. Tien-
An Lo through Goyen Investments Ltd. Mr. Tien-An Lo is deemed
to be interested in all the Shares held by Sino Century Universal
Corporation pursuant to the SFO. Ms. Jo-Hsien Chiang is Mr. Lo’s
spouse. Ms. Chiang was deemed to be interested in the Shares in
which Mr. Tien-An Lo was interested within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO.

(2) Add Fortune Ventures Limited is wholly owned by Ms. Hao Wang
through Lucky Creation Group Limited. Hao Wang is deemed to be
interested in all the Shares held by Add Fortune Ventures Limited
pursuant to the SFO.

(3) China Huaneng Foundation Construction Investment Limited is
wholly-owned by Mr. Yong Ning Zhu. Pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO, Mr. Yong Ning Zhu is deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by China Huaneng Foundation Construction Investment Limited.

(4) Oriental Petroleum (Yangtze) Limited is wholly owned by Matheson
Enterprises Limited. Matheson Enterprises Limited is owned by Yifeng
Zhou as to 35% and Mingxiang Wang as to 65%. Yifeng Zhou and
Mingxiang Wang are deemed to be interested in all the Shares held
by Oriental Petroleum (Yangtze) Limited pursuant to the SFO.

(5) Christine Princess Co. (PTC) Ltd. is a trust company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands, which holds its equity interest in the

Company on trust for the benefit of management employees.

6) These Shares are held by Mr. Dun-Ching Hung, who is a non-
executive Director, through Sparkling Light Corporation, which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Dun-Ching Hung.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the
Company had not been notified by any persons (other than
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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LATR B4

ARALR

Name of grantee

BRERHHE

Shares awarded

PRE-IPO SHARE AWARD AND PRE-IPO
SHARE OPTIONS

On 27 December 2011, Christine Princess, being a Shareholder,
adopted the Share Award Scheme and the Share Option
Scheme (collectively named as the “Schemes”). The Schemes
involve the transfer of existing Shares held by Christine Princess
in the Company to eligible participants under the Schemes. No
new Shares will be issued by the Company for the purposes of
the Schemes, nor will there be any grant of options over new
securities of the Company and accordingly, the Schemes do not
fall within the ambit of, and are not subject to, the regulations
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The Directors consider
the grant of the Share Award and the Share Options has an
impact on the financial statements since the date of grant
and the subsequent financial periods. Such impact is disclosed
in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report. A summary of the terms of the Schemes has
been set out in Appendix VI to the prospectus of the Company
dated 10 February 2012 under the section headed “D. OTHER
INFORMATION”. The Shares awarded under the Scheme are
subject to a lock-up period of three years commencing from
the date of award, and the Share Award Scheme was expired
in year 2015.

As of 31 December 2020, the following Shares had been
awarded under the Share Award Scheme:

RERRZFEREMABIL
Approximate percentage of
shareholding held upon the award

Number of

RFEFO

Xiuping Zhu @

RNE@

Qiuyi Yu @

Yuping Jiang

B 5 -

(1) KBEHLFTERZT-=ZF-A-+N\AERK YRFABEHTAE
EARERHTE

(2 AMBRIER-Z-—AFHEA T+ EER-
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4,125,000 0.41

1,125,000 0.11

1,125,000 0.11
Notes:

(1) Ms. Xiuping Zhu retired on 28 February 2013 and ceased to be the
chief executive officer of the Company on the same date.

(2) Ms. Qiuyi Yu resigned on 16 April 2015.
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As of 31 December 2020, all share option schemes had lapsed.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2020 were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company and
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors, or their respective spouse or children under 18 years
of age, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 43 of the
consolidated financial statements contained herein.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered
into certain related party transactions, each of which was fully
exempt continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to note 43 of the
consolidated financial statements herein..

The related party transactions as disclosed in note 43(b)
of the consolidated financial statements are in respect of
the remuneration of Directors of the Company. The related
party transactions in respect of the remuneration of key
management personnel (other than Directors) of the Company
did not fall under the definition of connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group did not enter into any connected transactions which
are not otherwise fully exempt from shareholders’ approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Directors consider that the Company has applied the
principles of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and complied
with the applicable code provisions during the year ended 31
December 2020 as set out in the CG Code, except for the
following deviations:

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
responsibility between the chairman and the chief executive
officer ("CEQ") should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The role of the chairman
has been assumed by Mr. Chun Bin Xu since 22 May 2020.

The Company has considered the issue of balance of power
of authority on the Board and believes the structure of the
Company, including strong independent elements in the Board,
delegation of authorities to the management, supervision by
the Board and Board committees, is sufficient to address the
potential issue on power concentration. All Directors, who
bring different experience and expertise to the Company, are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and that
adequate, complete and reliable information is received by the
Directors. Furthermore, decisions of the Board are made by
way of majority votes. The Board believes that this structure
is conducive to a more precise and prompt response to the
fast changing business environment and a more efficient
management and implementation of business process.
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The Board understands that the roles of chairman and CEO
shall be independent from each other to ensure balanced
distribution of power and authorization, without facing the
situation that power is concentrated in one person. Therefore,
the Group would proactively identify appropriate talent with
rich experience in dealing with relevant businesses of the
Group, and appoint him as soon as practicable to manage the
daily operation of the Group.

Pursuant to code provision A.5.1 of the CG Code, the
nomination committee of the Board shall be chaired by the
chairman of the Board or an independent non-executive
Director and comprises a majority of independent non-
executive Directors. During six months ended 30 June 2020,
the nomination committee of the Board has comprised only
Mr. Yong Ning Zhu, an executive Director, and was chaired
by Mr. Zhu who was not the chairman during the period.
As a result, the Nomination Committee was not chaired by
the chairman of the Board or an INED and the Nomination
Committee did not comprise a majority of INEDs. The deviation
from code provision A.5.1 of the CG Code has been rectified
on 3 July 2020.

Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules stipulates that the audit
committee must comprise a minimum of three members, at
least one of whom is an independent non-executive director
with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules and the audit committee must
be chaired by an independent non-executive director. The
composition of the audit committee was not in compliance
with rule 3.21 during the period between 1 January 2020
and 2 July 2020. The Company has failed to rectify the non-
compliances under rules 3.21 within three months as required
under rules 3.23 of the Listing Rules. Suitable candidates were
appointed as audit committee members to fill the vacancies on
3 July 2020.
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Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules also requires a remuneration
committee to be chaired by an independent non-executive
director and comprising a majority of independent non-
executive directors. The composition of the remuneration
committee was not in compliance with the aforesaid
requirements during the period between 1 January 2020
and 2 July 2020. The Company has failed to rectify the non-
compliances under rules 3.25 within three months as required
under 3.27 of the Listing Rules. Suitable candidates were
appointed as remuneration committee members to fill the
vacancies on 3 July 2020.

According to rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules, among others, an
issuer must appoint at least three independent non-executive
directors. The composition of independent non-executive
Directors was not in compliance with rule 3.10 during the
period between 13 March 2020 and 30 March 2020, and
the period between 30 June 2020 and 2 July 2020. Suitable
candidates were appointed as independent non-executive
Directors to fill the vacancies on 3 July 2020.

According to rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, an issuer must
appoint independent non-executive directors representing at
least one-third of the board. The composition of independent
non-executive Directors was not in compliance with rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules during 1 January 2020 and 30 March 2020,
and during 22 May 2020 and 2 July 2020. Suitable candidates
were appointed as independent non-executive Directors to fill
the vacancies on 3 July 2020.

Audit Committee and Review of Financial Statements

The Audit Committee has adopted written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and
paragraph C3 of the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board in providing an independent
view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process,
internal control and risk management system, to oversee the
audit process and to perform other duties and responsibilities
as assigned by the Board.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed the auditing, internal controls and financial reporting
matters, including review of the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 have been audited by the Company’s
external auditors, Mazars CPA Limited. For further details on
the responsibilities and duties of the Audit Committee, please
refer to “Corporate Governance Report — Audit Committee”
on pages 53 to 54 of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS' SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the required standard for
securities transactions by Directors. Specific enquiries have
been made to all the Directors, including the existing Directors
and the former Directors who had been Directors during the
year ended 31 December 2020, and all the Directors, including
the existing Directors and the former Directors who had been
Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020, have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2020.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this annual report.

CHANGE OF AUDITOR

RSM Hong Kong (“RSM”) was appointed as the auditor of
the Group (“Auditor”) to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of Deloitte and to hold office from 28 February
2020. At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
30 June 2020, the resolution proposed for the re-appointment
of RSM as Auditor was not approved. Mazars CPA Limited was
appointed as new Auditor and will be subject to re-election in
the forthcoming annual general meeting, For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 21 October
2020.
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2019 AUDIT MODIFICATIONS

The then auditor of the Company issued a disclaimer of
opinion (the “2019 Audit Modification(s)”) on the 2019
Annual Report in relation to: (1) material uncertainties relating
to going concern; and (2) opening balances and corresponding
figures. The 2019 Audit Modifications have been removed in
this 2020 annual report.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

The Company does not have any other disclosure obligations
under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board
Chun Bin Xu
Chairman

Shanghai, the PRC, 26 April 2021
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With an aim of creating an environment for the solid
sustainable growth of the Company and to enhance
Shareholders’ confidence and protect Shareholders’ interests,
the Board is committed to establishing an internally high
efficiency of corporate governance practices and procedures in
accordance with the Listing Rules and relevant applicable laws
and regulations.

The Company and the Board have adopted the code provisions
of the CG Code. During the year ended 31 December 2020,
save as disclosed in the section headed “Report of the
the Board believes that
the Company has fully complied with the CG Code.

MODEL CODE ON SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

Directors — Corporate Governance”,

The Company has adopted the Model Code. Having made
specific enquiries to all the Directors, all the Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2020.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Composition of the Board

During the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date
of publication of this annual report, the Board comprises the
following members:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chun Bin Xu (appointed as chairman on 22 May 2020 and
re-designated from an independent non-executive Director
to an executive Director on 3 July 2020)

Mr. Yong Ning Zhu

Mr. Ming Tien-Lin

Mr. I-Sheng Chan

Mr. Chien-Li Tseng

Ms. Jo-Hsien Chiang (ceased to be director on 30 June 2020)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Dun-ching Hung (ceased to be chairman on 22 May 2020)
Mr. Chi-Ming Chou
Mr. Weiguang Shi (ceased to be director on 15 August 2020)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hang Sheng Ye (appointed on 3 July 2020)
Dr. Yong Jun Tang (appointed on 3 July 2020)
Ms. Hong Xue (appointed on 3 July 2020)
Ms. Xiao Yan Xu (appointed on 3 July 2020)
Ms. Wanwen Su (ceased to be director on 30 June 2020)
Mr. Chen Zhou (ceased to be director on 13 March 2020)
Mr. Huai Jiang (appointed on 31 March 2020 and
retired on 30 June 2020)
Ms. Ming Hua Chen (appointed on 31 March 2020 and
ceased to be director on 30 June 2020)

The biographical details of the Directors and senior
management as at the publication of this annual report are set
out on pages 21 to 26 of this annual report. The composition
of the Board is well balanced which ensures that the unique
expertise and experience of each Director are pooled together
to meet the business needs of the Group and for the purposes
of making independent well-balanced judgments. Each
Director has the relevant professional and extensive corporate
and strategic planning experience, and thus will contribute well
to the business success of the Group.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective
corporate governance framework. Their participations provide
adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests of
the Group and its Shareholders, including the review of the
continuing connected transactions described above in this
annual report. One of the independent non-executive Directors
has the professional qualification of accounting. The Board
confirms that the Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation
letter of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. On this basis, the Company considers all such Directors
to be independent.

Term of Non-executive Directors

Each of the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) has entered into service agreements
with the Company for a specific term of three years and are
required to offer themselves for re-election at the first annual
general meeting following their appointment. Pursuant to the
Articles, one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation at the annual general meeting at least once every
three years. Retiring Directors are eligible for re-election at the
annual general meeting at which he or she retires.

Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business
and affairs of the Company. The primary duty of the Board
is to ensure the ongoing operation of the Company and
to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the
Shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests
of other stakeholders. The Board delegates the authority
and responsibility of daily operations, business strategies
and day-to-day management to the CEO and the senior
management.

Delegation by the Board

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee, Strategy
and Investment Committee, Corporate Governance Committee
and the senior management.
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Management Function

The division of responsibility between the Board and
management is determined by the memorandum and Articles
of the Company. The authority of making daily decisions has
been delegated by the Board to the management.

Chairman and CEO

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman and CEO should be served by different individuals
to achieve a balance of authority and power.

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
responsibility between the chairman and the chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Following the resignation of Mr. Yu Lin
as the CEO on 29 July 2019, the Company did not have CEO
until 31 December 2020 as no suitable candidate has been
identified while the Board considered that the work of the CEO
could be shared among the members of the Board.

However, the Board understands that the independence of
the roles of chairman and CEO from each other could help
ensure balanced distribution of power and authorization,
without facing the situation that power is concentrated in one
person. Therefore, the Company would continue to identify
appropriate talent with rich experience in dealing with relevant
businesses of the Company, and appoint him as soon as
practicable to manage the daily operation of the Group.

The Company has considered the issue of balance of power
of authority on the Board and believes the structure of the
Company, including strong independent elements in the Board,
delegation of authorities to the management, supervision by
the Board and Board committees, is sufficient to address the
potential issue on power concentration. All Directors, who
bring different experience and expertise to the Company, are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and that
adequate, complete and reliable information is received by the
Directors. Furthermore, decisions of the Board are made by
way of majority votes. The Board believes that this structure
is conducive to a more precise and prompt response to the
fast changing business environment and a more efficient
management and implementation of business process.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the Directors, the executive Directors, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a specific term
of three years and is subject to retirement by rotation at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. The
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election under the
Articles. Under the Articles, any Director appointed by the
Board, either to fill a casual vacancy in the Board or as an
addition to the existing Board, shall hold office only until the
next annual general meeting of the Company and shall be
eligible for re-election.

Shareholders may, at any general meeting convened and held
in accordance with the Company’s Articles, remove a Director
at any time before the expiration of his/her period of office
notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Company’s
Articles or in any agreement between the Company and such
Director.

Continuous development of Directors and senior
management of the Company

During the year, each of the Directors has complied with code
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code. The Company has arranged
the company secretary to provide reading materials for all the
Directors in 2020 on, among others, corporate governance and
changes to laws and regulations for their reference and study.
Directors are requested to provide their training records to the
Legal Department.

Directors’ and Senior Officers’ Liability Insurance and
Indemnity

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
to indemnify the Directors and senior officers for their
liabilities arising out of corporate activities. For the year ended
31 December 2020, no claim has been made against the
Directors and senior officers.

Board Meetings and Board Practices

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly and four times in one
year. A notice of meeting shall be given to all Directors at least
14 days prior to the date of the meeting to enable all Directors
to attend the meetings. The agenda of the meeting shall be
determined after consulting each Director so that each Director
is given the opportunity to include his/her proposals into the
agenda.
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BEEEREE T _ZEFT_A=+—RLEFEMETH The attendance of each Director at all the Board meetings and

EFeeRARERRGNEELENT general meetings during the year ended 31 December 2020 is
as follows:
HE BT HE BT
EESRRNE BEXERE
Number of Number of

Board meetings general meetings
attended/held attended/held

BITES Executive Directors
BEEWEE (RZF =2 f?—tﬁﬁ + = A Mr. Chun Bin Xu (appointed as chairman on 8/8 3/3
BZEFRBLTERR-_F-_FFLHA= 22 May 2020 and re-designated from an
A B FHTEERTABTTEE) independent non-executive Director to
an executive Director on 3 July 2020)

RKELA Mr. Yong Ning Zhu 6/8 3/3

MRERH S A Mr. Ming Tien-Lin 5/8 13

EmAfE Mr. I-Sheng Chan 5/8 13

TIEWLZL (B=F=-FFXA=+H Ms. Jo-Hsien Chiang (ceased to be director on 4/8 213
ETHETEE) 30 June 2020)

BRI AE Mr. Chien-Li Tseng 6/8 13

FHITES Non-executive Directors

HBUB R E (§=—F —F4F A A=+ = H Mr. Dun-ching Hung (ceased to be chairman 8/8 3/3
ETBEETE) on 22 May 2020)

EREBARE Mr. Chi-Ming Chou 6/8 1/3

RREARE(A-ZF-FF/IA+FHH Mr. Weiguang Shi (ceased to be director on 2/8 0/3
HETHETESE) 15 August 2020)

BIYEHTES Independent Non-executive Directors

BN E (A=F=-FFNA=+H Ms. Wanwen Su (ceased to be director on 1/8 13
ETHELEE) 30 June 2020)

ARRE (F-FE-_FF=H+=H Mr. Chen Zhou (ceased to be director on 1/8 0/3
ET @ﬁé/fs%% ) 13 March 2020)

TTESRE (R=ZF=-FF=H=+—H Mr Huailiang (appointed on 31 March 2020 2/8 0/3
BEZERR - FE-_FFNA=+H and retired on 30 June 2020)
BF)

PREAZE 22 + (/7‘_%5_ T4 = H =+—H Ms. Ming Hua Chen (appointed on 31 March 2/8 0/3
EEZIRR -_FE_ZFFNA=+H 2020 and retired on 30 June 2020)
RE)

EMEgEE (RZE-ZFF+H=A Mr. Hang Sheng Ye (appointed on 3 July 2020) 4/8 13
EZF)

EBEEHLT (R=ZF-ZFFLA=H Dr. Yong Jun Tang (appointed on 3 July 2020) 4/8 13
EBZ(F)

BARt (R-ZFE_FF+H=H Ms. Hong Xue (appointed on 3 July 2020) 4/8 13
EZF)

BrEWLZ T (R-F-_FFLHA=H Ms. Xiao Yan Xu (appointed on 3 July 2020) 4/8 1/3
BZ(F)
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
a meeting with the independent non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors during the year ended
31 December 2020.

The Directors who had not attended the relevant general
meeting(s) have followed-up with the other Directors to
understand and discuss the subject matters.

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on
27 December 2011 with written terms of reference in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and paragraph
C3 of the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board in providing an independent
view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process,
internal control and risk management system, to oversee the
audit process and to perform other duties and responsibilities
as assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing,
internal control and financial reporting matters, including
the review of the interim consolidated financial statements
for the six months ended 30 June 2020 and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and considered that the Company
had complied with all relevant accounting standards and
requirements and made adequate disclosures.

During the year, the Audit Committee has held two meetings.
The attendance of each member at the Audit Committee
meetings is set out in the following table:

HEBITH
EREES
=RV
Number of Audit
Committee
meetings
attended/held

EBEEERLT (RZF-ZEFLA-HEZHA Dr. Yong Jun Tang (appointed as a member and 1/2
KEFEE) the chairman on 3 July 2020)

BUAT (RZFEZFFLA=HEZ(F) Ms. Hong Xue (appointed on 3 July 2020) 1/2

REMLZT (RZF-—FF+LA=HEZ(T) Ms. Xiao Yan Xu (appointed on 3 July 2020) 1/2

BNzt (RZFZFFANA=1FHEF) Ms. Wanwen Su (retired on 30 June 2020) 1/2

f%i%ﬁ/fiﬁi (RZF-ZFF+A=HEFHF) Mr. Chun Bin Xu (resigned on 3 July 2020) 1/2

*ﬁf%?%i;.‘é;p%%E’Jﬁi#%ﬂﬂi%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬁé
ERERENTHEFWEBEER-
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The independent non-executive Director who had not attended
the Audit Committee meetings have followed-up with the
other Audit Committee members to understand and discuss
the subject matters.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit
Committee had performed the following duties:

(1) reviewed with the management of the Company the
unaudited consolidated financial statements, the interim
results announcement and the interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2020 and the related accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group with
recommendations to the Board for approval;

(2)  reviewed the nature and scope of the audit for the year
ended 31 December 2020, the reporting obligations
and the work plan of the independent auditor of the
Company;

(3) reviewed and discussed the financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems of the
Group with the management of the Company to ensure
that the management of the Company has performed
its duty to have effective systems. The review covered
all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls, and the discussion with the
management of the Company regarding adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting function etc.; and

(4)  reviewed the compliance with accounting standards,
Listing Rules, legal and statutory requirements in relation
to financial reporting.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee (the
“"Remuneration Committee”) in compliance with Rule
3.25 of the Listing Rules on 27 December 2011 and adopted
written terms of reference pursuant to paragraph B1 of
the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee has adopted
the second model described in paragraph B.1.2(c) under
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (i.e. make recommendation
to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Director and senior management member). The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include but
without limitation: (i) making recommendations to the Board
on the policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing policies
on such remuneration; (ii) determining the terms of the
specific remuneration package of the Directors and senior
management; (iii) reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals resolved by the
Directors from time to time; and (iv) evaluating and making
recommendations on employee benefit arrangements.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has held two
meetings and performed the following main tasks:

(1)  making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

(2)  reviewing the emoluments of the executive Directors;
and

(3) reviewing the remuneration policy and structure
(including any performance-based remuneration) for all
Directors and senior management.
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The attendance of each member at the Remuneration
Committee meetings is set out in the following table:

HE BTN
FMEEs
BRERY™
Number of
Remuneration

Committee

meetings

attended/held

BAAT (RZFEZFFLA-HEZF5 Ms. Hong Xue (appointed as a member and 1/2
KEFEE) the chairman on 3 July 2020)

RAKEBEHLA Mr. Yong Ning Zhu 2/2

BREWEE (R=ZF-ZFF+LA=HEZ(T) Mr. Chun Bin Xu (appointed on 3 July 2020) 2/2

EMELEE (RZF-FF+LA=-HEZ(F) Mr. Hang Sheng Ye (appointed on 3 July 2020) 1/2

BEs Izt (RZF-_FEFLA=HEZF) Ms. Xiao Yan Xu (appointed on 3 July 2020) 12

BNzt (RZFZFFNA=1THEF) Ms. Wanwen Su (retired on 30 June 2020) 112

AHEFHEEENBIIFNTEST M
EREUNTRENwREREIEEE-

MEMBHEMEE

BREEE MW

BE_ZT_TF+_A=t-BUFE SHEEEKE (2
R—2ARRER) ZHHEBEZRIIMT

The independent non-executive Director who had not attended
the Remuneration Committee meetings has followed-up with
the other Remuneration Committee member to understand
and discuss the subject matters.

Remuneration of Senior Management

The remuneration of the members of the senior management,
including a person who has been a Director of the Company,
for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

AE

Number of

N E Remuneration bands individuals
751,000,000 7T KA HK$1,000,000 and under 5
75 #1,000,001 T2 % # 1,500,000 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 0
71,500,001 JT =% #2,000,000 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 0
782,000,001 JT =% #2,500,000 7T HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 0

FREEMERANESFHEE ZEZHBEANGEAY
TEIRKR 14 P FE5 ©

Further particulars regarding directors’ remuneration and the
five highest paid employees are set out in note 14 and note 15
to the consolidated financial statements.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) on 27 December 2011 with
written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
A5 of the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to review the Board composition and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
removal of Directors of the Company.

During the year, the Nomination Committee has held two
meetings and performed the following work:

(1) reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience)
of the Board and achievement of objectives pursuant
to the board diversity policy and effectiveness of the
board diversity policy and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors; and

(2)  considering the qualifications of the retiring Directors
standing for re-election at the annual general meeting.

ERERREZEGEZMNERNEREBERAT The attendance of each member at the Nomination Committee
meetings is set out in the following table:
HEBITH
REEES
BRRH
Number of
Nomination
Committee
meetings
attended/held
EMESRE (RZFE-ZEF+A=-HEZEA Ms. Hang Sheng Ye (appointed as a member and 1/2
HKEFEE) the chairman on 3 July 2020)
KKBEEE (B=F_FFLA=AE Mr. Yong Ning Zhu (ceased to be the chairman on 2/2
THEEFLE) 3 July 2020)
REWEE (RZEZFFLHA=HEZ(F) Mr. Chun Bin Xu (appointed on 3 July 2020) 2/2
FBEEEL (R-E-—FFLA=-HEZ(F) Dr. Yong Jun Tang (appointed on 3 July 2020) 1/2
BAAT (RZFE-FFELA=HAEZF) Ms. Hong Xue (appointed on 3 July 2020) 1/2
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diversity of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that
the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. All Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity
of the Board members. Selection of candidates will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, race, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

Measurable Objectives of Board Diversity Policy

In reviewing the composition of the Board, the Nomination
Committee would take into account all measurable objectives
for achieving diversity on the Board set out in the board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”), including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and industry and regional experience. The Nomination
Committee would discuss and agree on measurable objectives
for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.

Nomination Policy

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of
a Board with a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives. Given the importance of the Nomination
Committee’s role in ensuring the balance within the Board
and to give greater focus and transparency in relation to
the election of Directors, the Company has established the
Nomination Policy. This policy aims to set out the approach to
guide the Nomination Committee in relation to the selection,
appointment and re-appointment of the Directors, and to
ensure the Board has a balance of skills experience, knowledge
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements
of the Company’s business.
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Measurable Objectives of Nomination Policy

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider the
candidate’s character, qualifications, experience, independence
and other relevant criteria necessary to complement the
corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity before making
recommendation to the Board.

Before appointments are made by the Board, the Nomination
Committee will evaluate the skills, knowledge and experience
on the Board, and, in the light of this evaluation prepare
a description of the role and capabilities required for a
particular appointment. In identifying suitable candidates,
the Nomination Committee will (where applicable and
appropriate):

(1) use public advertisement or the services of external
consultants to facilitate the search;

(2)  consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds;
and

(3)  consider candidates on merit and against objective
criteria, taking into account the amount of time required
to be devoted to the position.

Based on the Nomination Committee’s review for the year
ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination Committee
considers that the above measurable objectives of the Board
Diversity Policy and Nomination Policy have been satisfactorily
implemented and that there is sufficient diversity in the
Board for the Company’s corporate governance and business
development needs. Details on the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a corporate governance committee
(the “Corporate Governance Committee”) on 27 December
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph D.3.1 of the CG Code. The primary duty of the
Corporate Governance Committee is to implement the
Company'’s internal control rules and advise and provide
guidance on matters relating to corporate governance. The
Corporate Governance Committee holds meetings monthly
and members of the Committee are required to report to
the Company Secretary, who reports to the Board during the
quarterly Board meetings. As at the date of this report, the
Corporate Governance Committee consists of Ms. Yan Yang,
the manager of the purchase department of the Company,
and Ms. Chuanhong Bian, the director of the group finance
department of the Company. Ms. Yang is the chairlady of the
Corporate Governance Committee. The Corporate Governance
Committee does not comprise any independent non-executive
Director, non-executive Director or executive Director.

Change of Member of Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for
performing the corporate governance duties. The Company
adopted code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code as the duties
of the Corporate Governance Committee in performing
its corporate governance functions. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the Corporate Governance Committee
has performed the following duties in respect of its corporate
governance functions:

(1) reviewing the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance and making recommendations to
the Board;

(2)  reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(3) reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(4)  reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and
Directors;
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reviewing the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report);

reviewing and monitoring the corporate governance
measures conducted by respective departments on a
monthly basis; and

Bimit (R _TFLARR)

e+
TEAZL

AHFEERERERES

BRBIAT MM meETE

B RRE AT (7)  supervising and monitoring the circumstances involving
the connected transactions of the Company and
monitoring the annual caps of the continuing connected
transactions.

The attendance of each member at the Corporate Governance
Committee meeting is set out in the following table:
HiEBITH
TEERERS
BRERY
Number of
Corporate
Governance
Committee
meetings
attended/held

Mr. Weilun Liao (resigned in July 2020) 4/6

Ms. Yan Yang 6/6

Ms. Chuanhong Bian 6/6

REEE The member who had not attended the Corporate Governance

Committee meetings have followed-up with the other
Corporate Governance Committee members to understand
and discuss the subject matters.
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STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has established a Strategy and Investment
Committee (the “Strategy and Investment Committee”)
on 22 March 2013 with written terms of reference. The
primary duties of the Strategy and Investment Committee
include, without limitation: (i) reporting to the Board on its
work, significant decisions, findings and recommendation
in connection with the potential investment or strategic
investment reviewed, analysed or evaluated; (ii) reminding
the Board of the disclosure requirements under the Listing
Rules in connection with any potential strategic investment
reviewed, analysed or evaluated; (iii) getting informed of the
backgrounds of the investments; (iv) ensuring the investments
are in compliance with local policies and regulations; (v)
executing its powers strictly within the authorities granted
by the Board through reviewing, analysing, evaluating and
approving investment opportunities; and (vi) timely reporting
to the Board if necessary.

As at the date of this report, the Strategy and Investment
Committee consists of five members, namely Mr. Chun Bin Xu,
Mr. Yong Ning Zhu, Mr. Ming-Tien Lin, Mr. I-Sheng Chan and
Ms. Xiao Yan Xu. Mr. Yong Ning Zhu is the chairman of the
Strategy and Investment Committee.

During the year, the Group had no material investments.
Accordingly, the Strategy and Investment Committee has not
held any meeting during the year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group in accordance with the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The statement of the Company’s
auditor as to its responsibility for the financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report of this annual
report. There are no material uncertainties relating to events
or circumstances which would significantly cast doubt over the
Company'’s ability to operate as a going concern.

Risk Management and Internal Control

Objectives and Goals

The Board provides reasonable assurance for the effective
operation of the Group’s risk management and internal
control system. The system aims to ensure the operation
and management of the Company complies with laws and
regulations and ensure the security of the Company’s asserts
and the truthfulness and completeness of the Company’s
financial reports and relevant information.

Monitoring framework

Board of Directors

- Supervising the establishment of internal control and its
sound and effective implementation;

- Clear enterprise development strategy and important
decision-making, and establishing enterprise’s acceptable
risk tolerance level; and

- Clarifying the responsibilities and rights of various special
committees and management, and providing support for
the Board’s decision-making.
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Audit Committee

- Supervising the formulation of internal audit system
of the Company and the implementation of work on
internal control evaluation;

- Reviewing the Company’s financial information and its
disclosure; and

- Fully grasping the scope of work of internal and external
auditors in the inspection of internal control and if
necessary, communicating with external auditor about
significant issues.

Management

- Properly designing, implementing and supervising risk
management and monitoring systems and ensuring that
they are effectively implemented;

- Responding promptly to and following up the findings
of internal or external auditors’ investigations on internal
control matters; and

- Assuring the Board of effectiveness of risk management
and monitoring system.

Internal Audit Department

- Supervising and inspecting the effectiveness of internal
control; and

- Reporting in accordance with the internal audit work
procedures of enterprise internal control deficiencies
found in supervision and inspection.

Monitoring Methods

Management has adopted a variety of methods to monitor
internal control environment:

(1)  Methods: The management actively communicates
with relevant staff, reviews deficiencies of the design
of internal control manual and related documents
and makes improvements through effective measures.
Reporting the scope of inspection of risk management
and internal control and results to Audit Committee for
assessment every year.
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(2) Internal control manual and operational guidelines:
Developing internal control manuals and related
systems to ensure the safety of assets in order to avoid
unauthorised use or disposal, ensuring compliance with
legal requirements, maintaining appropriate accounting
records to provide reliable financial information for
internal use or external disclosure.

(3) Information system and technology: The Company's
information system covers business level, financial level
and management level. The Company sets up stringent
rights of operation for its staff to avoid non-separation
of incompatible duties. The system rights of all staff have
been authorised.

(4)  Reporting and differences analysis: Executing financial
analysis and budget execution analysis on subsidiaries
and developing a timely understanding of operation
situation of each Company.

Risk Management

Risk management processes include: risk identification, risk
assessment, risk processing and risk monitoring and review.
The management of the Company is responsible for the
design, implementation and inspection of risk management
and internal control systems with the assistance of the Audit
Committee and the internal audit department and submit the
relevant periodic reports to the Board or the Audit Committee.

(1) Risk identification: The Board and management identify
internal and external risk factors that affect realization of
the Company's objectives.

(2)  Risk assessment: The Board and management determine
the method of managing risks based on the likelihood
and impact of risk factors.

(3)  Risk processing: The Board and management select risk
management strategies based on the Company's risk
tolerance and risk preference.
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(4)  Risk monitoring and review: In June each year, the
Company’s internal audit department examines the
risk management and internal control operation of the
Group and its subsidiaries covering the first half of the
year and puts forward the rectification suggestions for
the control defects found in the inspection process. At
the end of each year, the internal audit department will
check the operation of the risk management and internal
control of various companies covering the second half
of the year, while tracking the rectification of control
deficiencies of various companies covering the first half
of the year to ensure that various companies’ defects
have been rectified. It also reports overall comments to
the Audit Committee on risk management and internal
control. The Company's risk management level is
enhanced through sharing risk knowledge with different
business units. The above reviews have been performed
by the internal audit department during the year ended
31 December 2020.

Internal Control

The internal audit department of the Company semi-annually
inspects the internal control of such aspects as operation,
finance and compliance, reports the results of the review to
the management, and makes suggestions for improvement in
the internal control of the Company. The results of the internal
audit and rectification plan shall be reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board in a timely manner.

The Board was informed that the management has gradually
implemented a comprehensive internal monitoring system and
ensured the effective operation of the Company’s operating,
financial and compliance aspects.

(1) Financial Reporting Management:

- Appropriate monitoring measures have been
established to ensure a comprehensive, accurate
and timely record of accounting and management
information;

- Issuing financial statements to all Directors
on a monthly basis to show the Company’s
operating conditions, financial status and outlook
assessment; and
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3)

- External auditors auditing consolidated financial
statements every year to ensure consolidated
financial statements are prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles,
the Company's accounting policies and applicable
laws and regulations.

Inside Information Processing and Disclosure: The
Group regulates the handling and disclosure of inside
information in accordance with the Company’s
responsibility policy and related procedures to ensure
confidentiality prior to the appropriate disclosure
of relevant information and to disseminate relevant
information in an efficient and consistent manner.

The Board continuously assesses the likely impact of
any unexpected and significant event that may impact
the price of the Company’s Shares or their trading
volume, and decides whether the relevant information
is considered as inside information and needs to be
disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable pursuant
to Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and the
Inside Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO.
Executive Directors also have responsibility for approving
certain announcements and/or circulars to be issued by
the Company under powers delegated by the Board
from time to time.

Through measures such as the setting up of suggestion
box, whistle-blowing telephone and whistle-blowing
mailbox, we encourage employees to report any
misconduct which may arise from financial reporting,
internal control and other issues. Internal audit
department will undertake investigation and collect
relevant evidence, and will report to the Board if the

issues are confirmed.

Internal audit department semi-annually checks the
compliance of the Company with relevant laws and
regulations to ensure that the Company’s business
activities are in compliance with the laws and
regulations.
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The Board acknowledged that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the Board and the Audit Committee have
reviewed the Group's risk management and internal control
systems (through, among others, reviewing their processes as
well as confirming the adequacy of the resources and staff
qualifications and experiences of the Company's accounting,
internal audit, financial reporting, risk management and
internal control functions), as well as the responsibilities and
work of the internal audit department, and have not found any
major problem which may adversely affect the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group's system, the independence,
objectivity and effectiveness of the internal audit function.
The Board and the Audit Committee consider that the risk
management and internal control systems effective and
adequate for the Group’s operation.

For details of the significant risks faced by the Company, please
refer to “Future Prospects — Market Outlook” on page 20 of
this annual report and “Risks and Uncertainties” on page 28
of this annual report.

In addition, the independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the Company’s compliance records on the internal
control measures and the relevant laws and regulations
quarterly, and confirmed the Company’s compliance records
for the year ended 31 December 2020. Save as disclosed in
this annual report, during the year ended 31 December 2020,
no material breach of the relevant laws and regulations was
found.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE ("ESG"”) REPORT

For more information on the Group’s environmental protection
practices and performance, employee relations, and other
ESG-related risks, please refer to the Group’s “ESG Report
2020", which will be separately uploaded to the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange by the end of July 2021.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration payable to auditor of the
Company, Mazars CPA Limited, during the year is set out as
follows:

AT 4R 4 AR 5
BN ERZEA
Fees paid/
payable for
services

rendered
AREFT
RMB’000

ZEAR -
—FoTFEERERYK
IR BURTS

Bt Total

Audit service:

Audit services for
Non-audit service

2020 1,400

1,400
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND PRIMARY
CONTACT OF THE COMPANY

Mr. Chen Kun has been nominated by Messrs. Jimmie K.S.
Wong & Partners to act as the Company Secretary, who has
complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules. He has
been contacting with the Board directly in respect of company
secretarial matters. His primary contact person at the Company
is Ms. Chuanhong Bian, the chief financial officer of the
Company.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, during the
year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Chen has taken no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional trainings to update his
skills and knowledge.
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INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP AND
SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

The Company’s annual general meeting remains the principal
forum for dialogue with Shareholders. Shareholders are
encouraged to participate in the proceedings and ask questions
about the resolutions being proposed and the operations
of the Group. The Company’s Articles allows a Shareholder
entitled to attend and vote to appoint more than one proxy to
attend and vote on behalf of the Shareholder and also provides
that a proxy need not be a Shareholder of the Company.

Code provision E.1.3 of the CG Code stipulates that the issuer
should arrange for the notice to Shareholders to be sent in the
case of the annual general meeting at least 20 clear business
days before the meeting and in the case of all other general
meetings at least 10 clear business days before the meeting.

The Company’s external auditor is invited to attend the
Company's annual general meeting and will assist the Directors
in addressing queries from Shareholders relating to the conduct
of the audit and the preparation and content of the auditors’
report.

All resolutions put forward at Shareholder meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange after each Shareholder meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

In accordance with Article 58 of the Articles, any one or
more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

ZZEZTFFHR Annual Report 2020  RFIAATEIBIZR AR AT Christine International Holdings Limited



LREABE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RERRASLREBRNERF

MERBRBRE (DT~ FETR) LERE R FBRRN
IRERRE LIREFMARAE A BR2RBROREA
RERMAIESSE BERBRABRRFIAGERNE LIRE)
I o ESSIRMBR KRR FHEIIN LEX -

AREBRMCAREEZTNERT ARAR
o

AN EMARRE

RRBUR

ARRARERERENMTENAHERER B TRITERA
BMES RELZEREMETHEBRE 2 hB2EHER
ROEEME RAFBEKERBRIRTTAEER-

B EBE

K/‘*‘“EHETH‘”;%*JEE’JER BT BEREREERRAR

ARAREREENAER - AEERFET BERHER
MRLERRER LOBH BEOENG bELEMEE
RPHE-

‘I]]]D

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose
new resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman
Islands Companies Law (2012 Revision). However, Shareholders
who wish to propose resolutions may follow Article 58 of the
Articles for requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and
including a resolution at such meeting. The requirements and
procedures of Article 58 are set out above.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Environmental Policy

The Company is committed to the sustainable development
of the environment and the society. Apart from making
corresponding investment that complies with relevant national
laws and reaches statutory standards, we have also referred
to the practices of industry players in developed countries and
prepared for sustainable management and self-improvement.

Relationships with Stakeholders

The Company recognises that the employees, customers and
suppliers of the Company are crucial to the sustainability
journey of the Company. The Group expects employees,
customers and suppliers to be the companions along the way
to business growth who share benefits and experience in
brand growth.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the year, there
was no other material breach of or non-compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has
not made any changes to its Articles. The latest version of
the Articles is available on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. Shareholder may refer to the Articles for
details of their rights.

The Company maintains a website at www.christine.com.cn which
contains the Company's publicly disclosed financial information,
annual reports, news releases, announcements, the procedures
that Shareholders can use to propose a person for election as a
Director and corporate developments.

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or
requests to the Company as follows:

Address:  No. 33, Jinshajiang Road, Putuo District, Shanghai,
The People’s Republic of China

Fax: 86-021-62862255

Email: info@christine.com.cn

Enquiries will be dealt with in a timely and informative manner.
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Mazars CPA LiviTep
HERIR e a B EHIaRA

42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Tl b a8 SR IR RS 42 48
Tel FErfi: (852) 2909 5555

Fax {3 (852) 2810 0032

Email EE: info@mazars.hk
Website #41k: www.mazars.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHRISTINE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Christine International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
81 to 191, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group at
31 December 2020, and of its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO
GOING CONCERN

We draw attention to the “Going concern” section in note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements concerning the adoption
of the going concern basis on which the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared. The Group reported a loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
RMB110.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
at 31 December 2020, the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of approximately RMB455.3 million and
approximately RMB35.9 million, respectively. These conditions,
along with other matters as set forth in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. The directors of
the Company, having considered the measures being taken by
the Group, are of the opinion that the Group would be able
to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
“Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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BAREKRSBIE (F) KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
BRELZBE EENERNNEEERERSE
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

NE - BERRE CAREEREREE (MBIIRDEE] WHE
Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets (together the “Non-
current Assets”)

F2HRE W BHmEMTES 20 21K%23 ¢
Refer to notes 5, 20, 21 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

RZZBZZE+_A=+—H V¥ BERRBENKREE FZEREZEF (AhBeE) 8F:
HR/ARME277,514,0007C L BREENEREELNSAR  Our key audit procedures, among others, included:
148,791,000 R B B E M BREE A A AR %2,736,000

FofE BEE SIS E B E R 494.5% o a) MERELH THEFIHEUEETRETROES R
At 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of property, SF B A R ERT (5T
plant and equipment of approximately RMB277,514,000, a) inquiring the management, understanding and evaluating
right-of-use assets of approximately RMB148,791,000 and the control on their determination of impairment indications
intangible assets of approximately RMB2,736,000, respectively, and their method used for the impairment assessment of
which represented about 94.5% of the total non-current the Non-current Assets;

f th . = s
assets ot the Group b WRLREEURLHEE (DB HENTEE) RTHLR
ERNFRBELLEEE EREERERDEEFER UWL2ERBERRALEZHEBN TR FEHZ % BEN
EFR-BEEBERELEXGEMAGEIERDEENRE AR
AEE TRABEENEREFRSEEMBZEREEL b comparing cash flow projections to supporting
B ([REeEASMN])ZKESEET - BETGH IR evidence, such as approved budgets, and evaluating the
EEBEHETFEGNGE AERIE R D ER R R TEH reasonableness of these budgets with reference to the past
ERNMEEIR SRR - SR EGE AT & e A 4 performance and our knowledge of the business;

Y BEEEERERVYBTE-

In view of operating loss incurred during the recent years,
the management identified the existence of impairment
indications on the Non-current Assets. The management
engaged an independent professional valuer to assess the
value-in-use of the Non-current Assets, which is determined

O  HEARKRE (MRS ETERRED N LA EE R
ErrABRE ABERRR (BFEERE)NaE M

Q) performing a sensitivity analysis for the key assumptions,
such as projected revenue and evaluating the
reasonableness of key inputs and assumptions used by the

) management, including discount rate;
based on the recoverable amount of the respective cash

generating units (“CGUs”) to which the Non-current assets
relate. The impairment assessment involves the management’s
estimates in certain areas including the discount rate and
the underlying cash flow projection based on the future
market supply and demand conditions. Any changes in the
management'’s estimates may result in significant financial
impact to the Group.
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REELSER(E)

BRERSEE
Key Audit Matter

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

EENERNMEERREXSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

NE - BERRFE CAREEREVEE (RB[FRBEE]) WRENE (F)

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets (together the “Non-

current Assets”) (Continued)

HR BEEENERBDEEY E£EGSMBRENE
N NEEREHERBEEEITRENGER L RO A
BT EE RSN EENRERN AMEREZEE-
We have identified the impairment of the Non-current Assets
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the Group’s
Non-current Assets in the context of the Group's consolidated
financial statements, combined with the judgements
and estimates involved in the management’s impairment
assessment of the Non-current Assets.

WA M HREMT20ME BEEERAREEAEN
BRI B & e N AR TE S - B AR F E R B E R -
As set out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements,
the management concluded that the recoverable amount of
the CGU was higher than its carrying value and no impairment
provision was required for the current year.

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020

LB EXEMERMBNER e REEIIL:
evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of
the independent professional valuer;

THEBEVEEGEMN A EEReELABLAT KT S
BEMRANTERMANEZG ASE TFHAR
BEBRAREBXE:

understanding the independent professional valuer's
methodology adopted on the estimation of recoverable
amount of the relevant CGUs and the key inputs used, and
assessing whether they are reasonable and supportable;

BERTEFTENRETREREBHIERBDEERE
AR &

assessing the reasonableness of the management’s
impairment assessment of the Non-current Assets in
accordance with the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards; and

EZE BEREBHAENEHNEEEERR-
considering the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure in
respect of the impairment assessment.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the 2020 annual report of the Company but does
not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

RRIHSTEMIZERARAT Christine International Holdings Limited
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BREMRERGEMBERRAENEL

EEMAR RYUGRAMBRREBESTFEARE Eﬁfi
BRMERMERHERRANGEERE LHABEE
BEROGHMGE AREER HT (EARE)EL ﬁf
B2 MR REFEEM B A - BEEFM IR ARENATEIE
MEMATBESAEERAE

SERIFEFKINRE ETERJFLZREBERENE
THER EX - BEXBERBUAFER B EHE - BRI
A UARERFESERER 51 e IR A R TR H T I IE s E A AL 2R
W R B AR A B TS TRaR (2 A B KRB A TS 3R 3R P VR HH O AR DR TE -
AIE R R SRR R AR AIEE K

ERBEBEZERETEZNBIZS
RIFEXREREE - FET:

ELERERAE

o BRIRFEARKFRERMEBGAMBRRFE
BERERRA AR  REFRBITERIE T AR T
FRER UEBRBREREENERER FRES
BERMER - N GFRI RS RBR RE ERER
ERERL SORBRAE 2 £ B REe 3R K
MERHNERFEREAH R BB REEREHRTE
BOBASERRILWER RS

. TR EERZAABAANREE  URFHEENELERF
BB WIS ,EJKEW*B&*T MERMEERER -

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

3 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group's internal control.
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o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors of the
Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

3 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

RRIHSTEMIZERARAT Christine International Holdings Limited
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We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 April 2021

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is:

She Shing Pang

Practising Certificate Number: PO5510
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

—E-BH —T-hF
2020 2019
s AR¥FT AREFIT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
& Revenue 7 403,919 551,941
BHE KA Cost of sales (242,229) (308,615)
EF Gross profit 161,690 243,326
HAn A -~ Uz &2 B 18 Other income, gains and losses 8 47,305 4,953
SREEBBRETIETE Charge of loss allowances 9
on financial assets, net (706) (34,661)
HERDHRAX Selling and distribution expenses (266,315) (341,994)
THAX Administrative expenses (42,133) (74,308)
rEEE Loss from operations (100,159) (202,684)
BB KA Finance costs 11 (9,552) (20,792)
MRBLATE R Loss before tax (109,711) (223,476)
FrsfiFA X Income tax expenses 12 (660) (821)
AATEEAEEFEAFBIER  Loss and total comprehensive loss 13
THEBRES for the year attributable to owners
of the Company (110,371) (224,297)
BREE Loss per share 18
AR EE (ARBA) Basic and diluted (RMB cents) (10.9) (22.2)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-ZE=_ZTF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2020

—ECEF —E-NEF
+=—BA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BT AR T T AR For
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current assets
wEME Investment properties 19 15,786 =
L ER Y e Property, plant and equipment 20 277,514 362,174
EAEEE Right-of-use assets 21 148,791 207,518
GES Goodwill 22 = =
E\EEE Intangible assets 23 2,736 3,747
=& Deposits 8,128 9,811
BEFERBDEENIRS Deposits for purchases of
non-current assets 954 954
453,909 584,204
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 25 20,411 27,233
B 5 & E b EIFRTE Trade and other receivables 26 71,743 24,722
FEUS BEE N RIFRIA Amounts due from related companies 43 234 890
RITRIR B8R Bank and cash balances 27 63,847 74,931
RBEELLE Total current assets 156,235 127,776
EESH TOTAL ASSETS 610,144 711,980
EEREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
[N Share capital 28 8 8
G Reserves 30 (35,920) 74,451
RSB Total equity (35,912) 74,459
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R-ZE=_ZTF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2020

—E-BH —E-NEF
+=—BA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
BT AR T T ABRBTFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
=R LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
TEIEY A Deferred revenue 31 = 548
HEAE Lease liabilities 32 34,550 65,469
34,550 66,017
REBAE Current liabilities
PEIEU A Deferred revenue 31 80 =
SHEE Contract liabilities 34 317,366 348,535
RITIE Bank borrowings 35 100,000 35,950
HEBRE Lease liabilities 32 50,078 59,735
2 5 K H b FERT FRIE Trade and other payables 36 135,390 120,328
FERTEAE R RIFIA Amounts due to related companies 43 1,597 429
R E Dividend payable 4,708 4,708
BNEARIE B & Current tax liabilities 2,287 1,819
REBBEARE Total current liabilities 611,506 571,504
EzkEEHEE TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 610,144 711,980
REBEEFRE NET CURRENT LIABILITIES 455,271 443,728
FBEINENFAEMBRRER_ZE_—FMOMA=+XH The consolidated financial statements on pages 81 to 191 were

REFSHERBRENTIE YR TIEEREREE:

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

26 April 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Chun Bin Xu
EF

Director

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020
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Mr. Yong Ning Zhu
BF

Director
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RERBBER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

ARFEFAER
Attributable to owners of the Company

RE  ROEE  HHRE  RGRE AEEBEE  2HER ERAH

Statutory
Share Share Special Other surplus  Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses equity
ANEETT ANRETT ABEFT AREFT ARETT AREFT AEETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000

(P7E3000))  (FF5E30bG)) (BF3E300GH)  (FiT3E3060v))

(Note 30b(i))  (Note 30b(i))  (Note 30h(ii)) ~ (Note 30b(iv)
RZZE-N¥-A—-B At 1 January 2019 8 311,833 235,868 3,687 112,192 (364,832) 298,756

AEBBREMPEFEBAE  Lossand total comprehensive
loss for the year - - - - - (224,297) (224,297)
EEREEN Statutory reserve appropriation - - S S 131 (131) =
FRERZE Changes in equity for the year = = = = 131 (224,428) (224,297)
RZZE-NF+=-A=1+—H At 31 December 2019 8 311,833 235,868 3,687 112,323 (589,260) 74,459
RZZZTF—-F—H At 1 January 2020 8 311,833 235,868 3,687 112,323 (589,260) 74,459
TEBBRREZABEER Loss and total comprehensive

loss for the year - - - - - (110,371) (110,371)
EEREEN Statutory reserve appropriation - - = = 165 (165) S
ERERTE Changes in equity for the year - - - - 165 (110,536)  (110,371)
RZZ-FF+-A=1+—H At31 December 2020 8 311,833 235,868 3,687 112,488 (699,796) (35,912)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

—EZEF —T-hF
2020 2019
s AR¥FT AREFIT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
BEER OPERATING ACTIVITIES
R 35 A 5 18 Loss before tax (109,711) (223,476)
JAEE Adjustments for:
& R AR Finance costs 11 9,552 20,792
RSV @N Interest income 8 (818) (8,024)
WE BERBETE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 20 27,374 30,278
REMENE Depreciation of investment properties 19 878 =
FRAEEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 21 81,355 79,755
EREEas Release of lease liabilities 8 (3,101) (4,351)
M B ERE Amortisation of intangible assets 23 1,011 1,287
ZIEME WFE LRREER Loss on written off of property,
plant and equipment 8 1,315 29
HEWE  KER&HE (Gain) Loss on disposal of property,
(Yez) 1B plant and equipment 8 (34,797) 13
CREEBERETIRTE Charge of loss allowances
on financial assets, net 9 706 34,661
VI B KRR EEE Impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment 8 - 2,807
FREEERERE Impairment losses on right-of-use assets 8 = 4,076
R EERB BN /E Release of asset-related
government grants 8 (468) (468)
TR A IBHBOMESRSE  Income on COVID-19-related
WA rent concessions 8 (4,679) =
ZIEPREEE Written off of the right-of-use assets 21 2,603 4,101
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020
—EBEF —T-hF
2020 2019
s AR¥FT ARKFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
EEESRDAKEEY Operating cash flows
ReERE before movements in
working capital (28,780) (58,520)
LEESEH Changes in working capital:
FE Inventories 6,822 (739)
B 5 K H A FEWGIA Trade and other receivables (47,727) 13,146
FEUR B8 N R RUE Amounts due from related companies 656 (1,090)
Ee Deposits 1,997 (167)
BEFRITER Pledged bank deposits = 34,970
B 5 R HAD R IR Trade and other payables 15,062 17,370
=T Ok=| 1% Contract liabilities (31,169) (37,220)
FEF BAE R RIFRIA Amounts due to related companies 1,168 111
REFMARSE Cash used in operations (81,971) (32,139)
BEFATSHE Income taxes paid (192) (646)
RETBFANRSFE Net cash used in operating activities (82,163) (32,785)
REED INVESTING ACTIVITIES
2B Interest received 504 7,693

HEME  BE RREHEHE

Proceeds from disposal of property,

plant and equipment 79,160 174
REBEERDEENES Proceeds from refund of deposits
Fr5 5878 for purchase of non-current assets - 912
BEME BERKBE Purchases of property, plant and equipment (1,181) (26,202)
REFEFE (FTA)REFE Net cash from (used in)
investing activities 78,483 (17,423)
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RERERER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

—ECEF —E-NF
2020 2019
BT AR T T ARET T
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
MEES FINANCING ACTIVITIES
EBREEaE Repayment of lease liabilities (69,815) (92,452)
BESERITER Bank borrowings raised 100,000 79,690
EERITER Repayment of bank borrowings (35,950) (43,740)
BEFLE Interest paid (1,639) (491)
MEEB AR S FE Net cash used in financing activities (7,404) (56,993)
ReRkREEENRD FE NET DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (11,084) (107,201)
REMNRERRESEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 74,931 182,132
RERNRERRSEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR 63,847 74,931
ReERBESEEYERIW ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RITRIR @M Bank and cash balances 27 63,847 74,931
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A M BRRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

—REH

TR TEBRZERAR AR ([RAT] EREWNE
NAGEAEE ) RRASHSTMKIAERRE
RN G o H it EEE b4 A Cricket Square * Hutchins
Drive* P. O. Box 2681 Grand Cayman'KY1-1111 "
Cayman Islands o 2 = 2 & 2t Zhtb ik A FE AR LM
Bl b e [ & T BR335% (#8481 200062) ° AR
ARONEBBERIAERAF (B ER
LFre

ARBD—FHREZERAR - HWMBRARZEEER
AR A BRI E24

EREE

mEERE

FAEMBHRRDBETESHMNAG ([EBEFHEQ
B EMZEEVBHREER ([FRMBREER]
BEMBERZEEMEREER BEGTEMN (&
BEHEN]RRE) FEAREHFRURFTER
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Christine International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) was incorporated registered as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place of
business is No. 33 Jinshajiang Road, Putuo District,
Shanghai 200062, The People’s Republic of China. The
Company'’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
24 to the consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”), which collective term
includes all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi ("RMB") which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company. All amounts have been
rounded to the nearest thousand.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a basis consistent with the accounting
policies adopted in the 2019 consolidated financial
statements except for the adoption/early adoption of
the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group
and effective from the current year (except for any
early adoption) as set out in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted
by the Group is set out in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Going concern

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group in light
of the fact that the Group's current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by approximately RMB455.3 million
at 31 December 2020, the Group's total liabilities
exceeded its total assets by approximately RMB35.9
million as of that date, and that the Group incurred a
loss of approximately RMB110.4 million for the year
then ended. This is a material uncertainty related to
those conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the Group will have sufficient working capital to finance
its operations and to meet its financial obligations for at
least the next twelve months from the date of approval
of the consolidated financial statements, after taking
into consideration of the following:

(@  The banking facilities from the Group's bankers
for its working capital requirements for the next
twelve months will be available as and when
required, having regard to the following:

(i) negotiation for external financing, including
but not limited to, obtain further bank
facilities and various forms of capital fund
raising.

(i)  negotiation with the banks for the
restructure of repayment schedules of the
existing bank borrowings so as to extend
the repayment due date for one year and
extend the existing bank facilities for one
more year.

(i) during the year ended 31 December 2020,
the Group obtained a new bank borrowing
of RMB100,000,000 and subsequent to
31 December 2020 and up to the date
of approving the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had further obtained
a new bank borrowing of RMB30,000,000
with maturity date on 7 February 2022.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

(b) In December 2020, the Group completed the
disposed of land use right and building located in
Nanjing at a consideration of RMB80,000,000. Full
amount of consideration was received before the
completion. The Group is actively exploring the
opportunity of obtaining additional source of cash
inflows from sales of its owned properties; and

(0 The Group continues to implement operational
plans to control costs and generates sufficient
operating cash flows to meet its current and future
obligations. Relevant actions include collection of
outstanding receivables, utilisation of the capacity
of the production plants, and closure of loss-
making retail outlets. Subsequent to 31 December
2020 and up to the date of approving the
consolidated financial statements, the Group had
recovered other receivables of RMB60,000,000.

(d) China Huaneng Foundation Construction
Investment Limited, the substantial shareholder of
the Company and its controlling shareholder, has
committed and has proved its ability to provide
continuous financial support to meet its day to
day operations and its financial obligations as they
fall due.

Having regard to the cash flow projection of the
Group, which are prepared assuming that the above
measures are successful, and on the projected amount
of contract liabilities that expected to be fulfilled within
one year of approximately RMB138,495,000. the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that, in
the light of the measures taken to-date, together with
the expected results of the other measures in progress,
the Group will have sufficient funding resources to
satisfy its future working capital and other financing
requirements. The directors of the Company believe that
the aforementioned measures will be successful, based
on the continuous efforts by the management of the
Group.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

However, significant uncertainties exist as to whether
the management of the Group will be able to achieve
its plans and measures as described above. The Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern depends on the
generation of adequate financing and operating cash
flows through the successful fulfilment of the following
plans:

(@ negotiating with the banks successfully for
(i) obtaining additional bank facilities; and (ii)
extending the repayment due date of the existing
bank borrowings that might become overdue in
next twelve-month period for one year and extend
the existing bank facilities for one more year;

(b) obtaining the necessary approvals from the
shareholders if required for the execution and
completion of any possible transactions in relation
to the disposal of its owned properties and capital
fund raising activities; and

(©)  timely implementing operational plans to control
costs and generating sufficient operating cash
flows to meet its current and future obligations.
Relevant actions include collection of outstanding
receivables, utilisation of the capacity of the
production plants, and closure of loss-making
retail outlets.

Should the above measures not be able to implement
successfully, the Group may not have sufficient funds to
operate as a going concern, in which case adjustments
might have to be made to the carrying values of the
Company’s assets to their recoverable amounts, to
reclassify the non-current assets and non-current liabilities
as current assets and current liabilities, respectively and
to provide for any further liabilities which might arise.
The effects of these potential adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED
HKFRSs

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following
new/revised HKFRSs:

Amendments to Definition of Material
HKASs 1 and 8
Amendments to HKAS 39,

HKFRSs 7 and 9

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 1

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Amendments to HKASs 1 and 8: Definition of
Material

The amendments clarify the definition of material and
align the definition used across HKFRSs.

The adoption of the amendments does not have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRSs 7 and 9: Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 1

The amendments modify some specific hedge
accounting requirements to provide relief from potential
effects of the uncertainties caused by interest rate
benchmark reform (the market-wide reform of an
interest rate benchmark, including the replacement of an
interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark).
In addition, the amendments require companies to
provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by
these uncertainties.

The adoption of the amendments does not have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED
HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3: Definition of a Business

The amendments, among others, revise the definition
of a business and include new guidance to evaluate
whether an acquired process is substantive.

The adoption of the amendments does not have
any significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 16: COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions Beyond 30 June 2021

The amendments exempt lessees from having to
consider individual lease contracts to determine whether
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic are lease modifications and
allow lessees to account for such rent concessions as if
they were not lease modifications. It applies to COVID-
19-related rent concessions that reduce lease payments
due on or before 30 June 2022. The amendments do
not affect lessors.

These amendments shall be applied for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with earlier
application permitted. The Group has elected to early
adopt the amendments in the current year. In accordance
with the transition provisions therein, the amendments
have been applied retrospectively by the Group
recognising the cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained earnings (or other component of equity, as
appropriate) and therefore the comparative information
has not been restated.

The early adoption of the amendment has no impact
to the opening accumulated losses at 1 January 2020.
The Group recognised changes in leases payments
that resulted from rent concessions of approximately
RMB4,679,000 in the profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2020.

RRI##STEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited



ma
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEZ

3.

Bt %5 SRR Y R

ZZHF+=HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

RN R BRI R EER
(%)
ERMBBEEUZARED

RERTIERNGEPBHRRAY EESFHMHASE
ﬁEP‘ETEIJﬁAKEFr‘j*ixﬁ(Z%ﬁuT/%“ BRI BB
WEEA - AEE W BB P RANZELER

FARE G ERF395 -

BB SRS ZER

FA% - F73 - FO5

#1655 2 1E5]

EEGTEAFI6% Y BTERBRIIMNATERIE?
1837

BB ST ERFEITH TE HIH AR A2

EH

EBPEMEEDEGF HIELLS A2

ZAEET

BV RELD 2 F —NEE_T_TF
EL¢;: HEEEEN g
BEEGHEASE I BEIEARBNIERE?
1&5T

BB TSRS 2R RGP

F175R

BB RE AR BEEZEREBENRRE
FI0FEREBGETE BHECHRNEELE
BIIZE285% 2 1&7] goEBe

! KRB —F—A—HRZERBOFERRER

? KRB —F—A—HRZRABHFERRER
? RIB-=F— - BRZEMIGHFEHREER
4 £ EBFE

AREEERN RAKRBMERMNZ SN EERT
FEMHEREEATGH AR BN EE LM BEIRRE
RAEMEARTE -

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020

APPLICATION OF NEW/REVISED
HKFRSs (Continued)

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
the HKICPA has issued the
following new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective
for the current year, which the Group has not early

financial statements,

adopted.

Amendments to

HKAS 39, HKFRSs 4,

7,9 and 16

Amendments to
HKAS 16
Amendments to
HKAS 37
Amendments to
HKFRS 3
Annual Improvements
to HKFRSs
Amendments to
HKAS 1
HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2’

Proceeds before Intended Use?

Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?
2018-2020 Cycle?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?
Insurance Contracts®

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2021

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2022

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2023

& The effective date to be determined

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
adoption of these new/revised HKFRSs in future periods
will have any material impact on the results and financial
position of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies below
(e.g. certain financial instruments that are measured at
fair value).

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and all of its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are
entities over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.
activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only
if the holder has the practical ability to exercise that
right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest determined at the date when control is lost
and (i) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests at the date when control is lost. The
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are
accounted for on the same basis as would be required if
the holding company had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Any investment retained in the
former subsidiary and any amounts owed by or to the
former subsidiary are accounted for as a financial asset,
associate, joint venture or others as appropriate from the
date when control is lost.

In the Company’s statement of financial position
as set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at
cost less impairment losses. The carrying amount of
the investment is reduced to its recoverable amount on
an individual basis, if it is higher than the recoverable
amount. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

ZTZTFFWR Annual Report 2020 FRIASTEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited

97



98

ma

Bt %5 SRR Y R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEZ

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020

ZZHF+=HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

TESTHBER(E)

EBAaoREE

HREBE P RBNERQR AEBRBREES
FR-REBAHTERREBERAEEERNKERHZ
RAEBE FETRATIARMELAGBAREMRRK
AREFE - WBHEBER AR EBEKAEL REXR
HHRBER R -REBENBE AR Z A& EE
ke 9REREBRAHZ A AnEEHE-

BT s ;0 (8 2 4B T8 HH AN &2 [ R (5 BT B 2 =] AT 34 B
BERBBZARFEZZEIERE NEEEL

A#AEERABZ AR FEBHEZENKERT
ZEBARRABENERAEASBEEE 2B WE
gk o

RRRERE  BE-REKNARRHREBEE-
HREANANES EBAHAESHEEENEER
HHEENEHBRRENESREELEN ([REE
BN IR ELBVAERN -SENASARIES
BOHEMRRRASEARARE M &R BB &
BERp -BFEETHERERN HEFFHLAN
ERREBR AL ARER  FHEETRE 28
BEZReESAEN 7 RAEREARESEFELE
AUESEREREERAABERNEXNARE Z
BeE - ERENRER SRS HR T ERE -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the
assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred
and any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
the costs are incurred and the services are received.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair
values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the sum of the consideration transferred is recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is
attributed to the Group.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs") or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of value-in-use and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings
and held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
properties under construction as described below), are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised
in profit or loss during the period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as

follows:
HEMEERE FAHASK3F Leasehold Improvements Over the shorter of
(LEEHREALE) the lease term or 3 years
gF 2.25-4.5% Buildings 2.25-45%
AR A 9% Machinery and equipment 9%
B 18% Motor vehicles 18%
NN 18% Fixtures and office equipment 18%

REBEMRYRKEE TERFHRFELLE
TTiRs RIEHAE (EA) -

ERTIREEZBTRAEFTLREZEE M&RE LA
AR AR B E IR SRR - 3T B AR & A& 7 2 1 B 5

ot
Aal = °

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and equipment pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment losses.
Depreciation begins when the relevant assets are
available for use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are leasehold land and buildings
held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation and
include land held for undetermined future use, which is
regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Depreciation on leasehold land and buildings is
calculated using the straight-line method to write off the
cost less accumulated impairment losses of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives at the annual
rate of 2.25-4.5%.

When a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property or as a right-of-use asset becomes
an investment property following a change in its use, at
which time it is reclassified and subsequently accounted
for as an investment property.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets

G

=

Intangible assets acquired separately —
software

Software is stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated amortisation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives at an annual rate
of 10%.

(ii) Intangible assets acquired in business
combination - trademarks and sales network

Trademarks and sales network are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated amortisation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives at an annual rate
of 5%.

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from
the financial asset expire or (i) the Group transfers the
financial asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset,
or (b) it neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset but
it does not retain control of the financial asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised
at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Such trade receivables
are initially measured at their transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
(i) measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income; (iii) equity investment measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income; or (iv) measured
at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group's business model for managing
the financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics. Financial assets are not
reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless
the Group changes its business model for managing
them, in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first annual reporting
period following the change in the business model.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Classification and measurement (Continued)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated
at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from
impairment, derecognition or through the amortisation
process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include
deposits, trade and other receivables, amounts due from
related companies and bank and cash balances.

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when
the liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.

ZTZTFFWR Annual Report 2020 FRIASTEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited

103



104

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020

A M BRRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

TESTHBER(E)

TEMEE (&)

DEREE(E)

TRABVNHEEAABEER MERABIIFER
REEFABRIE AN EETEREBEHEERE
BRI R BB ©

AEENESRARBRANARE RITER HERE:
Bo5 REMENTOR  BNBEEQRKAREMNKS
AESRAE (RAAEBEFABRENSRA GRS
IR A £ BERER  RREBERNTOXRE K
AFE BRIFBRPELTER ERBERT  BHEK
ARG FR

BRABEMABRSNESRAGEEREEENGR
BE ROEEIFEERRAABEFABRRNS
REEREREAMBHRSEEINNELSHT
WEIHNIARENEREBEE ZFSRABEIA
EBEIEK ALEENERREREBRENIEERER
HEEERRAABEMABaNERABEAREBES
PhREEMmE2ERAZINZEERREBNIT DG
S BRFELBEE S SR E AR ST HE -0
Hip 2HRAZINEBERTSEBREERS-

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair
value plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried
at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities include contract
liabilities, bank borrowings, lease liabilities, trade and
other payables, amounts due to related companies
and dividend payable. All financial liabilities, except for
financial liabilities at FVPL, are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting would be insignificant, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities
held for trading, financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition at FVPL and financial liabilities that are
contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies. They are carried
at fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised
in profit or loss, except for the portion of fair value
changes of financial liabilities designated at FVPL that
are attributable to the credit risk of the liabilities which
is presented in other comprehensive income unless
such treatment would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. The amounts presented in
other comprehensive income shall not be subsequently
transferred to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)
A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i) incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term;

(i)  part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking on initial recognition;
or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective hedging
instrument.

Financial liabilities are designated at initial recognition at
FVPL only if:

(i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on
them on different bases;

(i) they are part of a group of financial liabilities or
financial assets and financial liabilities that are
managed and their performance evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy; or

(i) they contain one or more embedded derivatives,
in which case the entire hybrid contract may
be designated as a financial liability at FVPL,
except where the embedded derivatives do not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear
that separation of the embedded derivatives is
prohibited.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continued)

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract with a host
that is not an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host, and
the hybrid contract is not measured at FVPL.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group always recognises lifetime expected credit
losses (“ECL") for trade receivables. The ECL on these
financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
at the reporting date, including time value of money
where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the
credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking
information considered includes the future prospects
of the industries in which the Group’s debtors operate,
obtained from economic expert reports, financial
analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and
other similar organisations, as well as consideration of
various external sources of actual and forecast economic
information that relate to the Group’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to
have low credit risk if:

(i) the financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when the asset has external credit rating
of “investment grade” in accordance with the
globally understood definition or if an external rating
is not available, the asset has an internal rating of
“performing”. Performing means that the counterparty
has a strong financial position and there is no past due

amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that
receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by
the counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is
generally more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty,

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, including when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over two years past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised
in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As
for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the
reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a
financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL
in the previous reporting period, but determines at the
current reporting date that the conditions for lifetime
ECL are no longer met, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to 12-month ECL at
the current reporting date, except for assets for which
simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Revenue from the sales of bakery products is recognised
when control of the products has transferred, being
when the products are delivered to the customers.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to
the specific location. A receivable is recognised when the
goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage
of time is required before the payment is due.

The Group issues and sells coupons to the customers
which are non-refundable and are redeemed in
exchange for products of the Group within a fixed
future period. Customers may not always exercise all
their rights and those unexercised rights are recognised
as revenue in proportion to the pattern of rights excised
by the customers, taking into account of constrain in the
estimation of variable consideration.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
when the properties are let out and on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset. For credit impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost
(i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.

Bank interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, the contract is presented as
a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration,
or the Group has a right to an amount of consideration
that is unconditional, before the Group transfers a good
or service to the customer, the contract is presented as
a contract liability when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is the
Group's right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of
that consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net contract liability is
presented. Contract assets and contract liabilities of
unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

For the Group’s business, it is common for the Group
to receive from a customer the whole or some of the
contractual payments before the services are completed
or when the goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of
revenue recognition for such transactions). The Group
recognises a contract liability until it is recognised as
revenue. During that period, any significant financing
components, if applicable, will be included in the
contract liability and will be expensed as accrued unless
the interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation

(0]

(i)

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the
Company's presentation and functional currency.
The directors of the Company consider that
choosing RMB as the presentation currency best
suits the needs of the shareholders and investors.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains
and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values
are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

= Income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates for the period (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of monetary items that form part of the net
investment in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

RRI##STEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited



ma

Bt %5 SRR Y R

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEZ

ZZHF+=HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

TESTHBER(E)

35

FERBA R T # IR FE 2 BIEH 5 BR BN IR 42
FHOEREFE - MR BZUABERME BEEST
EABEERREERS ZE@EBI AR (WER) D8
ER-A2RFEDRATXEHBREFTEHEER
BEGEFT R IRARGETHEMTERTHE

HEFER  HEFE A REE R 2k 8RE
HRARAX FEMRETZRFENSELMER
EEBONMRNEEEENHERRSFAX -EFF
BB ERNRO AN R ELEAEERSDER
RAXNEFESERD -

FERMEERE (FEKRI)

AREREHREAMBAETRENIFEREE 2K
HE HEEME SEMRZEG T REEEN
REBHERLIBFAXZ AT E S ERERNEERET
HHEEYBRELABOBYNRMBEELNEERS
ZRERA-AAKECEREEMBZREELE
UEE-MALER RAKEeBREEMBRSE
ELBUEE - JRESBRABANEEXRSELS
fizERBEERAABERLERAME ZRSE R
%o

EREEREE ReEEEMZAFRERESRE
RE-REZRVEERREEREE ReELE
I (BtERE)NEERRATIR R -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods comprises raw
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of all production overhead expenditure, and where
appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period of the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Impairment of non-financial assets, other than
goodwill

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications of
impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is
written down as an expense through profit or loss to
its estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. If this is the case, recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of value-in-use and
the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual asset
or the cash-generating unit.

Value-in-use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset/
CGU whose impairment is being measured.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets, other than
goodwiill (Continued)

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against
the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the
other assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the
recoverable amount caused by changes in estimates are
credited to profit or loss to the extent that they reverse
the impairment.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying assets. Any
specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation of
capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of
the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match
them with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use
of the identified asset and to obtain substantially all of
the economic benefits from that use.

(i) Aslessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s)
and non-lease component(s), the Group has
elected not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets which, for the Group are primarily laptops
and office furniture. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated
with those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense on a systematic basis
over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

(0]

As lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of the
lease payments payable over the lease term,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined,
using a relevant incremental borrowing rate. After
initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site
on which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.
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As lessee (Continued)

Refundable deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition
are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group's estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment properties
and lease liabilities separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate
lease if

(@  the modification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or
more underlying assets; and

the consideration for the lease increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

When a lease modification is not accounted for as
a separate lease, at the effective date of the lease
modification,

(@  the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract on the basis of relative
stand-alone price as described above.

(b)  the Group determines the lease term of the
modified contract.

(0 the Group remeasures the lease liability
by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate over the
revised lease term.

(d) for lease modifications that decrease the
scope of the lease, the Group accounts for
the remeasurement of the lease liability
by decreasing the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or
full termination of the lease and recognising
any gain or loss relating to the partial or full
termination of the lease in profit or loss.

(e)  for all other lease modifications, the Group
accounts for the remeasurement of the
lease liability by making a corresponding
adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

The Group has applied the practical expedient
provided in Amendments to HKFRS 16: COVID-
19-Related Rent Concessions and does not assess
whether eligible rent concessions occurring as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic are
lease modification. The Group accounts for any
change in lease payments resulting from the rent
concession the same way it would account for the
change applying HKFRS 16 if the change were not
a lease modification.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
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As lessee (Continued)

The practical expedient applies only to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the
following conditions are met:

(@  the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change;

(b)  any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30
June 2021; and

(c)  there is no substantive change to other
terms and conditions of the lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient
consistently to all eligible rent concessions with
similar characteristics and in similar circumstances.

As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either
a finance lease or an operating lease at the
inception date of the lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
underlying asset. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

(ii)

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020

As lessor (Continued)

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it
accounts for the head lease and sublease as two
separate contracts. The sublease is classified as
an operating lease if the head lease is a short-
term lease to which the Group has applied the
recognition exemption. Otherwise, the sublease
is classified as a finance or operating lease by
reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the
head lease.

The Group accounts for each lease component
within a lease contract as a lease separately from
non-lease components of the contract. The Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on a relative stand-alone price
basis.

As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and
impairment requirements in HKFRS 9 to the
operating lease receivables.

A modification to an operating lease is accounted
for as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to the original lease as
part of the lease payments for the new lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Employee benefits
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Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

The Group operates various post-employment
schemes, including defined contribution pension
plans.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits, and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs and
involves the payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain directors and employees.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and
employees are measured at the fair value (excluding
the effect of non-market based vesting conditions) of
the equity instruments at the date of grant. The fair
value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted
for the effect of non-market based vesting conditions.

When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in other reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for awards that are conditional on
a market condition or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all non-market vesting conditions are
satisfied. Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it
is treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award is
recognised immediately. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the
right-of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
at initial recognition and over the lease terms due to
application of the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
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A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of the holding
company of the Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
holding company, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.
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(Continued)
BER (&) Related parties (Continued)
by (&) (b)  (Continued)
() ZREBARASBENHEASEBEHENER (v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
PIEEFZR LB ERAEE - WA for the benefit of employees of either the
SEXF BZAE RHEDMEEZ A Group or an entity related to the Group.
REEFRHE: If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.
(vi)  FZEEEX ()P A TSl g KRS (vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (a).

(i) @ O)FTEMATHZEBEERTZEN (vii) a person identified in (a)(i)) has significant
FEZEB(AZERBIERAR N E influence over the entity or is a member of
EEBAE the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a holding company of the entity).

(i) ZERIEMBEE 2EMWKEATRA (vii)y the entity, or any member of a group of
SEFIAEEZERARREFEEEA which it is a part, provides key management
8RR - personnel services to the Group or to the

holding company of the Group.
—BALTHEREERERERBNR ST A EZA Close members of the family of a person are those
THEZATHENREKE B family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:
@@ BALWFRERSHAEEHRE: (@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;
(b) ZABATZEMKRAEHEHFR: & (b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and
(0 BBATHZBALTZEBIRAEHENSZE (0 dependants of that person or that person’s spouse

Ao or domestic partner.

FHREFHEER BECERERECENNBA In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
Al ARDEBREAECENBAR- subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes

subsidiaries of the joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to Group’s most senior executive management
for the purpose of allocating resources to, and assessing
the performance of, the Group's various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker (“CODM"). The Company's
executive directors and the chief executive officer, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the CODM that make strategic decisions.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use
of unobservable inputs.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.
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5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES AND CRITICAL
ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future
and judgements are made by the management of
the Group in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. They affect the application of
the Group's accounting policies, reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures
made. They are assessed on an on-going basis and are
based on experience and relevant factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period of revision and future periods, in case the revision
also affects future periods.

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(@) Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible asset

The management of the Group determines
the estimated useful lives of the Group's,
property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets based on
the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of the relevant assets of similar nature
and functions. The estimated useful lives
could be different as a result of technical
innovations which could affect the related
depreciation/amortisation included in profit
or loss.

RRI##STEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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H i (&)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES AND CRITICAL

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)
() MFATHRERRZEERE(E) (i)  Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
b) YE BERRIKE FRAREEREFRE (b) Impairment of property, plant and

ERE

ME - BEREE EREEERETE
ERRARBEANE B H R E R EE
BIR-REEEERS BB RER &
SEAEL A R AR DEZFE: ()
ERCRLRRTEEEBENSEHRE
MR ) BEMNKREEEEEHARI
Clef (MREREE)F RRHE
FEREEMGFNRKRESRENFRE:
RO ARG ATKRESENEE BRI
H BEAECRERNREEMRRE-
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ReEEFEMA R KRE SR B RRER
fAar (BRREAESRERRPTAMREX
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BEELEBEATE-
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equipment, right-of-use assets and
intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets are stated
at costs less accumulated depreciation/
amortisation, and any impairment losses. In
determining whether an asset is impaired,
the Group has to exercise judgements and
make estimations, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any
indicators that may affect the asset value;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable
amount, in the case of value-in-use, the net
present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount
rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the
CGU to which the assets belongs. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in
the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the
impairment test.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES AND CRITICAL

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

(Continued)
() MFATHRERRZEERE(E) (i)  Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)
() FEHEEEBBEZEBRREE () Loss allowance for ECL
REEEEEREE S BUGRIENEER The management of the Group estimates
BiasE S ERFIBERHREEBENER the loss allowance for ECL on trade

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020
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receivables based on the credit risk of
trade receivables. The amount of the loss
allowance based on ECL model is measured
as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. Where
the future cash flows are less than expected,
or being revised downward due to changes
in facts and circumstances, a material loss
allowance may arise.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES AND CRITICAL

() T EERRZETEZRER(E)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(d) HEEFERE (d) Allowance for slow-moving inventories
HHFEREDRBEFERRREATFE Allowance for slow-moving inventories is
AR FEMELD FEBESELRA made based on the ageing and estimated
BT R fh st B iR 2 BB A RA BIRIRRK net realisable value of inventories. The
fhat Bl S EZ8ERN Ll HRE assessment of the allowance amount
HRMEFEREBERAY BEZEmE- involves judgements and estimates. Where

the actual outcome in future is different
from the original estimate, such difference
will impact the carrying value of inventories
and allowance charge/write-back in the
period in which such estimate has been
changed.

(e) FBH (€) Income taxes

AEBANZ ERDEERGMAEN 5t
RIFSHBRBRAFLEAGS -NAE
EBBRTEESRERERERIA LR
HRFE - WMZEEENRERBTEH
ENARESBEAMIR ZEZR/TE
MR E A PGB S T B TR B 1
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The Group is subject to income taxes in
several jurisdictions. Significant estimates
are required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in
the period in which such determination is
made.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES AND CRITICAL
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(i) RS BEREE LA E X H

(a)
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HEKEEE

AR MBBRRDEFSELEEERY
HEMUBRRAEBREL EBRNENR
A VBBRW I E RG-S
RENEEREZERTRE -

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(i) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

()

Discount rates for calculating lease
liabilities — as lessee

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rates to discount future lease
payments since interest rates implicit in
the leases are not readily determinable.
In determining the discounts rates for its
leases, the Group refers to a rate that is
readily observable as the starting point
and then applies judgement and adjusts
such observable rate to determine the
incremental borrowing rate.

(i)  Critical judgements made in applying
accounting policies

(a)

RRI##STEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern
basis, the validity of which depends upon
the Group's ability to obtain adequate
financing and generate operating cash
flows through the successful fulfilment of
the measures as described in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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UNCERTAINTIES AND CRITICAL
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FE A&t BURRHEH M E R A E (48)

(b)

EEHES

REBAEEE A AEEATENEAR
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W2 FTRENE - I BB AT B RE T AR B
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WEREBAEHREREREABHTHX

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(i)  Critical judgements made in applying
accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the
commencement date for leases that include
renewal options exercisable by the Group,
the Group evaluates the likelihood of
exercising the renewal options taking into
account all relevant facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive for the
Group to exercise the option, including
favourable terms, leasehold improvements
undertaken and the importance of that
underlying asset to the Group'’s operation.

Generally, periods covered by an extension
option in other properties leases have not
been included in the lease liability because
the Group could replace the assets without
significant cost or business disruption.

The lease term is reassessed when there

EEHREHTAEEES - BIFERT is a significant event or significant change
{HFEER - in circumstance that is within the Group's

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020

control.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

(@ Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated
in the functional currencies of the Group entities,
RMB. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group monitors its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
The foreign currency risk is not significant to the
Group.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not
meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily trade and other receivables and
amounts due from related companies) and from
its financing activities, including deposits with
banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange
transactions and other financial instruments.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
cash and cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions
with high credit-rating assigned by international
credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

RRI##STEIBRIZRAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)
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Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables

Most of the Group's sales are conducted in cash
or prepaid by customers. The Group's trade
receivables are primarily due from department
stores and cash consumer card issuers.

Customer credit risk is managed by each business
unit subject to the Group's established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit
risk management. Individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. Trade receivables
are due within 30 to 60 days from the date of
billing. Debtors with balances that are more than
3 months past due are requested to settle all
outstanding balances before any further credit
is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables, at the end of the reporting period:

—ECEF
2020

FAREEE FREEAE BEEE

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
% AR FT AR FT
% RMB’000 RMB’000
BUER (R HA) Current (not past due) = 4,534 =
BmHI0E30K 0 to 30 days past due - 130 -
#mHI31 =60k 31 to 60 days past due - 93 -
#mHI61 =90k 61 to 90 days past due - 349 -
#HA91E 180K 91 to 180 days past due - - =
B BR R B 180K Over 180 days past due 100% 1,100 1,100
6,206 1,100

—E-NF

2019

TAEAE R % FREEAE BERE

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
% AREFT AREFT
% RMB’000 RMB’000
BIHER (R H) Current (not past due) = 13,383 =
BmHI0E30K 0 to 30 days past due = 94 =
BHA31E60K 31 to 60 days past due = 165 =
BHA61E 90K 61 to 90 days past due = = =
BHAI91E 180K 91 to 180 days past due = = =
B HAE 180K Over 180 days past due 96.57% 408 394
14,050 394

RF#HSTEIBIZRAEMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)
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Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 1 year. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the
historic data has been collected, current conditions
and the Group's view of economic conditions over
the expected lives of the trade receivables.

A loss allowances amounting to approximately
RMB706,000 was charged to profit or loss during
the year ended 31 December 2020. There were
no significant movements in the loss allowances to
the consolidated financial statements during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost

All of the Group’s other financial assets measured
at amortised cost are considered to have low credit
risk, and the loss allowance recognised during
the period was therefore limited to 12-month
ECL. The management of the Group considers
all of the Group’s financial assets measured at
amortised cost to be low credit risk as they have
a low of default and the counterparties have a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term.

Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost include other receivables, amounts due from
related companies, deposits and deposits for
purchase of non-current assets.
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6. MBEBRER (&) 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
b) EERR(E) (b) Credit risk (Continued)
RBHERATENHMCSREE (B) Other financial assets measured at amortised
cost (Continued)
HE_Z-_TFR-_TE—NF+ZA=1+—H Movement in the loss allowance for financial
JJ:EJ; W Tﬂiﬁﬁéﬁkzﬁ ENEREENEER assets measured at amortised cost during the years
BEEHmT: ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 is as follows:
BEERE E—=x
EENEE BELTIRE HtEWRE st
Deposits for Amount
purchase of due from
non-current a related Other
assets company receivables Total
AREFr  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RZZE-hE—A—H At 1 January 2019 - - 2,540 2,540
FRFHREERE Charge of loss allowance
for the year 11,741 22,920 - 34,661
RZE—-NE At 31 December 2019
+=A=+-H 11,741 22,920 2,540 37,201
FRZHE Written off for the year (11,741) (22,920) (2,540) (37,201)
W_Z_ZE+_A=+—H At 31 December 2020 = = = =
BEIIRDEEZ RS RER—HBAEQRR Deposits for purchase of non-current assets
IEH) A R %34,661,0007T 2 A 5T 477 g m and amount due from a related company of
% 8 - T H M FE W R IE A9 A R #2,540,0007T B approximately RMB34,661,000 are written off as
i W YR ZERBEE B EBME B a result of the deregistration of the contracting
TRHEFB 2 KR party and other receivables of approximately
RMB2,540,000 are written off as they are past due
for more than two years and all are not subject to
enforcement activity.
NR_E_FF+=—A=+—8" ZIKEIIEEHTHZ At 31 December 2020, the Group has no other
EAEFEERAR(ZTE—NF &) RO significant concentration of credit risk (2019: Nil),
RREHFAREF - with exposure spread over a large number of

REBRT AR

fEHEHE -
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counterparties and customers.

[t has policies in place to ensure that sales are
made to customers with an appropriate credit
history.
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6.

(@

MEREBER (&) 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
REBESRR (0  Liquidity risk
AEENBRERTHELRRRRBERRSDES The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
FRUBREREHE AR RTEEHR and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
Rz RBEST R it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.
REEFTEESRBERSHARURRERE The maturity analysis based on contractual
MR HBER AT undiscounted cash flows of the Group's
non-derivative financial liabilities is as follows:
BERS EHRER
R1ER 122F 2855 HERBAE FRHE
On Total
demand Between Between  contractual
or within 1and 2 2and 5 undiscounted Carrying
1 year years years cash flow amount
ANREFT  ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R-B-FF At 31 December 2020
+ZA=1+-H
B o REMEMNFKE Trade and other payables 120,842 - = 120,842 120,842
I BERFIFER Amounts due to related
companies 1,597 - - 1,597 1,597
RITREH Bank borrowings 103,750 - - 103,750 100,000
HEERE Lease liabilities 54,464 41,151 12,056 107,671 84,628
RS Dividend payable 4,708 - = 4,708 4,708
285,361 41,151 12,056 338,568 311,775
R-Z-h#&F At 31 December 2019
t+=ZRA=+-H
B o REMEMNFE Trade and other payables 114,460 = = 114,460 114,460
R BERAINIE Amounts due to related
companies 429 - - 429 429
RITER Bank borrowings 36,323 - - 36,323 35,950
HEAaR Lease liabilities 72,726 75,725 62 148,513 125,204
FERRE Dividend payable 4,708 = = 4,708 4,708
228,646 75,725 62 304,433 280,751
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) 6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(C)
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Interest rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk primarily
relates to bank deposits and bank borrowings.
The Group's bank deposits bear interests at fixed
interest rates and therefore are subject to fair
value interest rate risks.

At 31 December 2020, the Group's bank
In the
management’s opinion, the Group does not has

borrowings is arranged at fixed rate.

material interest rate risk exposure and have no
sensitivity analysis is presented.

At 31 December 2019, the Group's exposure to
interest-rate risk arises from its bank borrowings.
These borrowings bear interests at variable
rates that vary with the then prevailing market
condition.

At 31 December 2019, if interest rates had been
1% lower with all other variables held constant,
consolidated loss after tax for the year would
have been approximately RMB270,000 lower,
arising mainly as a result of lower interest expense
on bank borrowings and lower interest income
on bank deposits. If interest rates had been 1%
higher, with all other variables held constant,
consolidated loss after tax for the year would have
been approximately RMB270,000 higher, arising
mainly as a result of higher interest expense on
bank borrowings and higher interest income on
bank deposits.
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6.

BHERER (5)

(e)

®

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
R+t=-BA=+—HBz&mITAE5 (e) Categories of financial instruments at
31 December
—E-THF —ZT—hF
2020 2019
AR¥F T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
TRMEE: Financial assets:
BHRENATFTENEREE Financial assets measured at
(BEREe kRS EY) amortised costs (including cash
and cash equivalents) 139,452 103,995
cTHmERE: Financial liabilities:
BHENATFTENEREE Financial liabilities measured at
amortised cost 311,775 280,751

N

N AEE

ZIN
BEENREEEESAM

®

SEFAGERBRARTNEREERS
a

BEMRSE-

ERASBERBEBM RS EIE 1R
EN=ZEIABEBRTE=MNREDER
REENEHSERGE P BHRERMEI9 -
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Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values.

Information about the Group's fair value of
investment properties under Level 3 of the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined under HKFRS
13 is set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statement.
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6. BHEREE (£) 6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)
(9 EXREHE (9) Capital management

AEBEAEENIERRARBASEGE
RENENREFRENERL X AFHEE
BREANEBREE-

AEEEREAARETEEEERREDE
L R AR EAEE AREREE
8 RBRSRIRIT RS, « IR SRR I8 A o B 1 4T
BN EEENADES - BE-B-TFR

—E-NF+=

A=+—HIEFE EEELN

BiE BRI IR

7. W&

FRARTEEMRININEPLANRENIFWT :

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern and to maintain
healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets
to reduce debts. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019.

7. REVENUE

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

customers by major products line for the year is as

follow:
—EC-2F —E-NF
2020 2019
AR FT ARBFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
BBV BEHREERFE15% Revenue from contracts
HERAZEEANKE: with customers within
the scope of HKFRS 15:
—HEMEER — Sales of bakery products 403,919 551,941
g 5 HE 77 B Timing of revenue recognition
RE-BEMBINER Products transferred at
a point in time 403,919 551,941

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020
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HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

8.

HMWA - h@mRER

8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

—BoBF —E-hF
2020 2019
AR FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
IRITFHF B A Interest income on bank deposits 504 1,008
&z mErFLEWA Imputed interest income on deposits 314 331
BELHREENESZ Interest income on deposits paid
FEHBA for a potential acquisition of a land = 6,685
M B A 4B EE Total interest income 818 8,024
e (fFsE) Government grants (Note) 6,478 3,185
FEMAZEHEERSREURA  Income on COVID-19-related
(FF3E21) rent concessions (Note 21) 4,679 =
i bR & B AR B BUS i B Release of asset-related government
grants 468 468
ZIEME  WE KRB EE Loss on written off of property,
plant and equipment (1,315) (29)
HEWE KER&HEHZ Gain/(Loss) on disposal of property,
e (F518) F58 plant and equipment, net 34,797 (13)
SRR R EH AR Gain/(Loss) on disposal of scrap and
ezt (E548) other materials 224 (271)
[N (E518) e B8 Exchange (loss)/gain, net (43) 120
W BERXEREBSE Impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment - (2,807)
FRAEEEREEIR Impairment losses on right-of-use assets = (4,076)
EHEET 2He A Rental income under operating leases 1,074 140
EREEaE Release of lease liabilities 3,101 4,351
I REEE Written off of the right-of-use assets (2,603) (4,101)
HAth Others (373) (38)
47,305 4,953
B o Note:

HE-_T-_ZSF+-A=+—BLFE REERMHTKRFHM
T2 A9 37 7 B ¢ 2 175 1 47 B R SR B TS 47 B 40 A R #64,660,0007T
(Z2—NF 8) A5BEEERA HESHZSHINRE
BARFSR B IE - AN b A BTN BB HBOAR
#1,818,0007T (ZZF — L : &) AR %3,185,0007T) - A ASE) &
B REGE R (WIBR B R BRI -

At

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group recognised
government grants of approximately RMB4,660,000 (2019: Nil) in
respect of COVID-19-related subsidies provided by local government
authorities. In the opinion of the management to the Group, there
were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these
grants. Besides, government grants of approximately RMB1,818,000
(2019: approximately RMB3,185,000) were received from local
government authorities for encouraging production and improving
technology, of which the entitlement was unconditional.
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HEZ

9.

10.
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ZZHF+=HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

THEESRBEIIRFHE

9. CHARGE OF LOSS ALLOWANCES ON
FINANCIAL ASSETS, NET

b S 35 —ZE-hnF
2020 2019
AR FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000

AT RIBF R BERE: Loss allowances charged on:
— B SRR — Trade receivables 706 =

—BEIFRDEENES — Deposits for purchase of
non-current assets - 11,741

— eI — I BEE R B FRIE — Amount due from a related

company - 22,920
706 34,661

BE_Z_ZFR_ZT-NF+_A=+—HILFE
TREEBEBRBRBFBEANGE Y BEHERRMEE6 ) -

7 ERE
AEEES—ETSREES B LBLBREE (B
AARHTESRERNTE) ERBHBASEE.

ARAXZBLERREZRNANREECLERERE
BzWmat MAREERELERYBELREFN
M2 BIEER Bt AEELE2|KEDFER -

Details of loss allowances on financial assets for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are set out in
note 6(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has only one reportable operating segment.
The CODM, being executive directors and the chief
executive officer of the Company, reviews the Group as
a whole and internal reports are reported to the CODM
including only revenue analysis by product types and no
other discretionary information is prepared for resource
allocation and performance assessment. Therefore, no
operating segment information is presented.

—E-EF ZT—hF
2020 2019
AR¥TFT AR#EFIiT
RMB’000 RMB’000

EYER Types of goods
BN ER Bread and cakes 286,686 407,651
A&t Moon cakes 35,416 31,559
S Pastries 53,914 72,210
Hh Others 27,903 40,521
403,919 551,941

RF#HSTEIBIZRAEMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

10.

TERER ()

HEER

AEEMENRSE BRRAMER EERBEHRE N
RIpA AR B - [ 3 8 2 513 [ B Y o

REETEFEFHWE

RBE-Z-_ZFER-_F-AFT-A=+—BLF
B IeE—FFAERAEEMAKIERI0% -

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

All of the Group’s revenue, loss before tax, assets and
liabilities were derived from or located in the PRC, and
therefore no geographical information is presented.

Revenue from major customers

No single customer contributed over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

1. MERE 11. FINANCE COSTS
ZEC-EF —E-hEF
2020 2019
AR¥Fr ARMTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEaFEMNERY Interest expenses on lease liabilities 7,913 20,301
IRITE KA B Interest expenses on bank borrowings 1,639 491
9,552 20,792

12. FAEHHRAX
BRIBNERNFAERET

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as

following:
—2o%F —F-NF
2020 2019
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

BRERTR IR Current tax

FREE—F Provision for the year — the PRC 581 607
BEFERETR Under-provision in prior years 79 214
660 821
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HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

12. FREHMAX (8) 12.
HRAEERBE S -_ZEFER-_T-AF+=A
:‘f'—EJiiEﬁI?ﬁKE%fR/ﬁﬁﬂ’Eﬁ(ﬁzﬁﬁ'ﬁ?/aﬂFf
TET IR
PR ZEER R E25% (ZF—NF:25% )&t
REE-

BEPRCEMBHE INECEB TS NF—A
—BZEBRENFERRIRERE  SHINREESE
U10% BB AT S HL

INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since
the Group has no assessable profits for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been provided at a rate
of 25% (2019: 25%).

Pursuant to the PRC law on Enterprise Income Tax,
10% withholding income tax will be levied on foreign
investors for dividend distribution from foreign invested

EI@MIET%%)%?E&%IJZE%%E*E%FZ!KEl%&%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ
RZBITMERKIBIRIT 2 AE RERENE

PSR R ATEBERNE R REEREM M

enterprises’ profit earned after 1 January 2008.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere has been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in

which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and

SEBEZHENT the loss before tax multiplied by the income tax rate
applicable to respective tax jurisdictions is as follows:
—E-EH —hE&F
2020 2019
AR¥FT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
B AT B 18 Loss before tax (109,711) (223,476)
REVBEEERBEANETE  Tax calculated at the rates applicable
EOEyAE to respective tax jurisdictions (27,422) (55,052)
BARHBRANTH BT L Tax effect of income that is not taxable (3,016) (2,667)
AR R R & Tax effect of expenses that are
not deductible 2,682 3,832
REREREZHOTBTE Tax effect of temporary differences
not recognised (1,019) 7,826
AERMIBEENT T E Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 29,356 46,668
BEFERETR Under-provision in prior years 79 214
FriE ik Income tax expense 660 821
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HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

13. FREE

AEE 2 FNBEDENR, GIA) A TEHEERES:

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

(crediting) the following:

The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging/

g S 322 —ZE-hF
2020 2019
AR FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
B EEHH Amortisation of intangible assets 1,011 1,287
FRAEEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 81,355 79,755
WE  BEREETE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 27,374 30,278
BEMERE Depreciation of investment properties 878 =
ZIEME - W E MR BB Loss on written off of property,
plant and equipment 1,315 29
HEWE BERH&E (Gain)/Loss on disposal of property,
(k) /BE plant and equipment (34,797) 13
KEHEER Operating lease charges
—HEZTEME — Rented retail outlets 39,224 28,334
BINA (BIEEEFTM) Staff costs (Including directors’
remuneration)
—¥re  TEALRERL — Salaries, bonuses and allowances 166,384 253,226
—RRAEAIET SR — Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 22,867 29,231
189,251 282,457
1% B AT BN & Auditor’s remuneration 1,400 1,780
BEFERA (M) Cost of inventories sold (Note) 242,229 308,615
cREEBERETIRTE Charge of loss allowances on
financial assets, net 706 34,661
VI BRE KRR AR Impairment losses on property,
plant and equipment - 2,807
FHREEERERE Impairment losses on right-of-use assets = 4,076

GEE

EEFERAHRBEINA HEREERERRER HRAR
#65,137,0007T (ZF — 4 : £) AR#95,017,0007T) ' B AME

BB RO AR o

Note:

approximately RMB95,017,000) which are included in the amounts

disclosed separately.

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020
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Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs, depreciation and
operating lease charges of approximately RMB65,137,000 (2019:
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HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

14. EERABEX

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

—EEF —E-NF
2020 2019
AR¥ T ARE T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EERMAX Employee benefits expense:
e TEAT RoERL Salaries, bonuses and allowances 166,384 253,226
RIREFFT IR (HEE16) Retirement benefit scheme
contributions (Note 16) 22,867 29,231
189,251 282,457

TEREFMAL

BE_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HILFE AEELH
BRFMALHIERES (ZT-IF: —RESF)
HHEMNERE M BHRERM L1528 07 R ER - 85
THE(ZE-NF W) BALHFMEI DT :

Five highest paid individuals

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the five
highest paid individuals in the Group included no director
(2019: 1 director) whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements. The emoluments of the remaining
5 (2019: 4) individuals are set out below:

—E-EF —ZT—hF

2020 2019

AR¥FT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

e KOER Salaries and allowances 1,999 1,680
1B TEAL Discretionary bonus = =
RORAEFIFT B3 Retirement benefit scheme contributions = =
1,999 1,680

ZTTFFWR Annual Report 2020 RFRIASTEIBIZERAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited



mEMBRRHE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

14. EEEAEAX (8) 14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE
(Continued)
AEBESEFMAL (E) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)
BN FATEE: The emoluments fell within the following band:
AE
Number of individuals
—EB-EF —T-NF
2020 2019
T 7T E 1,000,0005 7T Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$") Nil
to HK$ 1,000,000 5 4
HE-_Z - ZER-"T-NF+_A=+—HLEFE" No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
AEEBERAAE &SNS AT AERN MM - the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
TERIMAZRE B3 hn AR & B 1 8 52 E) S E R BRI join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
B-HE_Z-_TFR-_FT-NF+ZA=+—HL loss of office during the years ended 31 December 2020
FE HMESEEXI AR ATHEXIRENE and 2019. There was no arrangement under which a
EI S H 2k director or the five highest paid individuals waived or

agreed to waive any remuneration for the years ended
31 December 2020 and 2019.
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HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

15. ESEMNR A= 15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS
() EENEEITEME (@) Directors’ and chief executive officer's
emoluments
B2 _Z-_ZF+_A=1+—"BHIFE &&F% For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
REFEBITENFTMETINAT remuneration of every director and chief executive

officer is set out below:

BEMALERAES (THAZQARAREMBERRE)
FREIRBE N RERHHE
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

EEXEK AR 5
BE HERER BERA BAFHER RERZAX At
Employer’s
contribution
toa
Salaries retirement
and Discretionary benefit Share-based
Fees  allowances bonus scheme payments Total

ARETT ARBETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BITES Executive Directors
RAKE (Mita) Mr. Yong Ning Zhu (Note a) = = = - - _
WEEH KA Mr. Ming Tien-Lin = = - - - _
EmALE Mr. I-Sheng Chan = - - _ _ _

TR (D) Ms. Jo-Hsien Chiang (Note i) = = - - - _
©EAEL (FEb) M. Chien-Li Tseng (Note b) = - - - _ _
B 4 (5Ed) M. Chun Bin Xu (Note d) = = - - _ _

FHTES Non-executive Directors
HFOE LA (MisEc)  Mr Dun-ching Hung (Note o) = = = - - _
ERALE Mr. Chi-Ming Chou = = = - - -
AENEE (HFEm)  Mr Weiguang Shi (Note m) = - - - _ _
BYEHITES Independent Non-executive
Directors
gee it (M) Ms. Wanwen Su (Note i) = - - - _ _
BREE (HE) Mr. Chen Zhou (Note ) - - - _ _ _

TR (BREK) Mr. Huai Jiang (Note k) = - - - _ _
BREAZE L+ (MisEk)  Ms. Ming Hua Chen (Note k) = = - - - _
EEEEL () Dr. Yong Jun Tang (Note ) - - - _ _ _
B4k (MisE)  Mr Hang Sheng Ye (Note ) = = - - - _
Bearz+ (MI=ED) Ms. Hong Xue (Note I) = - - - _ _
HEM L+ (M) Ms. Xiao Yan Xu (Note I) = = - - _ _
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A M BRRNE
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HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

15. EEEANER=E () 15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ and chief executive officer’s
emoluments (Continued)

@ EEREREWTEME (B @)

BHE_T-NFT-_A=1t—"HILFE &&=
RERERITENTFMEINNAT

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
remuneration of every director and chief executive
officer is set out below:

REFNALERAES (THALDRAIIANBELE)
Pzt R E MR BRI £

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person'’s services
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

EEERR LARR AR
e e RkEA BB TR EIER REWZAH st
Employer’s
contribution
Salaries to a retirement
and  Discretionary benefit  Share-based
Fees allowances bonus scheme payments Total
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFTL
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HITES Executive Directors
RKE (MsEa) Mr. Yong Ning Zhu (Note a) = = - - _ _
WEEH KA Mr. Ming Tien-Lin = - - . _ _
EuftsE Mr. I-Sheng Chan - 285 - = = 285
TERZ L () Ms. Jo-Hsien Chiang (Note i) = - - _ _ _
@54 (B5Eb)  Mr. Chien-Li Tseng (Note b) = - - _ _ _
BERLL (fiEe)  Mr. Chi Ming Xu (Note e) = - - _ _ _
FHTES Non-executive Directors
AFE %A (MFEc)  Mr. Dun-ching Hung (Note ¢) = = = . - _
ERBAEAE Mr. Chi-Ming Chou = - - - - _
MEEAE (FFES) Mr. Yuan Lin (Note f) = - _ _ _ _
AENEE (HEm)  Mr Weiguang Shi (Note m) = - - - - _
BYEHITES Independent Non-executive
Directors
28MELE (fsg)  Mr Haiming Gao (Note g) 36 = - - - 36
BRoe X &t (3E)) Ms. Wanwen Su (Note j) 71 = - - - 71
BAREE (M) Mr. Chen Zhou (Note i) - - _ _ _ _
BEEw A (MsEd)  Mr Chun Bin Xu (Note d) = - _ - _ _
FEZEMEE (HEh)  Mr. Meilin Zhou (Note h) - - _ _ _ _
A L4 (MisEh) Mr. Shi Chen (Note h) = - _ _ _ _
107 285 - - - 392
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15. EEEARAE (B)

(a)

ZZETFFIHR Annual Report 2020

ESREEITEMS (B)

B3 -

@ FABEEHBR-FB-NFEARBR-F—N
ARt BREERRGEREFRERRG-

BRFIRER —F—
#¥-

NENA=ZTBEZERRIT

HBBRER_E-NFRAT_REZERES
IR YR -_ZE-_ZEFRA-T_HAEHEIES
ESER

REWEER_T-NFN\AZTBEZERBT
FRITER YN _FT_FTFAA-_T_HEZRE
REFGIFE -RAWEEE-_Z-_ZF A=+
PREREEERENTE UIR_T-_FFLA/=
FERBIIFNTEEHTRANTES

BRERRER_FT-NAFNATARENTES -

MERER=ZFT—
=

NE=ZA -+ N\HEEFRITE

BN
HITES

NFE=ZRA -+ LHBEBLE

AEMEERRBEESBIR T —AFA
ZH—HARZE-AFNAA T HEBHEBI T
B=-

RZB-ZFERA=ZFTH IERKLTRENTE

ERMEX KT REBIFRTES-

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(@) Directors’ and chief executive officer’s
emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(@

(b)

RF#HSTEIBIZRAEMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited

Mr. Yong Ning Zhu stepped down from his position
as a chief executive officer and chairman of the board
on 5 May 2019 and 12 June 2019, respectively.

Mr. Chien-Li Tseng was appointed as an executive
director on 30 August 2019.

Mr. Dun-ching Hung was appointed as a chairman
of the board on 12 June 2019 and resigned from
his position as the chairman of the board with effect
from 22 May 2020.

Mr. Chun Bin Xu was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 30 August 2019 and was
appointed as the chairman of the board with effect
from 22 May 2020. Mr. Chun Bin Xu has temporally
acted as the chief executive officer with effect
from 30 June 2020 and was re-designated from an
independent non-executive director to an executive
director on 3 July 2020.

Mr. Chi Ming Xu resigned as an executive director on
20 August 2019.

Mr. Yuan Lin resigned as a non-executive director on
28 March 2019.

Mr. Haiming Gao resigned as an independent
non-executive director on 27 March 2019.

Mr. Meilin Zhou and Mr. Shi Chen resigned as an
independent non-executive director on 21 June 2019

and 20 August 2019, respectively.

Ms Jo-Hsien Chiang retired as an executive director
and Ms. Wanwen Su retired as an independent non-
executive director on 30 June 2020.
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HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

15. EEEARAE (B)

(a)

(b)

EERERATEME (B)

feE: (&)

0 AREER-ZE-NF=ZA-TNLBEZEARBIL
FRITES YN _T_TF=A+=AHEB
FMITEE-

k) TEEERRBAELIR-_ZF_FTF=A=1+—H
BRERBUFATES BITELEERRAEL
TR _ZFA=ZTREREBIIFNTES

0} ERERL EMALE BAKLIRFESRTLT
R-B_ZFELA-ZARZERBIUIFNTES-

(m ARAEER-_Z_ZFENATHEAREENTE
E

EXTRATEEFNMEDARSERARTARAEESE
BHRB M A o

EXRERITERERBIYFRTEENHE N ARER
ERRTEEFRENORBE M LA -

HE_Z-ZFR-_FT-NAF+ZA=Z+—BLEFE XK
SEBERAARRESIMREMTRAME  ERMAK
SEEMAREE & EZEISKIERBBEE -

DESAZHEANER EERRAEMRS

BHE-T-_TFR-F-NF+-A=+—HILLFE #
EANRTFEUNRNARESTAZHEANER EBERRHE
i

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020

Directors’ and chief executive officer’s
emoluments (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

() Mr. Chen Zhou was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 29 March 2019 and
resigned as an independent non-executive director on
13 March 2020.

(k) Mr. Huai Jiang and Ms. Ming Hua Chen were
appointed as an independent non-executive on
31 March 2020 and Mr. Huai Jiang and Ms. Ming
Hua Chen retired as an independent non-executive
director on 30 June 2020.

0] Dr. Yong Jun Tang, Mr. Hang Sheng Ye, Ms. Hong
Xue and Ms. Xiao Yan Xu were appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 3 July 2020.

(m) Mr. Weiguang Shi resigned as a non-executive
director on 15 August 2020.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and
the Group.

The emoluments of the non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors shown
above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

No emoluments were paid or payable by the
Group to the directors of the Company as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or
as compensation for loss of office during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings
in favour of the directors of the Company that
were entered into or subsisted during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

RRIHSTEMIZERARAT Christine International Holdings Limited
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15. EEEARAE (B)

© EBERXS ZRFEIEHWHEAFZE

BRiRe M BmRMABABREZHEALRS
S AR e B AR B R AR T 7 B AN S [
EBBRAMARREZRES CHETRAER
EERIMEEFAEANG  BERFRIFREM
BREDFEZEARS THRELH-

16. RIKER 52

AEBEREFE(BFERNERBEZ BRI SEE
ERERBERBRBMEATERE ([BES
B ARERRESHEFHIHAREETE R
TEZS%AE B2 EBEAHKLERS,50087T -
FRTEE A BMEL R HRAERRREEME -

REERTBEKZZHBARNEES BRI TRTE
ENRREKREFEKE - ZEWNEARARERR
AEehTEZETADLRAPRERSFTIIH-T
EREBRRBNES M MBI ARAEZSHE R
AIMERBRRKEKREENRABNET ZEM
BRABBPREKSFE - BT IREBEL

PR

AXHENBHAREYEHTAER 5 -F-F
F = A2 4B R L B 2 20 o RS
BEIEHE THB RS B8 X5 T RKITE
{ERO SRR (RS BIE T 0% TR

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (Continued)

() Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Except the related party transactions disclosed in
note 43 to the consolidated financial statements,
no significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which the directors of the Company
and the directors’ connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

16. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
(the "MPF Scheme"”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group's contributions to
the MPF Scheme are calculated at 5% of the salaries
and wages subject to a monthly maximum amount of
contribution of HK$1,500 per employee and vest fully
with employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in the PRC are members of a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and wages to the
central pension scheme to fund the retirement benefits.
The local municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefits obligations of all existing and
future retired employees of these subsidiaries. The
only obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to
the central pension scheme is to meet the required
contributions under the scheme.

To support the PRC entities under COVID-19, starting
from February 2020, the relevant PRC government
authorities have given certain temporary reliefs to entities
incorporated in the PRC to exempt from payment of
certain amount of levies on the central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government.
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HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

17.

18.

RE 17. DIVIDENDS
ARREETERRBE-_S-_TF+=-A=+—8 The directors of the Company did not recommend

1 R R RT R HA AR

B(ZE—-—N&F:8|)- payment of any final dividend for the year ended

31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

BREE 18. LOSS PER SHARE
RAEHEBABGEERERNREEEIBIZR T EE® The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
8 attributable to the owners of the Company is based on
the following:
—EC-BE —E-NF
2020 2019
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
&8 Loss
ARETEEREARAR Loss for the year for the purpose of
BHEEBE FNEBE calculating basic and diluted loss per share (110,371) (224,297)
—E-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
FiE FAE
‘000 ‘000
ROEE Number of shares
ARFTEERERR Weighted average number of
HHEE TBR ordinary shares for the purpose of
n#EFEHE calculating basic and diluted loss per share 1,010,188 1,010,188
BHREBZ-ZZ-FTFR_F-NF+ZA=+T—H1t Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share
FETEELESTBR WERBETEHERETGRE as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares during
REIEARR the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

19. REYHE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020

—E-ZfF —E—-NF
2020 2019
AR¥FT ARMFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000

IRIEIE 2 ¥ 8R Reconciliation of carrying amounts
R & B9 At the beginning of the reporting period - =

B WE MR EE R Transfer from property,

(MF5E20) plant and equipment (Note 20) 12,789 =
B REEEER (MfsE21) Transfer from right-of-use assets (Note 21) 3,875 =
e Depreciation (878) =
R|BEHR At the end of the reporting period 15,786 =
DN Cost 35,240 -
RREIE Accumulated depreciation (19,454) =
RIBEHR At the end of the reporting period 15,786 -
AREE Fair values 47,800 =

REBEE-Z-_ZF+_A=+—HIEE A£EE
BEAEAEESFASE TEFHRIAS At FE
BEHAREE16,664000LWEFERBAREEEAY
¥ BEMEEARERREEEN D EEREDME-

WEMEBBMNRPBEMNE TESF 5T F B FH
NF19Z4745 -

R-BE-ZTFEF+_A=Z+—HB A£EEMELNAEA
R#14,657,000c (ZE—NF: E)NEREWED K
FIEARNEEERBITHREMER (HFE35) °

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain
buildings were determined by the management of
the Group to be held to earn rentals by the Group.
Accordingly, the carrying amount of approximately
RMB16,664,000 has been reclassified from property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets to
investment properties following the change in use.

The investment properties consist of several buildings in
the PRC with remaining useful lives ranging from 19 to
47 years.

The Group's investment property with a carrying amount
of approximately RMB14,657,000 at 31 December 2020
(2019: Nil) was pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group (Note 35).
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19. REYWE(E) 19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

BRENENRAEBEBREB BB RS LERIE135EAT
REN=ZRAABEBRRTNE=F - REVENOQ
AREBEEDREBYEXREEMETOEETE %A
BB AR EEER BOMEMBEDEMEL
MEBENTEAEEELER AABERABAER
R MEENER L ESRBERERREMR
HAEENESWABRL AR (KR %) KA
REHENHERARTSH2EEEZMTR T AR
EMETEERAAMNEMRR LREEBERNE
EREBEETHE UWBLERFFEENARG-

AARBEAEDENREVENRS RRERZ &
RERGYEER-

REMENHSBAFBEIRGEMBHERRHMES -

BERAKENEREERENENB RN RRKER
BRETEXR EREERIKE BBBREMEEH
TEEBEEBRAEARYEEARA LR BERFERR
AEBELRENER EME-—TEZZRAREE
Ko
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The fair values of investment properties are under Level
3 of the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined under
HKFRS 13. The fair values of investment properties is
based on valuations by an independent professional
valuer who hold recognised professional qualification
and have recent experience in the location and category
of property being valued. The fair value which is
estimated using income capitalisation approach by
capitalising the rental income derived from the existing
tenancies over the existing lease term at an appropriate
capitalisation rate reflects, among other things, rental
income from current leases and other assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing investment
properties under current market conditions, and is
adjusted based on separately recognised assets or
liabilities to avoid double counting assets or liabilities.

The fair value measurement was based on the highest
and best use of the investment properties, which did not
differ from their existing use.

The details of the lease income from operating leases
are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Although the risks associated with rights that the Group
retains in underlying assets are not considered to be
significant, the Group employs strategies to further
minimise these risks by ensuring all contracts include
clauses requiring the lessee to compensate the Group
when a property has been subjected to excess wear-and-
tear during the lease term.
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20. X BERRE 20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
£ER
HEMERE BF BERRE RE BAERE ERIR st
Machinery Fixtures
Leasehold and Motor and office  Construction
improvements Buildings equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
ANRETFT  AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
A& Cost
RZZ—NF—HF—H At1January 2019 227,494 501,250 432,987 16,939 141,779 112,471 1,432,920
"E Additions 5,626 - 1,314 380 2,218 16,664 26,202
% Written off S S (2,655) (4,248) (13,222) - (20,125)
HE Disposals - - - - (1,632) - (1,632)
RZT-NE At 31 December 2019
TZR=+—-BEK and 1 January 2020
—Z-TF—-R—H 233,120 501,250 431,646 13,071 129,143 129,135 1,437,365
NE Additions 72 - 282 280 233 314 1,181
ATk 14 B B Transfer upon completion 87 128,803 = = = (128,890) =
HREREME Transfer to investment
(H3¥19) properties (Note 19) - (30,520) - - - = (30,520)
%8 Written off - - (1,415) (2,927) (4,006) (559) (8,907)
HE Disposals - (66,963) - - - = (66,963)
NZB-TE At 31 December 2020
+=ZA=+—~ 233,279 532,570 430,513 10,424 125,370 - 1,332,156

ZEHTERAMERFE  Accumulated depreciation

and impairment losses

WZZ—N%F—A—8 At1lanuary 2019 226,869 263,500 418,687 16,039 138,552 = 1,063,647
FRX L Charge for the year 2,163 18,515 8,711 211 678 - 30,278
% Written off = = 2,721) (3,994) (13,381) = (20,096)
HE Disposals - - - - (1,445) - (1,445)
REEE Impairment losses 2,807 - - = = = 2,807
RZZE-NEF At 31 December 2019

+ZR=+—Hk and 1 January 2020

—T-ZF—-f—H 231,839 282,015 424,677 12,256 124,404 - 1,075,191
FALH Charge for the year 1,331 19,711 5,606 68 658 - 27,374
HRERAEME Transfer to investment

(FfzE19) properties (Note 19) - (17,731) - - = = (17,731)
1% Written off = = (1,270) (2,532) (3,790) = (7,592)
HE Disposals - (22,600) - - - = (22,600)
AEER Impairment losses - - - - = = =
RZZ-EF At 31 December 2020

+-A=+-A 233,170 261,395 429,013 9,792 121,272 = 1,054,642
REE Carrying amount
RZZ-FF At 31 December 2020

+-A=+—8 109 271,175 1,500 632 4,098 - 277,514
RZZB-NF At 31 December 2019

+=A=+—-A 1,281 219,235 6,969 815 4,739 129,135 362,174
BHE-_Z-_ZTF+_A=+—HULEFE AEEEK During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
HEMRERN—REF KRE /R AK%S0,000,000 completed the disposal of a building located in Nanjing
TT (M BEER S KAL) AR E840,0007T) ° at a consideration of RMB80,000,000 (excluding the

transaction costs of approximately RMB840,000)
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20.

ZZHF+=HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

M BERERE(E)

RZZE-_EF+-_A=+—H" % ARK¥120,838,000
rc(_f NEF: HARKE20,114,00070) (I E - W E
BB IMPIEARNEFIRITEROER (KIFE3S) -

HEZT-_TF+_A=+—HLEFE AREEHE
MBRAXGE ASEERBEUASEREEBRS
EEBUZEEREREMEBEEE ZAIKES5EE
TR -AREREREEESL 2T RE S8 (K
RREERDEE(REMREREEEEUZYME.
WEREE CAEESEREVEAE)ICRGELE
uZﬁEﬁﬁﬁ@*ﬁﬂ)@ﬁﬁHﬁfﬁfﬁﬁ/m;/ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁ
EEETE -FMARABEAERI4.0% ﬁﬁ
13.8% ) - AEEGR 2B RETRA T /EQZK
EHE KRR AFEHBBE LR T BEERA2.5% (f
T—NF:3.0% )2 EREAE - ZIERE T HIBEA
mSe R R

BE_T_ZTF+_A=1+—HLFE FAEEEHE
i‘&iﬁﬂkﬁk*fﬂiﬁi 5 {7 2 AT E] & R A E AR T (E AR
FRAERERNBE_FT_TFT_A=1+—BLHF
BETHERRERER-

%zﬁ—%—niJr—ﬂ:Jr—EIJtirt‘*v%Wﬁkﬁiﬁ
CEABEMNTRESEEREEE Bt 82
E-NF+_A=+—HILFERBEERME" H
ERERERERIEOARE2,807,000TREREEE
HEEE L AR4,076,0000T

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

At 31 December 2020, approximately RMB120,838,000
of the property, plant and equipment (2019:
approximately RMB20,114,000) pledged as security for
the Group's bank borrowings (Note 35).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, as a result
of the unsatisfactory performance of the Group, the
management of the Group carried out a review of
the recoverable amounts of manufacturing plant and
other related assets of the Group's bakery CGU. The
recoverable amounts (considered to be the same as
the value-in-use of the CGU of the non-current assets,
including property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets of bakery CGU) of the
Group's bakery CGU have been determined on the basis
of their value-in-use using discounted cash flow method.
The pre-tax discount rate used was 14.0% (2019:
13.8%). The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived
from the most recent financial budgets approved by the
directors of the Company for the next five years with the
residual period using the growth rate of 2.5% (2019:
3.0%). This rate does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant markets.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
management of the Group expected that the recoverable
amount of the bakery CGU approximates its carrying
amount and thus concluded that no impairment loss was
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, given that
the recoverable amount of the bakery CGU is lower
than the carrying amount, therefore, impairment losses
of approximately RMB2,807,000 on property, plant and
equipment and approximately RMB4,076,000 on right-
of-use assets were recognised in profit or loss during
31 December 2019.
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ZZHF+=HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

EREEE 21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
HELH HEWHE st
Leased
Leasehold lands properties Total
AERETF T AR TFT ARMFT
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—h&E—A—8- At 1 January 2019 -
RNE B HmEER upon adoption of
E165%1% HKFRS 16 73,373 148,903 222,276
= Additions 73,174 73,174
e Depreciation (2,147) (77,608) (79,755)
% 8H Written off - (4,101) (4,101)
EEE Impairment losses = (4,076) (4,076)
—ﬂi‘f'*ﬂiﬂ'—El At 31 December 2019
—ZT-THF—-—H—H and 1 January 2020 71,226 136,292 207,518
nNE Additions - 29,106 29,106
HEBEREME Transfer to investment
properties (3,875) - (3,875)
e Depreciation (2,096) (79,259) (81,355)
% 88 Written off - (2,603) (2,603)
RIEEE Impairment losses = = -
RZFBEZTFF+-_A=+—H At31 December 2020 65,255 83,536 148,791

MREEEEHARESL628000T (ZF— L &E:
# AN R %125,204,000T) , AT RBEEENBAR

#83,536,0007C (T — N4 :

#9 A £ #136,292,000

) BREBEAMFHEEENERESIN HEHBR

RiZ:S iyl CIE-2=

cHEBENSAIFEROERR -

Lease liabilities of approximately RMB84,628,000
(2019: approximately RMB125,204,000) are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of
approximately RMB83,536,000 (2019: approximately
RMB136,292,000). The lease agreements do not impose
any covenants other than the security interests in the
leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.
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21. FRAEEE (&) 21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

—EC-EF —ZE—NF
2020 2019
AR¥T T ARKFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FREEENITEEA Depreciation of right-of-use assets 81,355 79,755
FRAEEEREERE Impairment losses on right-of-use assets = 4,076
i A& ISHEBEEAS R 2K A Income on COVID-19-related
rent concessions 4,679 =
HEABEZFERE Interest expenses on lease liabilities
(GTATREERKA]) (included in “Finance costs”) 7,913 20,301
B HIH BB AR Expenses relating to short-term leases
GrATHEHERA]  [HER (included in “Cost of sales”,
HiEAX] R 1THREAZ]) “Selling and distribution expenses”,
and “Administrative expenses”) 39,224 28,334

HERSRMDBEFBHANLRE P BRERWE3S (b) ° Details of total cash outflow for leases are set out in

note 38(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

REBEE-_ZE_ZFR_FT—NF+-_A=+—HILHF
B AEEAHKLEHELHMTEME HEANEN
F1ER10F (ZE—NF 12105 )EEFHT -
AR ENEEREABER S SBTEER RAEE - R
ETHBARTETTEEOBERE AEERBELD
ZEEWETALREINITHIM-

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the
Group leases various retail outlets for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term ranged
from 1 to 10 years (2019: 1 to 10 years). Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

N NEBEEZETIXRT T ERAELERSE
K ng - AR DR SN E R (REAEEE L)
MERHEBA-AKRECHEIN —ZBRA UB
ARENFERD - ZFEAVFNHEL R OEL
NREAAELRENERTEBLS -

In addition, the Group owns several industrial buildings
where its manufacturing facilities are primarily located
and office buildings. The Group is the registered owner
of these property interests, including the underlying
leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were made upfront
to acquire these property interests. The leasehold land
components of these owned properties are presented
separately only if the payments made can be allocated
reliably.
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22. BE 22. GOODWILL
—E-ZfF —E—-NF
2020 2019
AR¥FT ARMFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
A Cost
R—A—Bk+=ZA=+—H  At1January and 31 December 20,147 20,147
it REEE Accumulated impairment losses
R—A—HBE+ZA=+—H At 1 January and 31 December (20,147) (20,147)
IREE Carrying amount
R+=—A=+—H At 31 December = =
¥BeMPEECEEDRBER S EZTEHAIZE Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
REBEHZRSELSEV -HEZEMESI KRN T : at acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit

from that business combination. The carrying amount of
goodwill had been allocated as follows:

—B-EHF —ZE-NF
2020 2019
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEREHEREEMD Production and sales of bakery products
— N R @ ER A F] — Hangzhou Danbi Foodstuff Co., Ltd
([HMZEED) (“Hangzhou Danbi") = =
ZERIEWEIMN T 100% S EENEE - mER The amount represents the goodwill arose from the
MAFEEEERE- acquisition of 100% interest in Hangzhou Danbi. The

goodwill was fully impaired in prior years.
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ZZHF+=HA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

BREE 23. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
B4 [5g HEM et
Sales
Software  Trademark network Total
ANRETFT AR¥Fr AR¥ETFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
KA Cost
—h&—HA—H At 1 January 2019 13,608 10,635 5,860 30,103
R-ZT-_ZTHF—H—H At 1January 2020 and
U =ZFE—NFR 31 December 2019 and 2020
—ZTTF
+=-—A=+—H 13,608 10,635 5,860 30,103
Bt R EEEE Accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses
—NF—HA—HB  At1January 2019 8,574 10,635 5,860 25,069
F N Amortisation for the year 1,287 = = 1,287
—NnF At 31 December 2019 and
+ZA=+—HK 1 January 2020
—E2-2F—H—H 9,861 10,635 5,860 26,356
F R Y Amortisation for the year 1,011 = = 1,011
RIE-ZF At 31 December 2020
+=—A=+— 10,872 10,635 5,860 27,367
REEE Carrying amount
RIE-ZF At 31 December 2020
+=—A=+—H 2,736 - - 2,736
E—NEF At 31 December 2019
+=-A=+—8 3,747 = = 3,747

EERAFERFHNSRG AERHEE
H10E 205 44 -

WEUABERE

over ten to twenty years.

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020

Software, trademark and sales network, which have
finite useful lives, are amortised on a straight-line basis
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24. RBRAAZRE 24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
RZZEZEFF+_A=+—RH AR EMRBAA Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December
=3 N 2020 are as follows:

ST FaREDs RER/
a8 TR E B BRTRARMEELAFE FEIZEEIL  IEXH
Place of Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ Particular of interest/
registration and issued share capital and voting power/
Name operation paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
E# CiF3
Direct Indirect
Christine International Holdings RERIES LER 100% - REER
(BVI) Co., Ltd. (EBEZ#EES]) 1EZx([%£x]) Investment holding
British Virgin Ordinary share
Islands (“"BVI") United States Dollars
("Uss") $1
RABREEERLA N TRk - 100% #REERK
Deluxe International Holdings Limited Hong Kong 1,001 7T Investment holding
Ordinary share
HK$1,001
tEBERESERAA N EER - 100% #REER
Jinda International Trade Co., Ltd. Hong Kong 10,0007 7T Investment holding
Ordinary share
HK$10,000
LARANGTRMBRAF H HREAR = 100% HERHEEHEER
(TER=FRAT]) The PRC 12,970,000% ¢ Production and sales of
Shanghai Christine Foodstuff Paid up capital bakery products
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Christine") US$12,970,000
LBETERRRERAR hE BRER - 100% AERHEREER
([EBERE]) The PRC AE#107,271,2167C Production and sales of
Shanghai Ji Yuan De Foodstuff Paid up capital bakery products
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Ji Yuan De") RMB107,271,216
HEHEEMRRER AR H BREAR - 100% HERBEEHEER
Shanghai Sweet Art Foodstuff The PRC AR #5,000,0007T Production and sales of
Co., Ltd. Paid up capital bakery products
RMBS5,000,000
ARRABTRABRAF hE BRER - 100% 4AERHEREER
(EREFRAT]) The PRC 54,800,000 7T Production and sales of
Nanjing Christine Foodstuff Paid up capital bakery products
Co., Ltd. (“Nanjing Christine”) US$54,800,000
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HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

24. RMBARZRE (18)

24. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
FMAL FaREL: RER/
A8 TR E B BRTRARMREEAFE FEIZEESIL  TEXH
Place of Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ Particular of interest/
registration and issued share capital and voting power/
Name operation paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
E# CiF3
Direct Indirect
HEEAEBERLA HE BREX - 100% 4ERBEEREER
([LsgaEa]) The PRC AR 30,000,000 Production and sales of
Shanghai Shuanghong Bakery Paid up capital bakery products
Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai RMB30,000,000
Shuanghong”)
MR EmBERRA HE BREX - 100% 4ERBEEREER
Hangzhou Danbi Foodstuff The PRC 1,406,000% 7T Production and sales of
Co., Ltd. Paid up capital bakery products
US$1,406,000
MMRHETRRER AR HE BREX - 100% 4ERHEEREER
Hangzhou Christine Foodstuff The PRC 20,000,000% 7T Production and sales of
Co., Ltd. Paid up capital bakery products
US$20,000,000
BERRASTRMERRA HE BREX - 100% 4ERHEEREER
Ningbo Christine Foodstuff The PRC AR #25,000,0007T Production and sales of
Co., Ltd. Paid up capital bakery products
RMB25,000,000

FRASIMEAREEE AEAREAEELEY
CEPOEER

RBEEMRRIBESHRNERNERE RERBRAES
ERHAREE 2 EBHES-

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities
of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period or at
any time during the reporting period.
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HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020
25. B8 25. INVENTORIES
—ECEHF —FE-NF
2020 2019
AR¥ T ABRETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
R R Raw materials 14,466 18,507
IR i Finished goods 5,945 8,726
20,411 27,233

26. E5 K HMEWRIEA

26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

—EEF —NEF
2020 2019
BT AR¥T T ARETFr
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B rERE Trade receivables 6,206 14,050
FEHEEREEZ Loss allowance for ECL
R (1,100) (394)
(a) 5,106 13,656
E e Uk 3k 1B Other receivables (b) 61,183 6,293
TEMIEZTER Prepaid lease payments
HERE for retail outlets 1,852 2,306
TE A Prepayments 3,602 5,007
E@!‘EJ&‘ TE 78 £ Loss allowance for ECL on
EEEIE 2 EEEME  other receivables = (2,540)
66,637 11,066
BN EMEWTIE Total trade and other receivables
4z 71,743 24,722
REE-RETAEFERBMHFHEEHRN T30 The Group generally allows an average credit period

E60K R HERBITANTHEERRIR30K-

BREPHEES

ey

EERE-MEPBEAMEN

Ao AN S B B R BRAR B HE R MEE B K
AESTEHmTBRER-
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ranged from 30 to 60 days for department stores and
supermarkets, and 30 days for cash consumer card
issuers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit.

For new customers, payment in advance is normally

required. The Group seeks to maintain strict control

over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by the directors of the Company.
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26. E5 RHEMBWRE(E)

(@

RERRMEINZEZRKSOR (MKRBEE
EBRZEBEBRE) ZRERITIT

26.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(a)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on

the invoice date, and net of loss allowance for

ECL, is as follows:

—w-%F B i
2020 2019
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
0£30K 0 to 30 days 4,534 13,383
31260K 31 to 60 days 130 94
61290K 61 to 90 days 93 165
91E 180K 91 to 180 days 349 -
B 180K Over 180 days - 14
5,106 13,656
R-E_ZTF+_A=+—8 BB~k At 31 December 2020, an aggregate allowance
B8 5 FE W R I E L B 5 42 58 4 AR 51,100,000 was made for estimated irrecoverable trade
T (ZZT—NF: HARME394,0007T) ° receivables of approximately RMB1,100,000 (2019:

EHEEEE BRREZHK:

approximately RMB394,000).

Reconciliation of loss allowance for ECL:

—EZEF ZE—NF

2020 2019

ARMFT AR FIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

m—H—H At 1 January 394 394
FREHRE HEYIEZ Charge of loss allowance on trade

B e R A receivables for the year 706 =

Wt+ZA=+—H At 31 December 1,100 394

REEE ZRYGAZREEAARBE

RIB-BF+_A=+—H HHEKKES
- 2B =AEHNBR REEAARE
60,000,000 (ZF—N5F ) -ZEHRIARI
BMNE RRREAREREER U ARR
A—RRTEFTHRRERER BESECR
—E-TF+-_A=+—HERZHKE-

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020

(b)

The carrying amounts of the Group’'s trade
receivables are denominated in RMB.

Included in other receivables was an advancement
made to a third party with a carrying amount
of RMB60,000,000 (2019: Nil) at 31 December
2020. The amount due was non-trade in nature,
interest-free and repayable on demand. In
addition, the advance was guaranteed by an
executive director of the Company, the amount
was fully recovered subsequent to 31 December
2020.
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27. RITRBREER

RZZEZTF+_A=+—H AEEUARES
BzRTERESETL B ARYKS4,538,000T (==
—NE ) AR #58,762,00070) ° A R H i BN
BESTHE GMNEBEREL) K (BEE SRRMES
BAEHI) BHRTE

27. BANK AND CASH BALANCES

At 31 December 2020, the bank and cash balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
approximately RMB54,538,000 (2019: approximately
RMB58,762,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

28. IR 28. SHARE CAPITAL
—EEF —E-NF
2020 2019
BREBEE R17 & H
FR AREFT FRR AREFT
Number Number
of shares of shares
‘000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB’000
JETE Authorised:
FAREE0.00001&7TH)  Ordinary shares of
AR HK$0.00001 each
Rn+=—A=+—H At 31 December 10,000,000 100 10,000,000 100
BEETREE: Issued and fully paid:
HAREE0.00001E A Ordinary shares of
TR HK$0.00001 each
R+=-—A=+—8H At 31 December 1,010,188 8 1,010,188 8

ZTTFFWR Annual Report 2020 RFRIASTEIBIZERAMR AT Christine International Holdings Limited
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29.

RARHBRRKRRHEE B

(a)

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANY
AT EBBARR TR (@) Statement of financial position of the
Company
—E-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
AR¥FT ARETFr
RMB’000 RMB’000
kRBEE Non-current assets
BIEINGIPA: £ Interests in subsidiaries 225,405 224,754
REBEE Current assets
H b W 5k E Other receivables 142 151
JEN —REFE A FI IR Amount due from a related company 234 250
RITRIN B LR Bank and cash balances 9,770 14,615
10,146 15,016
REBAE Current liabilities
H At JE A5 FRIA Other payables 600 641
FETRR B Dividend payable 4,708 4,708
5,308 5,349
RBEEFE Net current assets 4,838 9,667
EEZFE NET ASSETS 230,243 234,421
BEXRRFEE Capital and reserves
[N Share capital 8 8
& Reserves 230,235 234,413
DA TOTAL EQUITY 230,243 234,421

KRR BERARABRRER T - —F0A
“HABKEFERERRETIE YHATE

The statement of financial position of the
Company was approved and authorised for issue

ERREE: by the Board of Directors on 26 April 2021 and
are signed on its behalf by:
BEwEE RKERE
Mr. Chun Bin Xu Mr. Yong Ning Zhu
BF BE
Director Director
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29. KAFHMBRARRREEESE (E) 29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

b)) EQRREEES (b) Reserve movement of the Company
& 435 8 REtE#R Hat
Share Accumulated

premium losses Total

AEETFT AREFT ARETT

RMB000 RMB’000 RMB000

RZZT—-hE—A—H At 1 January 2019 311,833 (75,277) 236,556
FANEABERBE Total comprehensive loss

for the year - (2,143) (2,143)

RZZE—NF+-A=+—H At 31 December 2019 and
—H

k-_Z-_ZTHE—f 1 January 2020 311,833 (77,420) 234,413
FRNEHEEBEEE Total comprehensive loss
for the year - (4,178) (4,178)
NZEBE-ZFE+-A=+—H At 31 December 2020 311,833 (81,598) 230,235
30. & 30. RESERVES
(@ =*%£H (@) Group
AEBEzRFECERHEGHBTRARGEER The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
MEMEERARERGEERSERK- movements therein are presented in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.
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30. f#E (B)

(b)

REZMHERAR

() KROEE
EHRERENEREENEBRETARR
Bt FrEE £ B (B o

(i) 4BIEE
FRREEE EERFG TR _FTNF
BOFER R WE LET TR T% #
BAR EBRMAT  LEBEAER N
RRFGT BB ERMESL X
HEE/BARRRORB M ETmETZ
SEEACTRRERR/ERBFEE-

(i) HtFEE

HipFREN BB RREREEAR/MAX
B 1 AR TR B A A K fR B R BRBh I X fo
BE-

30. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020

Nature and purpose of reserves

0]

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

The balance represents the premium arising
from the issuance of the Company’s shares
at a price in excess of their par value per
share.

Special reserve

The special reserve represents the reserve
arising from Shanghai Christine acquired
the remaining 8% interest in Shanghai Ji
Yuan De from non-controlling interest in
2008 and the paid in capital and reserve of
Shanghai Christine, Shanghai Shuanghong
and Nanjing Christine recognised as
special reserve upon completion of group
reorganisation in preparation for the listing
of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange.

Other reserve

Other reserve represents fair values of
outstanding share options and employee
share awards recognised as expense over
their vesting periods on a straight-line basis.

RRIHSTEMIZERARAT Christine International Holdings Limited

177



178

A M BRRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

30.

31.

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020

s (E)
b) FEZEERAR(E)

(iv) SEERERFHE

RETENABEEEZRER RPE
Atz BERNBONBECEREBREN
BZEEBHRHE ERBEREZER
BRZ50% i AR B R B E A EAE —
FEB LERHRETANBMBES
E2ER (WA) WA BRAEARET
7T EERA AT R BB AR
EERBRFEEERAR  REEEA 2
FEFEHETSER BT BN E AR Em
BAR225% °

I FE WA

30. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv) Statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations
for business enterprises in the PRC, a portion
of the profits of the entities which are
registered in the PRC has been transferred
to the statutory reserve which is restricted
as to use. When the balance of such reserve
reaches 50% of the capital of that entity,
any further appropriation is optional. The
statutory surplus reserve can be used to
make up for prior year losses, if any, and
can be applied in conversion into capital by
means of a capitalisation issue. However,
when converting the statutory surplus
reserve of the PRC subsidiaries into capital,
the remaining balance of such reserve must
not be less than 25% of the registered
capital of the relevant PRC subsidiaries.

31. DEFERRED REVENUE

—E-ZF —T—NF
2020 2019
ARMFT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

BT B Government grant
- RE — Current 80 _
-IERE — Non-current - 548

BERATEEAEE—HE2ENBRARNR S —F
F A BB A A R6,245,0007T LA B H
EmEFEMEX AT REBR -ZEFPPHAR
#1,342,000tERIFBEEBE_T—F1+=A
=+ —BHULEFEZIBETHER 825 AR %4,903,000
TERE WHEREEAEENFERAFHALEERT
HR-#H AREELS 000 TENHE T _TF+ =
AZ+—BLEFEFABR(ZZE—AF HARE
468,0007T) °

The deferred revenue arises in respect of the government
grant of approximately RMB6,245,000 in April 2010
granted to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group in
order to compensate for the expenditures and losses
arising from the dismantlement and relocation of the
plant. Approximately RMB1,342,000 of the subsidy
was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2011 upon dismantlement and relocation.
The remaining RMB4,903,000 has been deferred and
would be recognised in profit or loss over the useful
lives of the relevant assets. Approximately RMB468,000
(2019: approximately RMB468,000) has been released to
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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32. HE&AR 32. LEASE LIABILITIES
BEHEEMNH BEHEENREE
Present value of
Minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments
ZEZEFf  —T-nF  ZBZBFE —T-NF
2020 2019 2020 2019
ABE TR AREFT ARBEFT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
—FR Within one year 54,464 72,726 50,078 59,735
E_FRERF In the second to fifth years,
(BIEERMF) inclusive 53,207 75,725 34,550 65,408
hFk After five years - 62 - 61
107,671 148,513 84,628 125,204
WAKBEER Less: Future finance charges (23,042) (23,309)  FEHA N/A AN NA
HEAERE Present value of lease obligations 84,629 125,204 84,628 125,204
1218 B R B BB HIFIE Less: Amount due for
(RRBAEETIIR) settlement within
12 months (shown under
current liabilities) (50,078) (59,735)
2EABEEENHZIE  Amount due for settlement
after 12 months 34,550 65,469
HEHEENTUAAREEE- Minimum lease payments are denominated in RMB.
R-ZEZEFF+_A=+—RH AEHESEEENMN At 31 December 2020, the weighed average effective
BEHEBRFEFNEEIIF% (ZF—HLF:16.10%) ° interest rate for the lease liabilities of the Group was

9.35% (2019: 16.10%) per annum.
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i SE IR

REMEHR  AEE %A ] B R 8HAR K % F & R E
AR EEEHAK%690,218,000T (ZE—NF:
#) A R #672,886,0007T ) ° B3 FA K A F) 2 A~ A 75 A
M BUEEREENBEE-HE_SFF+=
A=+ —HLEFE AERDEBSEREBBEBOAR
#117,424,0007T * #) A R #186,672,0007T « #9 A R &
181,384,0007T * 49 A R #104,962, ooo%&iﬁ/\ﬁﬁ%
99,776,000t N RN —_E-_RAF - T _HF =

S R FEN T —FEm-HEMFHE
18 0] fE IR HR 45

APEREBABINOBAENREENAEARE
13,263,0007T ( ZZ— 1L - £ AR #E13,704,0007T) -
BROEBIN -AQAREERA BATZSRAEH
FBEBZSERNEFEELLIERHES BRARBEK
TEEE DR - Bt - I 8L EEIME T B I8 1 0 B o

RZEZEF+_A=+—HB AEENTEETH
MBRERZE TERERDEE (BEDE KFE
LEE CRAREENEBRNEAE) BEBELBES
BHAR222,551,000 (ZFE—NLF  HARK
226,627,0007T ) A 8 - I AT SR OB F o F A K
AL B ERT & A 0] AER Sl R T R = 88 -t
B ZEARERNEEREREEHBEE -

33. DEFERRED TAX

At the end of the reporting period the Group has
unused tax losses of approximately RMB690,218,000
(2019: approximately RMB672,886,000) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. For the year ended 31 December
2020, included in unrecognised tax losses are losses
of approximately RMB117,424,000, approximately
RMB186,672,000, approximately RMB181,384,000,
approximately RMB104,962,000 and approximately
RMB99,776,000 that will expire in 2025, 2024, 2023,
2022 and 2021, respectively. Other tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

The estimated withholding tax effects on the
distribution of accumulated profits were approximately
RMB13,263,000 (2019: approximately RMB13,704,000)
which would become payable when they are distributed.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, these
accumulated profits, at the present time, are required
for financing the continuing operations of these entities
and no distribution would be made in the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, no provisions for additional deferred
taxation have been made.

The Group also has certain deductible temporary
differences mainly related to loss allowance and
impairment loss of non-current assets (including property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets) amounted to approximately RMB222,551,000
(2019: approximately RMB226,627,000) and available
for offset against future profit at 31 December 2020.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation
to such deductible temporary differences as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences can be
uitilised.
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34.

BHEME

34. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

—E-ZfF —E—-NF
2020 2019
AR¥FT ARMFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000

RETERMERE LIRS Billings in advance of performance obligation
—REHFREMNFR — Coupons and pre-paid cards 313,501 345,287
—HEMEER — Sales of bakery products 3,865 3,248
317,366 348,535

EAKEBARNEF BRUBERMENREKERE
BNRE ERERESKENREENEHNEE.
HHEHEERARNANEERANETPBRAEE
EURBMREBEHEROEE - EHAKRRERENERR
FFEFRER-

Contract liabilities relating to coupons and pre-paid
cards are recognised when the Group typically receives
full payment from customer for rights to receive
goods in the future. Contract liabilities relating to
sales of bakery products are the obligations to transfer
goods to customers for which the Group has received
consideration. The respective revenue is expected to be
recognised when the goods are delivered to customers.

EHABEZEE: Movements in contract liabilities:
—ECEF —ET-hEF
2020 2019
AR FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
n—A—H At 1 January 348,535 385,755
HAFAERKEmMEREL Decrease in contract liabilities as
BERIVITANBIELEARE  aresult of recognising revenue during
the year was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the period (183,159) (152,191)
WERESRBEN <2 Increase in contract liabilities as
BT RA RS & E @ a result of receipt in advance of coupon
BYERNEBEEN and pre-paid cards and sales of products 151,990 114,971
R+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 317,366 348,535

FEHRBE —FERERBRANBRBNBNKES
B ANR178,871,000 (ZE—NLF - HARKE
174,817,0007T,) ©

The amount of billings in advance of performance
received that is expected to be recognised as
income after more than one year is approximately
RMB178,871,000 (2019: approximately
RMB174,817,000).
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RAT K

35. BANK BORROWINGS

—E-ZfF —E—-NF
2020 2019
AR#FT ARMFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RITIE R — BT Bank borrowings — secured
——FR — Within one year 100,000 35,950
REBEBRZEABRAREE- The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are

RTZA=+—RZFHMENT

denominated in RMB.

The average interest rates at 31 December were as

follows:
—EEF —T-hEF
2020 2019
RITIER— B EA Bank borrowings — secured 5.00% 5.34%

R_T_TFE+_RA=+—H0 FEMRITEHRER
RIGEF —FR(ZT-NF: —F)BREE ZE
EFMER(ZE-AF FPAE)FR -

RN—TB-_TE+-A=+—0 RBITHEFEBAEER
BREFEARED IO ARB14,657,000 (ZF— 1
Fom)RAANRE120,838,000T (ZE—HFHA
R#20,114,00070) MR EME A R R FE K& #
VIR B D R H R R & ISR EMI 719520 -

At 31 December 2020, the secured bank borrowings are
wholly repayable within one year (2019: one year) since
its inception and arranged at fixed rate (2019: floating
rate) per annum.

At 31 December 2020, the bank borrowings are secured
by a charge over the Group's investment properties
and property, plant and equipment with aggregate net
carrying amount of approximately RMB14,657,000
(2019: Nil) and approximately RMB120,838,000 (2019:
approximately RMB20,114,000) as set out in notes
19 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.
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36.

B 5 RHEMENRIE 36. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
—ECEF —ET-NEF
2020 2019
AR#FT AT
RMB’000 RMB'000
E S ENIE Trade payables 63,179 57,535
BT ER Accruals 15,320 11,619
R TERER Payroll and welfare payables 16,710 15,489
HEMREEE Other tax payables 14,548 5,868

HBEME BEREHZ Payables for acquisition of property,

FE IR plant and equipment 13,890 15,486
H fth &< FRIE Other payables 11,743 14,331
B 5 REMENRIBETE Total trade and other payables 135,390 120,328

HEE — KRG TAEEB0E0REEH HEREH

2INE ZENFIAZRE D

M

The Group normally is allowed a credit term of 30 to
60 days by its suppliers. The ageing analysis of trade
payables based on the date of invoice date, is as follows:

—ECEF —E-hF

2020 2019

AR F T ARETFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

0FE45K 0 to 45 days 38,877 46,797
46E60K 46 to 60 days 12,039 6,460
61E290K 61 to 90 days 10,264 1,829
91E 180K 91 to 180 days 1,245 456
i 180K Over 180 days 754 1,993
63,179 57,535

AEBEEZERNFIENKREEAAREE

ZT=TFFR Annual Report 2020

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are

denominated in RMB.
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BREE

RRBEITEME RN < &R AR E A BT
g ([&sta)) - aE%ﬁl@J&éEﬂﬂ$‘ilMiﬁiUﬂ’E
HEBNAER2EE - AERSBEREAR
$AEM¢%Aﬂ%zﬂ&&%ﬂ&@;‘ﬂﬁl}\ﬁ~m%&
BE EE EBEA R OZRRVBEE - %8
RIBE-——F+ A+ RER URRRERY
FHEBRERHEAAFZEBH RZM[EA &K
FTHARAZBRESS NI L ARLEAE - F=-
ENRERLBFEREBE25% LAINARBRES AR
FF—FRITE-

BREZERRKARBZHRTEBREZZSHE
RITERBEERARAREFMBRE HTROZ
10% - BUEBBE AT NI T B B +FR1TE-

ARFAARRAS% A EBREZ TERRRBERE B
ERBERRNBRRAS LA

B 2 (TEE IR E R ARBERMNER 250% (B
0.88BTL)ERE -

BHEZ —\,_Si-i—*ﬂi-i—*ﬂjtift*'*ﬂ%?ﬂ\f@?ﬁ%
AEEEBEE(ZE NG 8) - R_F-FF
TZA=1t—"B BERRTEZEBERE(ZF N
F|E)-

37.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates approval and adopted a pre-IPO
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group's operations.
Eligible participants include the full-time and part-time
employees, executives, officers, directors, business
consultants, agents, legal and financial advisers of the
Company and the Company'’s subsidiaries. The Scheme
became effective on 27 December 2011 and, are subject
to a vesting period of five years commencing from the
date of grant of such options during which 25% of the
options granted to a grantee will vest on each of the
second, third, fourth and fifth anniversary of the date
of grant and be exercisable within one year from such
anniversary.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time. No
option shall be exercisable 10 years after the date of
grant.

Share options granted to a substantial shareholder with
more than 5% of shareholding of the Company, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by 50% of the share price of the initial public offering,
i.e. HK$0.8.

No share option has been granted under the Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).
No share option was outstanding at 31 December 2020
(2019: Nil).
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38. MEBRERBRMEE

() BMEETDELENEEIHER

TRANANESERETHAELRGEZEE B
RRSIIFRSEY RETHELZBETIE
HESREXARREREXNETEHFERE
MERTNERBERDELZREREZR

f&e

38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@ Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group's
liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified
in the Group's consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

FRE%H
Non-cash changes
RZBZBE
gt 23 FRMRRE t=A
-A-8 ReRE FSXE HEHSHS HEEEEN RREGAE =+-H
At COVID-19-  Additions Release At
1 January Cash Interest  related rent of lease of lease 31 December
2020 flows expenses  concessions liabilities liabilities 2020
ARBFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(& 25)
(Restated)
RITME (F15E35) Bank borrowings (Note 35) 35,950 62,411 1,639 = = = 100,000
BERE (F532) Lease liabilities (Note 32) 125,204 (69,815) 7913 (4,679) 29,106 (3,101) 84,628
161,154 (7,404) 9,552 (4,679) 29,106 (3,101) 184,628
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38. ZERERBERME (B)

38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Continued)
() BETHELENEGBZYER(E) (@) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from
financing activities (Continued)
FRe%H
Non-cash changes
ERER
BBEE RZB-hE
RZB-RE HEER TZh
-B-B H16%H¥E BeRE FEXE HESELN RRAESE =t+-H
Impact
At on initial As at
1 January application on Cash Interest ~ Additions of ~ Release of 31 December
2019 HKFRS 16 flows expenses lease liabilities lease liabilities 2019
AREFT  AREFT  ANRETT ARETT AREFr  ARETT  ARETZT
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RIMB 000
RITIE (MH7E35) Bank borrowings (Note 35) = = 35,459 491 = = 35,950
REARE (FE32) Lease liabilities (Note 32) - 130,805 (92,452) 20,301 70,901 (4,351) 125,204
- 130,805 (56,993) 20,792 70,901 (4,351) 161,154
(b) BARBEECBESRHAZE (b) Total cash outflow for leases

ReRnERTAREEZSHEBENATEER:

Amounts included in the cash flow statements for

leases comprise the following:

—E-EF —T-hF

2020 2019

AR¥FT ARET T

RMB’000 RMB’000

REEBEEREN Within operating cash flows 39,224 28,334
RREREREN Within financing cash flows 69,815 92,452
109,039 120,786
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

38. ZERERBERME (B)

39.

40.

(b) AREEZRESRHARE(F)

ZECREATIER AR

38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)

(b)

Total cash outflow for leases (Continued)

These amounts relate to the following:

—EEF —E-NEF
2020 2019
AR FT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
[SXREik Lease rental paid 39,224 28,334
EEMEAE Repayment of lease liabilities 69,815 92,452
109,039 120,786
HFREE 39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
RZEZZTF+A=+—H AEELEFRMEK At 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any
IRBBE(ZZE—NFE) - significant contingent liabilities (2019: Nil).
IR 40. COMMITMENTS
RERNAE Commitments under operating leases
AEEEREHEA The Group as lessor
AEERBLELEHEELAEREYE HIPNF5E12 The Group leases out its investment properties under
FoRBTARBECERENRAFEERKRESBE operating leases with lease terms ranging from 5 to 12
LUl years. The future aggregate minimum rental receivables
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
—EEF —ET-hEF
2020 2019
AR¥FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1496 Year 1 2,114 =
2% Year 2 2,595 -
3% Year 3 2,695 -
4% Year 4 2,700 -
54 Year 5 2,229 -
5L After 5 years 17,084 =
29,417 _
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HEZ

41.

42.
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EXEARE
RIS ERE AR MR TN EREEMT

41. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments authorised for at the end of the
reporting period but not yet contracted are as follows:

2020 2019

ANREFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

M- BERHE Property, plant and equipment 10,765 11,552
EHIEERHE 42. SHORT-TERM LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

AEBERUMAEMERTEMETLEHELN-
RIB-ZBE+-_A=+—RA EPEANESEES
R ENRENENAER B RNEHES
HAEMRE-

ﬁi_2_7¢+ A=+ ALFE - A£EH
PEZEMRIIVEHEN - R_TE-_TF+=-A
£+—El KEEZHERELN A ARK1,678,000
T (ZZE—NF  HARM12,941,0007T) °

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases
for office premises and retail outlets. At 31 December
2020, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the
portfolio of short-term leases to which the short-term
lease expense as disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
entered into short-term leases for retail outlets in the
PRC. At 31 December 2020, the outstanding lease
commitments relating to approximately RMB11,678,000
(2019: approximately RMB12,941,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

43. BEALXRS

BREEMBRREMMITAREZZEMEA
TR 5 RAERRIN

(a)

43,

FAAEBEREBEALGETUATR

(a)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

financial statements.

(i

In addition to those related party transactions and
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated

The Group had the following transactions

2 - with its related parties during the year:
—EC-EF —E-NF
2020 2019
B 5E AR¥FTT ARBEFr
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
M E QAR Goods and raw materials
B REME purchased from related
companies
—EBEEEFERAA - Shanghai Meixin Trade
(T=®)) Co., Ltd. (“Meixin") (@ 1,425 580
—AREES (L£8) - Gu Wei Trade (Shanghai) Co., Ltd
BRAR ([A%]) ("Gu Wei") ) 2,050 =
T F—MEEARA  Processing fee paid to
mIE a related company
—LEE—RERR — Shanghai Yi Pin Xuan
BRARA Foodstuff Co., Ltd.
(T—m¥)) ("Yi Pin Xuan”) © - 7,305
MEFEQREITR Coupons issued and sold to
HERS related companies
—HAMARI A% — Jurong Nanda Innovation
TEEFR QA and Entrepreneurship Park
([mEmKl) Co., Ltd. (“Jurong Nanda") (d) = 162
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

43. BEALRS (&) 43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(@ (&) (@)  (Continued)
iy AEERFRNEEBEALTBUTES: (i) The Group had the following balances with
its related parties during the year:
—z-ef —z-nE
2020 2019
Bt 5E AR FT AREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FE U FRE N RIFRIE Amounts due from
related companies: 234 890

L ITPN — Jurong Nanda (d) = 640

— Christine Princess Co., — Christine Princess Co.,

(PTC) Ltd. (PTC) Ltd. (e) 234 250

FEATRBE R RIFUE - Amounts due to

related companies: 1,597 429

—XB - Meixin @) 570 382

— A - Gu Wei (f) 1,027 -

—RT A - Wujiang Shangpu (b) - 47

B 5 - Notes:

(a) BEERBBEEUZBELRHEA TG (@ A director, Mr. Dun-ching Hung, has control

over the related company.

(b)) EEEIMAEERERGRHZEEARES (b) A director, Mr. Chi-Ming Chou and his family
VIR - have control over the related company.

() ZBENRRERS IAWNL T RBERR (0 The related company was controlled by
FEZIERERFRZTES - HRNTE R Ms. Huang Lo Ching-Ying, who is a close
TIRZTE_EFAZ+HEAAEEE member of the family of Mr. Lo Tien-An,
F —mETERALKEEZHEELRR - —m spouse of a director, Ms. Jo-Hsien Chiang. Yi
HR-ZZ-_TFNA—HFH- Pin Xuan was ceased to be a related company

of the Group as Mr. Jo-Hsien Chiang was
retired from the director of the Group on 30
June 2020. Yin Pin Xuan was deregistration
on 1 August 2020.

d)  EEROKBEEHZSMERTIEELEHIRE- (d) A director, Mr. Yong Ning Zhu, has control

over the related companies.

(e) ZHAERRA—RETRR MR A (e)  The related company was a trust company
EEEREFERAARE- holding equity interest in the Company on trust

for the benefit of management employees.

(f) ZEERNRZEEEBABBERHRIEL (f) The key management personnel of the related

EZEH
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A M BRRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HE-ZZT-_TF+-A=+—HALFE For the year ended 31 December 2020

43. BEAETRB (&) 43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
by ESRHMETZEEENERFRNIEFMOT: (b)  The remuneration of directors and other members
of key management during the year was as
follows:

—E-EF —E-NF

2020 2019

AR¥FT AEBTFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

e EATE A Short-term benefits 2,178 2,218

RRFEFFT B Retirement benefits scheme
contributions 75 97
2,253 2,315
44, FHEWREE 44. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

RIBZEFS _A=T—HEREZEREVBR Subsequent to 31 December 2020 and up to the date
=UWERR AEEBRE - SEEHRITERARE of approving the consolidated financial statements, the
30,000,000 BIHAR R —ZT_—F A+ H " WikO Group had further obtained a new bank borrowing of
b FE IR FRIE (PAFT 5E26(0) i — SR HEL A ) AR RMB30,000,000 with maturity date on 7 February 2022
60,000,0007T ° and recovered other receivables as further detailed in

note 26(b) of RMB60,000,000, respectively.
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MBRE

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BE+-A=1+—-HLEE

Year ended 31 December

“E-RF ZEZ—+tF —E-N\F IZT-HNF CZEBZEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
ANRETFrT AREFT AREFT ARETFT AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ES Results
W zs Revenue 925,705 805,046 664,017 551,941 403,919
BRI B 18 Loss before taxation (118,799) (125,446) (234,418) (223,476) (109,711)
FremiEe,/ (FX) Income tax credit/(expense) 2,411) (3,208) 2,243 (821) (660)
FABEREZEAMZEE  Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year (121,210) (128,654) (232,175) (224,297) (110,371)
IATALER: Attributable to:
PN/NCTE 2SN Owners of the Company (121,210) (128,654) (232,175) (224,297) (110,371)
BE+-BA=t+—-HLEE
Year ended 31 December
ZE—RF —T—+F —ZT-N\F ZZ-hEF —E_EF
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
ARETFTL ARETFT AREFT ARETT AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EEREE Assets and liabilities
BERE Total assets 1,310,145 1,077,477 797,422 711,980 610,144
BERE Total liabilities 650,573 546,546 498,666 637,521 646,056
659,572 530,931 298,756 74,459 (35,912)
RAREAR NEEER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 659,572 530,931 298,756 74,459 (35,912)
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